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NEW ISSUE - BOOK - ENTRY - ONLY Ratings: (See "Ratings" herein)

In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, inlerest on the 2009B Bonds will bc excluded from gross income lot federal income tax purposes under existing
statutes, regulations, rulings and court decisions, subject to the conditions described in "TAX MA'Iq'ERS" herein. In addition, interest on the 2009B
Bonds will not be treated as an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), lbr purposes
of the individual and corporate alternative minimum taxes; however, under the Code, such interest may be subject to certain other taxes affecting

corporate holders of tfic 2009B Bonds. Under the existing laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. interest on the 2009B Bonds will be free fi'om

i Pennsylvania personal income taxation and Pennsylvania corporate net income taxation but such exemption does not extend to giN, estate, succession
or inheritance taxes or any other taxes not levied or assessed directly on the 2009B Bonds or the interest thereon. For a more complete discussion, see
"'TAX MA'FfERS" herein.

PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE COMMISSION

$375,010,000 TURNPIKE REVENUE BONDS,
SERIES B OF 2009

Doted: Date of Delivery Due: See inside cover

The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission's Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series B of 2009 (the "2009B Bonds") arc being isaned pursuant to a Supplemental
Trust Indanture No. 17 dated as of December I, 2009 (the "Supplemgntol Indenture No. 1_') to the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of

March 1, 2001, mid as mnended and supplemented (the "lndenturg'), between the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (the "Commission") and U. S.
Bank, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee").

The 2009B Bonds will be dated the date of initial issuance and delivery thereof, will bear interest at the fixed rates as shown on the inside front cover set

lbr the maturiD, dates thereof calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days consisting ofo, velve 30-day months payable on June 1 and December 1of each
year commencing June 1, 2010. The inside cover page of this Official Statement contains information concerning the maturity schedule, interest rates,
prices and approximate yields of the 2009B Bonds. The 2009B Bonds are deliverable in fully registered form and, when issued, will be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, which will act as securities depository for the 200913 Bonds.
Beneficial ownership interests in the 2009B Bonds will be recorded in book-entry only form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.
Purchasers of 2009B Bonds will not receive bonds representing their beneficial ownership in the 2009B Bonds but will receive a credit balance on the
books of their respective DTC Participants or DTC Indirect Participants. So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the 2009B Bonds, principal ot,

premium, if any. and interest on the 2009B Bonds will be paid to Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, which will, in turn, remit such principal, interest and
premium to the Participmats and Indirect participants for subsequent disbursement to the Beneficial Owners. as described herein. The 2009B Bonds will
be transferable or exchangeable to another nominee of The Depository Trust Company or ms otherwise described herein. So long as Cede & Co. is the

registered owner of the 2009B Bonds, payments ofpriueipal of and interest on the 2009B Bonds will bc nmde directly by the Trustee under the Indenture,
as described herein. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE 2009B BONDS - Book Entry Only System."

The 200911 Bonds will be subject to optional redemption prior to maturity as described herein.

THE 2009B BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE COMMISSION AND SHALL

NOT BE DEEMED TO BE A DEBT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA (THE
"COMMONWEALTH") OR A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH,
BUT THE 2009B BONDS SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE TRUST ESTATE (AS DEFINED
HEREIN) WHICH CONSISTS PRIMARILY OF TOLLS FROM THE SYSTEM (AS DEFINED HEREIN).
THE COMMONWEALTH IS NOT OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION
WHATSOEVER THEREFOR OR TO MAKE ANY APPROPRIATION FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE
2009B BONDS. THE COMMISSION HAS NO TAXING POWER.

THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS NOT A SUMMARY OF THIS ISSUE.
INVESTORS MUST REAl) TIlE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION FSSENTIAL TO TIlE MAKING OF AN
INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION.

The 2009B Bonds are being offered when, as and if issued and accepted by the Underv,,riters, subject to prior sale, withdrawal or modification of the
offer without notice, to certain legal matters being passed upon by Cozen & O'Connor and The I,aw Offices of Denise Joy Smyler, both of Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, Co-Bond Counsel, and to certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Stevens & Lee, a
professional corporation, Reading, Pennsylvania, Counsel for the Underwriters. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Commission by its Chief
Counsel, Doreen A. McCall, Esquire. It is anticipated that delivery of the 2009B Bonds in book-entry tbrm will bc made through the facilities of DTC
in New York, New York on or about December 22, 2009.

MORGAN STANLEY

J.P. Morgan Jefferies & Company

PNC Capital Markets LLC Wells Fargo Securities

Boenning & Scatlergood, Inc. Cabrera Capital Markets, LLC Janney Montgomery Scott
Loop Capital Markets Merrill Lynch Siebert Brandford Shank & Co., LLC

Official Statement dated December 9, 2009



$375,010,000 TURNPIKE REVENUE BONDS, SERIES B OF 2009

$375,010,000 Serial Bonds

Maturity
(December 1) Principal Amount Interest Rate CUSIP** No. Price Yield

2014 $ 1,735,000.00 3.000% 709223 YBI 105.116 1.910%
2014 10,635,000.00 5.000% 709223 YM7 114.504 1.910%
2015 3,325,000.00 3.000% 709223 YC9 103.584 2.350%
2015 9,560,000.00 5.000% 709223 YN5 114.614 2.350%
2016 5,660,000.00 4.000% 709223 YD7 108.375 2.670%
2016 32,010,000.00 5.000% 709223 YP0 114.673 2.670%

i 2017 1,415,000.00 3.250% 709223 YE5 I01.753 3.000%

2017 38,015,000.00 5.000% 709223 YQ8 114.038 3.000%
2018 4,080,000.00 3.125% 709223 YF2 99.035 3.250%
2018 36,250,000.00 5.000% 709223 YR6 113.483 3.250%
2019 5,225,000.00 3.250% 709223 YG0 98.493 3.430%
2019 37,020,000.00 5.000% 709223 YS4 113.129 3.430%
2020 2,895,000.00 3.500% 709223 YH8 99.100 3.600%
2020 1,535,000.00 4.000% 709223 YT2 103.316_" 3.600%
2020 23,375,000.00 5.000% 709223 ZB0 I I 1.61 It 3.600%
2021 1,800,000.00 4.000% 709223 YJ4 102.390_ 3.710%
2021 27,260,000.00 5.000% 709223 YU9 110.641_ 3.710%

2022 1,325,000.00 4.000% 709223 YK l 101.8901" 3.770%
2022 30,025,000.00 5.000% 709223 YV7 110.117t 3.770%
2023 520,000.00 4.000% 709223 YL9 101.309t 3.840%

2023 3 l,S10,000.00 5.000% 709223 YW5 109.509t 3.840%
2024 l, 190,000.00 4.000% 709223 YX3 100.733 t 3.910%

2024 32,750,000.00 5.000% 709223 YZ8 108.905t 3.910%
2025 1,270,000.00 4.000% 709223 YY 1 100.160t 3.980%
2025 34,325,000.00 5.000% 709223 ZA2 108.304t 3.980%

t Price shown tu first optional redemption date of December l, 2019.

** Copyright 2006, American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by Standard & Poor's, CUSIP Service Bureau, a division of

the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. This data is not intended to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP
Services. CUSIP numbers are provided for convenience or reference only and no representation is made as to the accuracy of such CUSIP
numbers. Neither the Commission nor the Underwriters take any responsibility for the accuracy of such CUSIP numbers. The CUSIP

number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the 2009B Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions
including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part of such maturity. Neither the Commission nor the Underwriters have agreed to,
and there is no duty or obligation to, update this Official Statement to reflect any change or correction in such CUSIP numbers.
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No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Commission or the
Underwriters to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained
in this Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or representations mustI i

not be relied upon as having been authorized by any or either of the foregoing. This Official
i Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there

be any sale of the 2009B Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such
person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. The information set forth herein has been obtained
from the Commission and other sources which are believed to be reliable but is not guaranteed as
to accuracy or completeness by, and is not to be construed as representations by, the
Underwriters. The information and expressions of opinion contained herein are subject to change
without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder
shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in any of the
information set forth herein since the date hereof.

The 2009B Bonds are not and will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, or under
any state securities laws, and the Indenture has not been and will not be qualified under the Trust
Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, because of available exemptions therefrom. Neither the
Securities and Exchange Commission nor any federal, state, municipal, or other governmental
agency will pass upon the accuracy, completeness, or adequacy of this Official Statement.

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement.
The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with,
and as part of, their responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the
facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or
completeness of such information.

No quotations from or summaries or explanations of provisions of law and documents herein
purport to be complete and reference is made to such laws and documents for full and complete
statements of their provisions. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or
agreement between the Commission and the purchasers or holders of any of the securities
described herein. Any statements made in this Official Statement involving estimates or matters
of opinion, whether or not expressly, so stated, are intended merely as estimates or opinions and
not as representations of fact. The cover page here, list of officials, this page and the
Appendices attached hereto are part of this Official Statement.

If and when included in this Official Statement, the words "expects," "forecasts," "projects,"
"intends," "anticipates," "estimates," "assumes" and analogous expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements, and any such statements inherently are subject to a variety
of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to different materially from those that
have been projected. Such risks and uncertainties which could affect the amount of tolls and
other revenue collected by the Commission include, among others, changes in economic
conditions and various other events, conditions and circumstances, many of which are beyond
the control of the Commission. Such forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of
this Official Statement. The Commission disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release
publicly any updates or revision to any forward-looking statement contained herein to reflect any
changes in the Commission's expectations with regard thereto or any change in events,
conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.



IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY
OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN
THE MARKET PRICE OF THE 2009B BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH

MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF
COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

THE ORDER AND PLACEMENT OF MATERIALS IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT,
INCLUDING THE APPENDICES, ARE NOT TO BE DEEMED TO BE A
DETERMINATION OF RELEVANCE, MATERIALITY, OR IMPORTANCE, AND
THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, INCLUDING THE APPENDICES, MUST BE
CONSIDERED IN ITS ENTIRETY. THE OFFERING OF THE 2009B BONDS IS MADE
ONLY BY MEANS OF THIS ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

i,
!' PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE COMMISSION

$375,010,000
TURNPIKE REVENUE BONDS, SERIES B OF 2009

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page, the inside front cover and the
Appendices hereto, is furnished by the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (the "Commission")
in connection with the issuance of $375,010,000 aggregate principal amount of Pennsylvania
Turnpike Commission, Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series B of 2009 (the "2009B Bonds").

All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meanings ascribed
to them in the definitions set forth in APPENDIX C - SUMMARIES OF CERTAIN
PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE - DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS. All references

herein to the Enabling Acts, the 2009B Bonds, the Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete texts thereof. Copies of
drafts of such documents may be obtained during the initial offering period from the principal
offices of the Underwriters and thereafter, executed copies may be obtained from U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"). All statements in this Official Statement
involving matters of opinion, estimates, forecasts, projections or the like, whether or not
expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. No representation is
made that any of such statements will be realized.

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT PROVIDES CERTAIN INFORMATION
CONCERNING THE 2009B BONDS AS OF THE DATE OF THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT.
OWNERS AND PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF THE 2009B BONDS SHOULD NOT
RELY ON THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT FOR INFORMATION CONCERNING THE

2009B BONDS ON AND AFTER ANY SUCH DATE, BUT SHOULD LOOK TO ANY
REVISIONS, AMENDMENTS, SUPPLEMENTS OR SUBSTITUTIONS HEREOF FOR
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE 2009B BONDS ON OR AFTER ANY SUCH DATE.

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

The Commission is an instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the
"Commonwealth") created by the Enabling Acts (as defined below), with power to construct,
operate and maintain the System (as defined below) and to perform other functions authorized by
Act 44 (as defined below). Its composition, powers, duties, functions, duration and all other
attributes are derived from the Enabling Acts as amended and supplemented from time to time.
See APPENDIX A - THE PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE COMMISSION.

Indenture and Enabling Acts

The 2009B Bonds are being issued pursuant to Supplemental Trust Indenture No. 17
dated as of December 1, 2009 (the "Supplemental Indenture No. 17") between the Commission
and U.S. Bank National Association (successor to First Union National Bank), as Trustee, under
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i, an Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2001, between the Commission
and the Trustee (as amended and supplemented, the "Indenture"), pursuant to and authorized by

: an Act of the General Assembly of Pennsylvania approved July 18, 2007, P. L. 169, No. 44
("Act 44") and various Acts of the General Assembly approved on several dates, including the
Actof May21, 1937, P. L. 774, Act211, the Aetof May24, 1945, P. L. 972; the Actof,I

February 26, 1947, P. L. 17; the Act of May 23, 1951, P. L. 335; the Act of August 14, 1951, P.
L. 1232; and the Act of September 30, 1985, P. L. 240, No. 61 ("Act 61") to the extent not
repealed by Act 44 (collectively, the "Enabling Acts"), and the Resolution adopted by the
Commission on October 6, 2009 (the "Bond Resolution").

DESCRIPTION OF THE 2009B BONDS

General

The 2009B Bonds will mature on the dates and shall bear interest at the rates per annum
as set forth on the inside cover of this Official Statement. The 2009B Bonds shall bear interest

from and including the Dated Date thereof until payment of the principal or redemption price
thereof shall have been made or provided for in accordance with the provisions thereof, whether
at maturity, upon redemption or otherwise. Interest on the 2009B Bonds shall be paid on June 1
and December 1 of each year, commencing June 1, 2010 (each, an "Interest Payment Date").
Interest on the 2009B Bonds shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day
months.

The 2009B Bonds shall have a Series Issue Date which shall be the date of original
issuance and first authentication and delivery against payment therefor; 2009B Bonds issued
prior to the first Interest Payment Date following the Series Issue Date shall have a "Dated Date"
as shown on the cover hereof. 2009B Bonds issued on or subsequent to the first Interest
Payment Date following the Series Issue Date shall have a "Dated Date" which is the same as the
Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication hereof, unless such date of
authentication shall be an Interest Payment Date to which interest on the 2009B Bonds has been
paid in full or duly provided for, in which case they shall have a "Dated Date" which is the same
as such date of authentication; provided that if, as shown by the records of the Trustee, interest
on the 2009B Bonds shall be in default, 2009B Bonds issued in exchange for 2009B Bonds
surrendered for transfer or exchange shall have a "Dated Date" which is the same as the date to
which interest has been paid in full on the 2009B Bonds or, if no interest has been paid on the
2009B Bonds, the Series Issue Date of the 2009B Bonds.

A CUSIP number has been assigned by the Committee on Uniform Securities
Identification Procedures Bureau, an organization not affiliated with the Commission. The
CUSIP number is being provided solely for the convenience of the holders of the 2009B Bonds.
The Commission is not responsible for the selection or uses of the CUSIP number, nor is any
representation made as to the correctness or accuracy of the number on the 2009B Bonds or as
referenced on the inside front cover of this Official Statement.

Pagment of Principal of and Interest on the 2009B Bonds. The principal of and
redemption premium, if any, and interest on the 2009B Bonds shall be payable in any coin or
currency of the United States of America which on the respective dates of payment thereof is
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legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. The principal of and the redemption
premium, if any, on all 2009B Bonds shall be payable by check or draft at maturity or upon
earlier redemption to the Persons in whose names such 2009B Bonds are registered on the Bond
Register at the maturity or redemption date thereof, upon the presentation and surrender of such
2009B Bonds at the Principal Office of the Trustee or of any Paying Agent named in the 2009B
Bonds.

The interest payable on each 2009B Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid by
the Trustee to the Person in whose name such Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the
close of business on the Record Date for such interest, such payment to be made: (i) by check or
draft mailed on the applicable Interest Payment Date to such Registered Owner at the address as
it appears on such Bond Register or at such other address as is furnished to the Trustee in writing
by such Owner or (ii) by electronic transfer in immediately available funds, if the 2009B Bonds
are held by a Securities Depository, or at the written request addressed to the Trustee by any
Owner of 2009B Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of not less than $1,000,000, such
request to be signed by such Owner, and containing the name of the bank (which shall be in the
continental United States), its address, its ABA routing number, the name and account number to
which credit shall be made and an acknowledgment by the Owner that an electronic transfer fee
is payable. Any such written request must be filed with the Trustee no later than ten (10)
Business Days before the applicable Record Date preceding such Interest Payment Date.

The Record Date for determining the Owner entitled to payment of interest with respect
to the 2009B Bonds on any given Interest Payment Date is the 15thday of the month immediately
preceding such Interest Payment Date.

Defaulted Interest with respect to any 2009B Bond shall cease to be payable to the Owner
of such 2009B Bond on the relevant Record Date and shall be payable to the Owner in whose
name such Bond is registered at the close of business on the Special Record Date for the
payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special Record Date shall be fixed in the following
manner. The Commission shall notify the Trustee in writing of the amount of Defaulted Interest
proposed to be paid on each 2009B Bond and the date of the proposed payment (which date shall
be such as will enable the Trustee to comply with the next sentence hereof), and shall deposit
with the Trustee at the time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount
proposed to be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory
to the Trustee for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment; money deposited with
the Trustee shall be held in trust for the benefit of the Owners of the 2009B Bonds entitled to

such Defaulted Interest. Following receipt of such funds the Trustee shall fix a Special Record
Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more than 15 nor less than
10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment and not less than 10 days after the receipt by
the Trustee of the notice of the proposed payment. The Trustee shall promptly notify the
Commission of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the
Commission, shall cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the
Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, first-class postage prepaid, to each Owner of a 2009B
Bond entitled to such notice at the address of such owner as it appears on the Bond Register not
less than ten (10) days prior to such Special Record Date.
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So long as the 2009B Bonds are in book-entry only form, the principal and redemption
price of, and interest on, such 2009B Bonds is payable by check or draft mailed or wire
transferred to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC and Registered Owner of the 2009B Bonds, for
redistribution by DTC to its Participants and in turn to Beneficial Owners as described under
"DESCRIPTION OF THE 2009B BONDS - Book Entry Only System."

Authoriged Denominations. The 2009B Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds
in authorized denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof.

Registrationw Transfer and Exchange. The Trustee has been appointed Bond Registrar
and as such shall keep the Bond Register at its Principal Office. The Person in whose name any
2009B Bond shall be registered on the Bond Register shall be deemed and regarded as the
absolute owner of such 2009B Bond for any and all purposes, and payment of or on account of
the principal and redemption premium, if any, and interest on any such 2009B Bond shall be
made only to or upon the order of the Registered Owner thereof or his legal representative. All
such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such 2009B
Bond, including the interest thereon, to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

Any 2009B Bond may be transferred only upon the Bond Register upon surrender thereof
to the Trustee duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the
Registered Owner or his attorney or legal representative in such form as shall be satisfactory to
the Trustee. Upon any such transfer, the Cormnission shall execute and the Trustee shall
authenticate and deliver in exchange for such 2009B Bond a new 2009B Bond or 2009B Bonds,
registered in the name of the transferee, of any Authorized Denomination and of the same
maturity and series and bearing interest at the same rate.

The Trustee may charge an amount sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other
governmental charge required to be paid in connection with any such transfer, registration,
conversion or exchange plus such amount as the Commission deems appropriate for such
transfer, registration, conversion or exchange. The Trustee shall not be required to (i) transfer or
exchange any 2009B Bond during a period beginning at the opening of business fifteen (15) days
before the day of the mailing of a notice of redemption of such 2009B Bond and ending at the
close of business on the day of such mailing, or (it) transfer or exchange any 2009B Bond so
selected for redemption in whole or in part, or during a period beginning at the opening of
business on any Record Date for such 2009B Bond and ending at the close of business on the
relevant Interest Payment Date therefor. See also "DESCRIPTION OF THE 2009B BONDS -
Book-Entry Only System" herein for further information regarding registration, transfer and
exchange of the 2009B Bonds.

The Indenture, and all provisions thereof, are incorporated by reference in the text of the
2009B Bonds, and the 2009B Bonds provide that each Registered Owner, Beneficial Owner,
Participant or Indirect Participant (as such terms are defined hereinafter) by acceptance of a
2009B Bond (including receipt of a book-entry credit evidencing an interest therein) assents to
all of such provisions as an explicit and material portion of the consideration running to the
Commission to induce it to issue such 2009B Bonds while held in book-entry only form.

4



Redemption of 2009B Bonds

Optional Redemption. The 2009B Bonds maturing on or after December 1, 2020 are
subject to optional redemption by the Commission, on or after December 1, 2019, in whole or in
part, at any time and from time to time, at par plus, in each case, accrued interest on the 2009B
Bonds to be redeemed to the redemption date.

Selection of 2009B Bonds to be Redeemed. 2009B Bonds shall be redeemed only in
Authorized Denominations. Any 2009B Bonds subject to partial optional redemption shall be
redeemed in any order of maturity and in any principal amount within a maturity as designated
by the Commission. The particular 2009B Bonds within a maturity to be redeemed shall be
determined by the Trustee by lot or by such other method as the Trustee deems fair and
appropriate.

When 2009B Bonds of denominations greater than the minimum Authorized
Denomination are then Outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such redemption
each principal amount equal to the minimum Authorized Denomination shall be treated as
though it was a separate 2009B Bond of the minimum Authorized Denomination. If it is
determined that a portion, but not all, of the principal amount represented by any 2009B Bond is
to be selected for redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem such portion, the Owner of
such 2009B Bond or such Owner's attorney or legal representative shall forthwith present and
surrender such 2009B Bond to the Trustee (1) for payment of the redemption price (including the
premium, if any, and interest to the date fixed for redemption) of the principal amount called for
redemption, and (2) for exchange, without charge to the Owner thereof for a new 2009B Bond or
2009B Bonds of the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the principal
amount of such 2009B Bond. If the Owner of any such 2009B Bond shall fail to present such
2009B Bond to the Trustee for payment and exchange as aforesaid, said 2009B Bond shall,
nevertheless, become due and payable on the redemption date to the extent of the principal
amount called for redemption (and to that extent only).

Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption. Official notice of any such redemption shall
be given by the Trustee on behalf of the Commission by mailing a copy of an official redemption
notice by first class mail at least thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the
redemption date to each Registered Owner of the 2009B Bonds to be redeemed at the address
shown on the Bond Register or at such other address as is furnished in writing by such
Registered Owner to the Trustee. Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid,
the 2009B Bonds or portions of 2009B Bonds so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date,
become due and payable at the redemption price specified therein, and from and after such date
(unless the Commission shall default in the payment of the redemption price) such 2009B Bonds
or portions of 2009B Bonds shall cease to bear interest.

As long as DTC remains the sole Registered Owner of the 2009B Bonds, notice of
redemption shall be sent to DTC as provided in the Indenture. Any failure of DTC to advise any
DTC Participant, or of any DTC Participant or Indirect Participant to notify the Beneficial
Owner, of any such notice and its content or effect will not affect the validity of the redemlbtion
of the 2009B Bonds called for redemption or of any other action premised on such notice. See
"BOOK - ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM."



Any notice of redemption of any 2009B Bonds pursuant to this Section may specify that
the redemption is contingent upon the deposit of moneys with the Trustee in an amount sufficient
to pay the redemption price of all the 2009B Bonds or portions of 2009B Bonds which are to be
redeemed on that date.

Failure to give any notice to any Owner, or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity
of any proceedings for the redemption of any other 2009B Bonds. Any notice mailed shall be
conclusively presumed to have been duly given and shall become effective upon mailing,
whether or not any Owner receives the notice.

Book-Entry Only System

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities
depository for the 2009B Bonds. The 2009B Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities
registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered 2009B Bond
certificate will be issued in the aggregate principal amount of each maturity of the 2009B Bonds,
and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under
the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York
Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the
meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds
and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S, equity, corporate
and municipal debt issues, and money market instrument from over 100 countries that DTC's
participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct
Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.
Direct Participants include both U. S. and non-U.S, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC, in turn, is owned
by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing
Corporation, Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation
(NSCC, FICC, and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock
Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities
Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and
non-U.S, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that
clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or
indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC
Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of 2009B Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for the 2009B Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership
interest of each actual purchaser of each 2009B Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be
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recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive
written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements
of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner
entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the 2009B Bonds are to be
accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf
of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownership interests in 2009B Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the
2009B Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all 2009B Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with
DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name
as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of 2009B Bonds with
DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other nominee do not effect any
change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the
2009B Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such 2009B Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The
Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on
behalf of their customers to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of
2009B Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of
significant events with respect to the 2009B Bonds, such as redemptions, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of 2009B Bonds may
wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the 2009B Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain
and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners, in the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to
provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of the notices be
provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the 2009B Bonds within a
maturity are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of
each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with
respect to the 2009B Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Commission as
soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or
voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the 2009B Bonds are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on the 2009B Bonds will be made to
Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts, upon DTC's receipt of funds and

: corresponding detail information from the Commission or the Trustee on payable date in
accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to
Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the
case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street
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name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC (nor its nominee), the
Trustee, or the Commission, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in
effect from time to time. Payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest to Cede & Co. (or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) are the
responsibility of the Commission or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct
Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the
Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the
2009B Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Commission or the Trustee. Under
such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities depository is not obtained, 2009B
Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Commission may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only
transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, 2009B Bond
certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been
obtained from sources that the Commission believes to be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to
accuracy or completeness by, and is not to be construed as a representation by, the Underwriters,
the Trustee, or the Commission.

NEITHER THE COMMISSION NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY

RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPANTS, BENEFICIAL OWNERS OR
OTHER NOMINEES OF SUCH BENEFICIAL OWNERS FOR: (1) SENDING
TRANSACTION STATEMENTS; (2)MAINTAINING, SUPERVISING OR REVIEWING,
OR THE ACCURACY OF, ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY
PARTICIPANT OR OTHER NOMINEES OF SUCH BENEFICIAL OWNERS; (3) PAYMENT
OR THE TIMELINESS OF PAYMENT BY DTC TO ANY PARTICIPANT, OR BY ANY
PARTICIPANT OR OTHER NOMINEES OF BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO ANY
BENEFICIAL OWNER, OF ANY AMOUNT DUE IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF
OR REDEMPTION PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON BOOK-ENTRY 2009B BONDS;
(4) DELIVERY OR TIMELY DELIVERY BY DTC TO ANY PARTICIPANT, OR BY ANY
PARTICIPANT OR OTHER NOMINEES OF BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO ANY

BENEFICIAL OWNERS, OR ANY NOTICE (INCLUDING NOTICE OF REDEMPTION) OR
OTHER COMMUNICATION WHICH IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE
TERMS OF THE INDENTURE TO BE GIVEN HOLDERS OR OWNERS OF BOOK-ENTRY

2009B BONDS; (5)THE SELECTION OF THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO RECEIVE
PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF BOOK-ENTRY 2009B

BONDS; OR (6)ANY ACTION TAKEN BY DTC OR ITS NOMINEE AS THE
REGISTERED OWNER OF BOOK-ENTRY 2009B BONDS.

In the event that the Book Entry Only System is discontinued and the Beneficial Owners
become Registered Owners of the 2009B Bonds, the 2009B Bonds will be transferable in
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.



PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE SYSTEM

The present System (as defined below) is composed of the following: a 359 mile
Turnpike Mainline traversing the southern portion of Pennsylvania from east to west, a 110 mile
north-south section identified as the Northeast Extension, a 16 mile north-south connection,
known as the Beaver Valley Expressway which intersects the Turnpike Mainline in the
southwestern portion of the Commonwealth, the 13 mile Amos K. Hutchinson Bypass, which
adjoins the Turnpike Mainline near the New Stanton Interchange, a 23-mile section of the
Mon/Fayette Project, an eight mile section from the Pennsylvania/West Virginia border to
Fairchance, which is located just south of Uniontown, and the first part of the Southern Beltway,
the Findlay Connector near Greater Pittsburgh International Airport. (Such roads, together with
any other roads for which the Commission has operational responsibility and is collecting Tolls
presently constitute the "System"). When completed, the Mon/Fayette Expressway will extend
65 miles from Interstate Route 68 in West Virginia to Interstate Route 376 near Pittsburgh.

The Commission may in the future, under the terms of the Indenture, identify in writing
certain roads, other than the Mainline Section and the Northeast Extension, as not being part of
the System for the purposes of the Indenture. In October 2007, in accordance with Act 44, the
Commission entered into a 50 year Lease and Funding Agreement, dated as of October 14, 2007
(the "Lease") with the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation ("PennDOT") providing for
the funding of certain PennDOT capital expenditures and mass transit grants and providing for
the lease of Interstate 80 (traversing northern Pennsylvania) from PennDOT upon approval of
tolling Interstate 80 by the United States Federal Highway Administration (the "FHWA"). The
Commission has no plan to include Interstate 80 in the System (for purposes of the Indenture).
See: "Act 44," below and APPENDIX A - THE PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE
COMMISSION - The Pennsylvania Turnpike - Act 44 for discussion on the Commission's lease
of Interstate 80 from PennDOT and its proposed conversion of Interstate 80 to a toll road.

The Turnpike Mainline connects with the Ohio Turnpike at its western terminus and with
the New Jersey Turnpike at its eastern terminus. The Turnpike Mainline commences on the
eastern boundary of Pennsylvania at the Delaware River Bridge which connects the Pennsylvania
Turnpike System to the New Jersey Turnpike. The Turnpike Mainline traverses the state in a
westerly direction generally paralleling the southern border of the state immediately north of
Philadelphia and south of Han-isburg to the vicinity of Somerset. West of Somerset, the highway
follows a northwesterly direction to the northeast of Pittsburgh and to the Ohio state line, south
of Youngstown, Ohio.

The Pennsylvania Turnpike System has a total of 57 interchanges which connect it with
major arteries and population centers in its 531 mile traffic corridor. Thirty of the interchanges
are located on the Turnpike Mainline, including Turnpike Mainline barriers at the New Jersey
and Ohio state lines, and 10 interchanges are situated on the Northeast Extension. The additional
17 interchanges are located on the three extensions previously noted. There are 19 service plazas
along the Pennsylvania Turnpike System providing gasoline and diesel fuel, other automotive
supplies and services, and restaurant services. See APPENDIX A - THE PENNSYLVANIA
TURNPIKE COMMISSION.



Revenue Sources of the Commission

Tolls. All rates, rents, fees, charges, fines or other income derived by the Commission
from the vehicular usage of the System and all rights to receive the same (the "Tolls", as defined
in the Indenture) constitute one of the Commission's three principal streams of revenues. The
Tolls are pledged to secure the 2009B Bonds and the Commission's other outstanding turnpike
revenue bonds (collectively, the "Turnpike Revenue Bonds") and other parity obligations under
the Indenture (including certain interest rate swap agreements), which are subject to or may be
issued under the terms of the Indenture. There are currently $2,245,545,000 aggregate principal
amount of Turnpike Revenue Bonds Outstanding under the Indenture. In addition, the Revenues
(as defined in Appendix C) secure interest rate swap agreements with a total current notional
amount of $1,330,130,000. The Commission may in the future, under the terms of the Indenture,
identify in writing certain roads, other than the Mainline Section and the Northeast Extension, as
not being part of the System for the purposes of the Indenture. The Commission has no plan to
include Interstate 80 in the System (for purposes of the Indenture), and, as such, income realized
from the potential tolling of Interstate 80 will not be pledged as security for Turnpike Revenue
Bonds. The Tolls are not pledged to secure the Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds (as defined
below) and are not pledged to secure the Registration Fee Revenue Bonds (as defined below).
Certain payments made from monies in the General Reserve Fund and derived from Tolls are,
however, pledged on a wholly subordinate basis to secure payments due on the Commission's
Act 44 Bonds. See "ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COMMISSION - Subordinate
Bonds" and APPENDIX A - THE PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE COMMISSION - The

Pennsylvania Turnpike - Financial Policies and Guidelines.

Toll increases in the amount of 25% were implemented in 2009, the Commission has
approved a 3% toll increase effective January 3, 2010, and future toll increases are anticipated
annually thereafter. The Commission anticipates that it will borrow substantial additional funds
through at least the year 2024. Therefore, the projected toll increases may be revised by the
Commission if necessary to meet the then existing debt and operational obligations of the
Commission. See "Act 44", "ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COMMISSION -
Subordinate Bonds" and APPENDIXA - THE PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE

COMMISSION - Act 44, for a description of the subordinate obligations and Special Revenue
Bonds (as defined in Section 9511.2 of Act 44) which the Commission is authorized to issue
under Act 44.

Oil Franchise Tax Revenues. The Commission's second principal stream of revenues
consists of that portion of the Commonwealth's Oil Franchise Tax revenues (the "Oil Franchise
Tax Revenues") allocated by statute to the Commission or the holders of the Commission's Oil
Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds (the "Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds"), a total of
$814,041,246 of which are issued and outstanding. The Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, the
proceeds of which were spent on portions of the Mon/Fayette Expressway and the Southern
Beltway, are secured solely by Oil Franchise Tax Revenues. The Oil Franchise Tax Revenues
are not pledged to secure the 2009B Bonds, other Turnpike Revenue Bonds, or the
Registration Fee Revenue Bonds.

Registration Fee Revenue& The Commission's third principal stream of revenues
consists of that portion of the Commonwealth's vehicle registration fee revenues (the
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"Registration Fee Revenues") allocated by statute to the Commission or the holders of any of the
Commission's Registration Fee Revenue Bonds (the "Registration Fee Revenue Bonds"), a total
of $442,020,000 of which are issued and outstanding. The Registration Fee Revenue Bonds, the
proceeds of which were spent on portions of the Mon/Fayette Expressway and the Southern
Beltway, are secured by Registration Fee Revenues. Registration Fee Revenue Bonds are to be
paid solely from the Registration Fee Revenues. The Registration Fee Revenues are not
pledged to secure the 2009B Bonds, other Turnpike Revenue Bonds, or the Oil Franchise
Tax Revenue Bonds.

Neither the Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds nor the Registration Fee Revenue Bonds
are secured by or have any interest in the Trust Estate.

Act 44

On July 18, 2007, Pennsylvania Governor Edward G. Rendell signed Act 44 into law,
creating a "public-public partnership" between the Commission and PennDOT to provide
funding for roads, bridges, and transit throughout the Commonwealth, thus greatly expanding the
Commission's previous focus on operating and improving the Turnpike. Under Act 44, the
Lease was entered into between the Commission and PennDOT pursuant to which the
Commission has been granted the option to lease Interstate 80 (traversing northern Pennsylvania)
from PennDOT. The Lease contains certain provisions dealing with various items including,
among other things, the terms and conditions of the conversion of Interstate 80 into a toll road
(the "Conversion") (subject to the requisite approval of the FHWA), the operation, maintenance,
repair, and improvement of Interstate 80, the payment by the Commission of annual payments to
PennDOT, and the issuance of special revenue bonds by the Commission. The Commission is
required to make payments to PennDOT in fiscal 2010 totaling $900 million in quarterly
installments. It expects to fund certain of such payments through the issuance of Subordinate
Bonds (as hereinafter defined). The term of the Lease is 50 years from its effective date,
October 14, 2007. See APPENDIX A - THE PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE COMMISSION -
The Pennsylvania Turnpike - Act 44 - Tolling of 1-80 and - Recent Developments and Future
Legislation.

The General Assembly enacted Act 44 after considering transportation funding proposals
by Governor Rendell including the leasing of the Turnpike Mainline to a private party. In 2008
Governor Rendell conducted a selection process for a proposed lease or concession of the
Turnpike Mainline to a private party and selected a vendor. The offer submitted by the selected
vendor expired prior to the end of 2008 and Governor Rendell has not pursued Turnpike
Mainline privatization any further.

In addition, certain legislation has been or may be introduced which would affect Act 44
if adopted. For additional details and current developments, see APPENDIX A- THE
PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE COMMISSION- The Pennsylvania Turnpike - Recent
Developments and Future Legislation.
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Traffic and Revenue Study

Attached hereto as APPENDIX F is the Pennsylvania Turnpike 2009 Traffic and
Revenue Update Study prepared by Wilbur Smith Associates dated January 6, 2009 (the "Traffic
Study"), which, as of the date of this Official Statement, has not been updated. The Traffic
Study, which should be reviewed in its entirety, updates the study conducted by Wilbur Smith
Associates in May 2004, which was prepared in anticipation of the then last toll increase, which
took effect on August 1, 2004. As set forth in the Traffic Study, total adjusted gross toll revenue
is estimated to increase from $598.9 million in Fiscal Year 2007-08 to $2,129.5 million by Fiscal
Year 2030-31, representing 5.7% annualized growth. However, as noted in the Traffic Study,
because current traffic and revenue trends reflect the negative effects of the current economic
downturn, the forecasts made in the Traffic Study assume continued negative growth through the
middle of Fiscal Year 2009-10 and flat to no growth through the middle of Fiscal Year 2010-11,
with the resumption of more "normal" growth patterns in the longer term forecasts. See
"CERTAIN RISK FACTORS" and APPENDIX F - TRAFFIC AND REVENUE STUDY.

Despite the current low to negative growth forecasts, the Commission believes that it will have
sufficient revenue to meet the debt and operational obligations of the Commission in future
years.

Act 44 Financial Plan

In accordance with Act 44, the Commission is required to provide a financial plan (the
"Financial Plan") to the Secretary of the Budget of the Commonwealth no later than June 1 of
each year. The Financial Plan must describe the Commission's proposed operating and capital
expenditures, borrowings, liquidity and other financial management covenants and policies,
estimated toll rates, and all other revenues and expenditures for the ensuing Fiscal Year. The
Financial Plan must also show that the operation of the system can reasonably be anticipated to
result in the Commission's ability to meet its payment obligations to PennDOT pursuant to the
Lease and Act 44. It does not, however, address the funding needs for the Mon/Fayette or
Southern Beltway projects.

The Commission's Financial Plan for Fiscal Year 2010 indicates that in 2009 the

Commission was able to meet all of its financial covenants, Act 44 obligations, and was able to
progress with its capital plan. Given the unprecedented economic environment, which is
expected to continue to negatively impact both traffic and revenue, the Commission recently
implemented several cost containment measures, including workforce reductions, a management
pay freeze and a transfer of tmion holidays to vacation days. These measures, together with a
3% toll increase (effective January 3, 2010), are expected to allow the Commission to once again
meet its financial covenants, Act 44 obligations and capital needs during Fiscal Year 2010.

The Financial Plan concludes that the Commission will continue to meet all of its

Indenture covenants and all of its other obligations through the 2057 Fiscal Year. However, as a
forward-looking report, the Financial Plan makes certain assumptions to reach its conclusion that
the financial covenants, Act 44 obligations, and capital needs will be met beyond Fiscal Year
2010. Key among them is the tolling of 1-80 (with collections beginning in Fiscal Year 2012)
and the Commission's ability to raise all tolls throughout the System. No assurances can be
given by the Commission with respect to the assumptions made or conclusions reached in the

12



Financial Plan. A complete copy of the Financial Plan can be obtained by contacting the
Commission.

PLAN OF FINANCING

The 2009B Bonds are being issued to provide for: (a) the current refunding of all of the
Commission's outstanding, Variable Rate Demand Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series U of 2001
(the "Series 2001U Bonds"), Variable Rate Demand Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2002
(the "Series 2002A Bonds"), and Variable Rate Demand Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series B of
2002 (the "Series 2002B Bonds" and together with the Series 2001U Bonds, and the Series
2002A Bonds, the "Refunded Bonds"); (b) termination payments on certain interest rate swaps
(the "Swap Agreements") related to the Series 2002A Bonds, the Series 2002B Bonds and the
Series 2001U Bonds; (d) the funding of necessary reserves to the extent required; and (e) costs of
issuing the 2009B Bonds (collectively, the "2009B Project").

Current Refunding

The Refunded Bonds have been conditionally called for optional redemption on
December 22, 2009.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Par Amount of 2009B Bonds $375,010,000.00
Net Original issue premium 40,864,018.00

TOTAL SOURCES $415.874.018.00

USES OF FUNDS

Termination Payments on the Swap Agreements $ 52,665,900.00
Deposit to Debt Service Fund to pay redemption
price of the Refunded Bonds ] 339,735,000.00
Deposit to Debt Service Reserve Fund 20,919,011.39
Deposit to Debt Service Fund for 2009B Bonds 10,948.13
Costs of Issuance 2 2,543,158.48

TOTAL USES $415,874,018.00

I
The Commission will pay interest accrued on the Refunded Bonds to the date of redemption from Commission funds.

2
Costs of Issuance include, but are not limited to, Underwriters' discount, Co-Bond Counsel fee, Underwriters' Counsel fee

and other legal fees, rating agency fees, printing expenses, Co-Financial Advisors' fee, Swap Advisor's fee and Trustee's
fee.
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SECURITY FOR THE 2009B BONDS

Security

The 2009B Bonds are limited obligations of the Commission. They are secured, along
with the other outstanding Bonds and certain other Parity Obligations, under the Indenture by the
pledge by the Commission to the Trustee of (1)all Revenues (which includes all Tolls), (2)all
monies deposited into accounts or funds, other than the Rebate Fund, created by the Indenture,
(3) any insurance proceeds required to be deposited under the Indenture, (4)all payments
received pursuant to Parity Swap Agreements, and (5) all investment earnings on all monies held
in accounts and funds, other than the Rebate Fund, established by the Indenture (all five of these
items being collectively referred to as the "Trust Estate"). OIL FRANCHISE TAX REVENUES
AND REGISTRATION FEE REVENUES, AS WELL AS OTHER SOURCES OF THE
COMMISSION'S REVENUES NOT DERIVED FROM TOLL REVENUE, INCLUDING
CONCESSION REVENUE, ARE EXCLUDED FROM THE TRUST ESTATE. THE TRUST
ESTATE ALSO EXCLUDES ALL MONIES HELD IN THE REBATE FUND. ANY
ADDITIONAL BONDS AND PARITY OBLIGATIONS ISSUED PURSUANT TO THE

INDENTURE (OTHER THAN SUBORDINATE INDEBTEDNESS) WILL BE EQUALLY
AND RATABLY SECURED UNDER THE INDENTURE.

THE 2009B BONDS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO BE A DEBT OF THE
COMIVIONWEALTH OR A PLEDGE OF THt: FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE
COMMONWEALTH. THE COMMONWEALTH IS NOT OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR
PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION WHATSOEVER THEREFOR OR TO MAKE
ANY APPROPRIATION FOR THE PAYMENT OF ANY OF THE 2009B BONDS.

Payments of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds, including the 2009B Bonds
and any Additional Bonds and payments on certain other Parity Obligations, are secured, pro rata
and without preference or priority of one Bond or Parity Obligation over another, by a valid
pledge of the Trust Estate and by the Indenture.

The Indenture further provides that the Commission may not issue Additional Bonds or
incur other Parity Obligations except upon satisfaction of various requirements as expressly
provided in the Indenture. See "SECURITY FOR THE 2009B BONDS- Additional Bonds
Test" and APPENDIX C - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE.

Rate Covenant

The Commission has agreed in the Indenture that it will at all times establish and
maintain schedules of Tolls for traffic over the System so that the Net Revenues of the System in
each Fiscal Year will at all times be at least sufficient to provide funds in an amount not less than
(1) the greater of (i) 130% of the Annual Debt Service for such Fiscal Year on account of all
Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness then outstanding under the provisions of the Indenture; or
(ii) 100% of the Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness,
plus (a)the amount of required transfers from the Revenue Fund to the credit of the Reserve
Maintenance Fund pursuant to the Annual Capital Budget, and (b) an amount sufficient to restore
any deficiency in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, if applicable, within an 18 month period; plus
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(2) the amount of any Short-Term Indebtedness outstanding under the Indenture for more than
365 consecutive days. In addition, the amount of Net Revenues in excess of the sum of the
amounts set forth in clauses (1) and (2) above, together with Other Revenues pledged to the
payment of Subordinated Indebtedness, shall be sufficient to pay the Annual Debt Service for
any Subordinated Indebtedness. See also "SECURITY FOR THE 2009B BONDS - General
Reserve Fund" below for discussion of the rate covenant applicable to Subordinate Bonds under
the Subordinate Indenture.

: The Commission's failure to meet the Rate Covenant shall not constitute an Event of

Default under the Indenture if (i) no Event of Default occurred in debt service payments as a
result of such failure and (ii) the Commission promptly after determining that the Rate Covenant
was not met retains a Consultant to make written recommendations as to appropriate revisions to
the schedules of Tolls necessary or appropriate to meet the Rate Covenant and advises the
Trustee in writing of such retention. Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding,
if the Commission shall comply with the recommendations of the Consultant in respect of Tolls,
it will not constitute an Event of Default under the provisions of the Indenture if the Commission
fails to meet the Rate Covenant during the succeeding Fiscal Year as long as no Event of Default
has occurred in debt service payments. If the Commission does not comply with the
recommendations of the Consultant in respect of Tolls, the Trustee may, and upon the request of
the holders of not less than 25% in Principal Amount of the Bonds then outstanding and upon
being indemnified to its satisfaction shall, institute and prosecute in a court of competent
jurisdiction any appropriate action to compel the Commission to revise the schedules of Toils.
The Commission covenants that it will adopt and charge Tolls in compliance with any final order
or decree entered in any such proceeding.

In the event that the Consultant shall fail to file with the Commission such

recommendations in writing within sixty (60)days after such retention, the Trustee may
designate and appoint a different Consultant to make recommendations as to an adjustment of the
schedules of Tolls, which recommendations shall be reported in writing to the Commission and
to the Trustee within sixty (60)days after such retention. Such written report shall for all
purposes be considered to be the equivalent of and substitute for the recommendations of the
Consultant retained by the Commission.

In preparing its recommendations, the Consultant may rely upon written estimates of
Revenues prepared by the other Consultants of the Commission. Copies of such written
estimates signed by such Consultants shall be attached to such recommendations. The
Commission covenants that promptly after receipt of such recommendations and the adoption of
any revised schedules of Tolls, certified copies thereof will be filed with the Trustee. The ability
of the Commission to collect tolls in an amount sufficient to comply with the Rate Covenant
could be adversely affected by many factors, some of which are beyond the Commission's
control.

i

I The Commission has agreed that Tolls will be classified in a reasonable way to cover all
i traffic, so that the Tolls may be uniform in application to all traffic falling within any reasonable

class regardless of the status or character of any person, firm or corporation participating in the
traffic; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not be interpreted to restrict the
Commission's right, in its discretion in connection with its management of the System, to
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establish and maintain flexible Toll schedules including, but not limited to, provisions for,
utilizing or otherwise taking into account, peak and nonpeak pricing, introductory pricing,
weight, method of payment, frequency, carpooling, electronic Tolls or other new Toll collection
technologies, traffic management systems, and similar classifications. The Commission has
agreed that it shall not grant free passage or reduced Tolls within a class, except in the limited

.manner permitted by the Indenture, which includes, among others, for operational or safety
reasons including, but not limited to, reasons arising out of a work stoppage, work slowdown or
work action, and for use by the Army, Air Force, Navy, Coast Guard, Marine Corps or National
Guard or any branch thereof in time of war or other emergency.

In the event the Commission did not meet the Rate Covenant for the preceding Fiscal
Year, any classification resulting in a reduced Toll or new classification shall be subject to a
Consultant approving the same before it is implemented unless the circumstances require
immediate implementation, in which event the Commission shall obtain such approval promptly
following implementation. In all events, the Commission shall not make a change in
classification or any new classification which would cause the Commission to fail to meet the
Rate Covenant.

The Commission's covenant as to uniformity of Tolls shall not be construed as requiring
that Tolls for any given class of traffic be identical in amount throughout the entire System for
trips of approximately identical lengths. The Commission may fix and place in effect schedules
of Tolls for any given class of traffic wherein the Toils charged for travel on a given section of
the System shall be different from the Tolls charged on another section of the System
notwithstanding the fact that both of said sections may be of identical or approximately identical
length.

Revenue Fund

All Revenues will be deposited daily, as near as practicable, with the Trustee or in the
name of the Trustee with a depositary or depositaries designated by the Commission and
approved by the Trustee, to the credit of the Revenue Fund. The monies in the Revenue Fund
are to be held by the Trustee in trust and applied in accordance with the Indenture.

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, transfers from the Revenue Fund shall be
made to the following funds and in the following order of Priority:

Rebate Fund;

_ Operating Account;i

Debt Service Fund;

Reserve Maintenance Fund;

Debt Service Reserve Fund, if applicable; and

General Reserve Fund.
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I Operating Account

The Commission shall establish an account known as the Operating Account which shall
be held by the Commission in the name of the Commission outside of the Indenture until applied
as set forth in the Indenture. The Trustee shall transfer from the Revenue Fund on or before the

last Business Day of each month to the credit of the Operating Account an amount equal to
(i) the amount shown by the Annual Operating Budget to be necessary to pay Current Expenses
for the ensuing month and (ii) an amount certified by a Commission Official as being reasonably
necessary to pay Current Expenses which are expected for such month, after taking into account
the amount on deposit in the Operating Account (including the amount described in clause
(i) above).

Debt Service Fund

After first having made the foregoing specified deposits to the Operating Account, the
Trustee is required to withdraw from the Revenue Fund and deposit to the applicable account in
the Debt Service Fund held by the Trustee under the Indenture, the amounts hereinafter specified
which shall be applied by the Trustee for the purposes for which the same shall be deposited:

On or before the last business day preceding an Interest Payment Date, an
amount which equals the interest due on such Interest Payment Date; provided,
however, that in the case of any fixed rate bonds, including the 2009B Bonds,
term mode bonds and multi-modal fixed mode bonds (collectively, "Fixed Rate
Bonds"), the withdrawal from the Revenue Fund and deposit to the Debt Service
Fund shall be made on or before the first Business Day of each calendar month in
an amount which equals the amount necessary to pay, and for the purpose of
paying, one-sixth (1/6) of the interest due on any Fixed Rate Bonds issued under
the Indenture on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date including any amount
due to the Bond Insurer in respect thereto (or, in the case of the period from the
date of issuance of such Fixed Rate Bonds to the first Interest Payment Date for
the applicable Fixed Rate Bonds, a monthly amount equal to the interest amount
owed on such first Interest Payment Date divided by the number of months from
the date of issuance of such Fixed Rate Bond to such first Interest Payment Date)
plus any accumulated unfunded balance relating to prior months' deposit
requirements;

On or before the last business day preceding a principal payment date, an
amount which equals the principal amount of the Bonds or Parity Obligations
maturing on such principal payment date; provided, however, that in the case of
any Fixed Rate Bonds, the withdrawal from the Revenue Fund and deposit to the
Debt Service Fund shall be made on or before the first Business Day of each
calendar month in an amount which equals the amount necessary to pay, and for
the purpose of paying one-twelfth (1/12) of the amount necessary to pay and for
the purpose of paying the principal amount of any Fixed Rate Bonds issued under
the Indenture maturing (including mandatory sinking fund installments) on the
next succeeding principal payment date (or, in the case of the period from the date
of issuance of such Fixed Rate Bonds to the first date on which principal is due on
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such Fixed Rate Bonds, a monthly amount equal to the principal amount owed on
such first principal maturity date divided by the number of months from the date
of issuance of such Fixed Rate Bond to such first principal maturity date) plus any
accumulated unfunded balance relating to prior months' deposit requirements;
and

On the dates specified in any Supplemental Indenture relating to
Additional Bonds or Parity Obligations, the amounts required to be deposited on
said dates to the credit of the Interest Account or Principal Account pursuant to
the provisions of such Supplemental Indenture for the purpose of paying the
interest on and the principal of such Additional Bonds.

The 2009B Bonds are Fixed Rate Bonds.

The Trustee is required to pay out of the Interest Account, from time to time, without
further authorization from the Commission, and as the same shall become due and payable, the
interest upon the Bonds, except to the extent payable from funds and accounts other than the
Debt Service Reserve Fund, if applicable, as provided in any Supplemental Indenture. The
Trustee is required likewise to pay out of the Principal Account, from time to time, without
further authorization from the Commission, as the same shall become due and payable, the
principal of the Bonds, except to the extent payable from funds and accounts other than the Debt
Service Reserve Fund, if applicable, as provided in any Supplemental Indenture.

The Commission has directed tile Trustee to pay and deposit from Commission Revenues
into the applicable account of the Debt Service Fund such amounts as are necessary to pay
interest and principal on the 2009B Bonds on the Interest Payment Date and on the date on
which principal payments are due.

If at the time the Trustee is required to make a withdrawal from the Debt Service Fund
and the monies therein shall not be sufficient for the purposes set forth above, the Trustee shall
withdraw the amount of such deficiency from the monies on deposit in the following funds or
accounts and transfer the same to the Debt Service Fund in the following order: the Debt Service
Reserve Fund, if applicable, the General Reserve Fund, and the Reserve Maintenance Fund.

Reserve Maintenance Fund

In each Fiscal Year, after first having made the deposits provided by the Indenture, the
Trustee shall transfer from the Revenue Fund on or before the last Business Day of each month
to the credit of the Reserve Maintenance Fund the amount shown in the Annual Capital Budget
for the ensuing month.

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, or except in case of an emergency, as
characterized in a certificate signed by a Commission Official stating that the monies to the
credit of the Operating Account are insufficient to meet such emergency, monies in the Reserve
Maintenance Fund shall be disbursed to pay current capital expenditures shown in the Annual
Capital Budget for the System, plus the cost of unusual or extraordinary maintenance (as
determined solely by the Commission) and shall be disbursed only for such purposes, except to
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the extent hereinafter provided. Such purposes shall include, but not be limited to, paying the
cost of constructing, improving and reconstructing improvements and betterments to all parts of
the System now or hereafter open to vehicular traffic, including, without limitation, additional
lanes, tunnels, interchanges, toll plazas, bridges and connecting roads, transit interface facilities
and any other improvements deemed necessary or desirable by the Commission.

Payments from the Reserve Maintenance Fund, except the transfers which the Trustee is
authorized to make, shall be made pursuant to a requisition process which follows the process
described in the Indenture for payments from the Construction Fund.

The Trustee shall transfer any monies from the Reserve Maintenance Fund to the credit
of the General Reserve Fund from time to time upon the receipt of a certificate of a Commission
Official certifying that the amount so to be transferred is not required for the purposes for which
the Reserve Maintenance Fund has been created.

Debt Service Reserve Fund

A Debt Service Reserve Fund has been established under the Indenture to provide
additional security for Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds. The 2009B Bonds are Debt Service
Reserve Fund Bonds and, accordingly, are secured by moneys in the Debt Service Reserve Fund.

The Indenture requires that the balance in the Debt Service Reserve Fund be maintained
at the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, which is an amount equal to the Maximum Annual
Debt Service on accotmt of all the Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds. Debt Service Reserve

Fund Bonds include Long-Term Indebtedness specified by the Commission in the Indenture as
being secured by the Debt Service Reserve Fund. See APPENDIX C-- SUMMARY OF
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE - THE INDENTURE - Debt Service Reserve

Fund for information with respect to the Debt Service Reserve Fund under the Indenture.

In each Fiscal Year, after first having made the deposits provided by the Indenture, the
Trustee shall transfer from the Revenue Fund on or before the last day of each month to the
credit of the Debt Service Reserve Fund (1)the amount, if any, required to make the amount on
deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund equal to the Debt Service Reserve Requirement which
restoration, as provided in the Rate Covenant contained in the Indenture, is intended to occur
within 18 months and (2) the amount set forth in a Supplemental Indenture if an amount different
from the Debt Service Reserve Requirement is required.

To the extent accounts are created in the Debt Service Reserve Fund for Debt Service

Reserve Fund Bonds, including the creation of an account for the 2009B Bonds, the funds and
DSRF Security, as hereinafter defined, held therein shall be available to make payments required
under the Indenture for the benefit of all Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds.

Monies held in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be used for the purpose of paying
interest on, and the maturing principal of, Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds whenever and to the
extent that the monies held for the credit of the Debt Service Fund shall be insufficient for such

purpose. If at any time the monies and the principal amount of any DSRF Security (as defined
herein) held in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall exceed the Debt Service Reserve
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Requirement, tl_e Commission shall direct whether such excess monies shall be transferred by
the Trustee to the credit of the General Reserve Fund or used to reduce the principal amount of
any DSRF Security as described below.

In the event the Trustee shall be required to withdraw funds from the Debt Service
Reserve Fund to restore a deficiency in the Debt Service Fund arising with respect to Debt
Service Reserve Fund Bonds, the amount of such deficiency shall be allocated pro rata among
such Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds.

i
In lieu of the deposit of monies into the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the Commission may

cause to be provided a surety bond, an insurance policy, a letter of credit or similar financial
instrument satisfactory to the Rating Agency (as evidenced by a letter from the Rating Agency
confirming that the DSRF Security will not result in the rating on any outstanding Bonds being
downgraded) (each, a "DSRF Security") payable to the Trustee for the benefit of the
Bondholders in an amount equal to the difference between the Debt Service Reserve
Requirement and the amounts then on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund. The DSRF
Security shall be payable (upon the giving of notice as required under the Indenture) on any
Interest Payment Date on which monies will be required to be withdrawn from the Debt Service
Reserve Fund and applied to the payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds to the
extent that such withdrawals cannot be made by amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve
Fund.

If a disbursement is made pursuant to a DSRF Security, the Commission shall be
obligated either (i) to reinstate the maximum limits of such DSRF Security or (ii) to deposit into

i the Debt Service Reserve Fund, funds in the amount of the disbursement made under such DSRF
Security, or a combination of such alternatives, as shall provide that the amount credited to the
Debt Service Reserve Fund equals the Debt Service Reserve Requirement within a time period of
18 months.

: If the DSRF Security shall cease to have a rating described above, the Commission shall
use reasonable efforts to replace such DSRF Security with one having the required rating, but
shall not be obligated to pay, or commit to pay, increased fees, expenses or interest in connection
with such replacement or to deposit Revenues in the Debt Service Reserve Fund in lieu of
replacing such DSRF Security with another. The Commission does not currently have a DSRF
Security with respect to the Debt Service Reserve Fund.

General Reserve Fund

After first having made the above specified deposits to the Operating Account, the Debt
Service Fund, the Reserve Maintenance Fund and the Debt Service Reserve Fund, if applicable,
and while any Bonds are outstanding, the Trustee is required to transfer from the Revenue Fund
on or before the last Business Day of each Fiscal Year (or more frequently if requested by a
Commission Official) to the credit of the General Reserve Fund any funds which a Commission
Official determines to be in excess of the amount required to be reserved therein for future
transfers to the Debt Service Fund. Monies in the General Reserve Fund may be expended by
the Commission to restore deficiencies in any funds or accounts created under the Indenture, and

: i
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absent any such deficiency, for any of the following purposes, with no one item having priority
over any of the others:

to purchase or redeem Bonds;

to secure and pay the principal or redemption price of, and interest on, any
Subordinated Indebtedness;

to make payments into the Construction Fund;

to fund improvements, extensions and replacements of the System; or

to further any corporate purpose (including transfers to other indentures in
connection with Subordinate Bonds and future Act 44 subordinated debt).

The Trustee has been directed to disburse from the General Reserve Fund, to the trustee
under the Subordinate Indenture, funds sufficient to meet debt service requirements on the
Subordinate Bonds. Under the Subordinate Indenture, the Commission has agreed that it will at
all times establish and maintain Tolls for traffic over the System so that the amount paid into the
General Reserve Fund in each Fiscal Year after deducting any liquidity reserve or other required
holdback or deposit then in effect will be at least sufficient to provide funds in an amount not
less than (i) 115% of the annual debt service on Subordinate Bonds (and obligations on parity
with Subordinate Bonds), plus (ii) 100% of the annual debt service on Subordinate Bonds which
are guaranteed by the Motor License Fund under Act 44, plus (iii) any amount required under the
Subordinate Indenture to restore within eighteen months any deficiency in the debt service
reserve fund held under the Subordinate Indenture. Failure to meet this covenant will not

constitute a default under the Subordinate Indenture (nor the Indenture), but will require the
Commission to retain a consultant to advise with respect to schedules of Tolls in order to bring
the Commission into compliance. The Trustee has never withdrawn funds from the General
Reserve Fund to meet regularly scheduled debt service payments on Bonds outstanding under the
Indenture nor has the General Reserve Fund been used to restore any shortfalls in any Debt
Service Reserve Fund for any Bonds. See also "ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS-
Subordinate Bonds."

Additional Bonds Test

The Commission is permitted to issue Additional Bonds under the terms of the Indenture
in the form of Short-Term Indebtedness, Long-Term Indebtedness, Subordinated Indebtedness
and Approved Swap Agreements; provided that there is no default, that certain resolutions,
opinions, supplemental indentures, certifications and moneys and securities, if necessary, are
delivered to the Trustee and that the following conditions are met:

(a) with respect to Short-Term Indebtedness, (1) immediately after the incurrence
of such Short-Term Indebtedness, the outstanding principal amount of all Short-Term
Indebtedness issued pursuant to the Indenture may not exceed 30% of the Revenues for
the most recent Fiscal Year for which audited financial statements are available; and
(2) for a period of not fewer than seven consecutive days within each Fiscal Year,
commencing with the Fiscal Year following the issuance of such Short-Term
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Indebtedness, the aggregate principal amount of all outstanding Short-Term Indebtedness
is reduced to less than 5% of the Revenues for the immediately preceding Fiscal Year for
which audited financial statements are available. Short-Term Indebtedness issued

pursuant to the Indenture will be on a parity with other Additional Bonds;

(b) with respect to Long-Term Indebtedness, prior to or contemporaneously with
the incurrence thereof (1)a certificate of a Commission Official certifying that the
Historical Pro Forma Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the most recent Fiscal Year
preceding the delivery of such certificate for which audited financial statements are
available was not less than 1.75; or (2) a report of a Consultant to the effect that (i) the
Net Revenues of the Commission during the preceding Fiscal Year were at least 130% of
the Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness then
Outstanding and on any Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness proposed to be issued
(which report may assume any revisions of the Tolls which have been approved by the
Commission after the beginning of such Fiscal Year were.in effect for the entire Fiscal
Year) and (ii) the Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio is not less than 1.30; or (3) if
the Long-Term Indebtedness is being incurred solely for the purpose of refunding,
repurchasing or refinancing (whether in advance or otherwise) any outstanding
Long-Term Indebtedness, a certificate of a Commission Official certifying the Maximum
Annual Debt Service on all Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness prior to the issuance of
the proposed Long-Term Indebtedness is greater than the Maximum Annual Debt Service
on all Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness after the issuance of such proposed
Long-Term Indebtedness;

(c) with respect to Subordinated Indebtedness, there is no limit, provided that the
Indebtedness is subordinate and junior in all respect to payment of all Bonds and other
Parity Obligations incurred under the Indenture so that the same is payable as to principal
and interest once all other payments have been made under the Indenture from amounts
on deposit to the credit of the General Reserve Fund as long as prior to or
contemporaneously with the incurrence, a certificate of a Commission Official certifying
that the Rate Covenant would have been met during the preceding Fiscal Year taking into
account the Maximum Annual Debt Service on such Subordinated Indebtedness. Such

Subordinated Indebtedness and the payment thereof may be secured by a lien and pledge
(a) subordinate to that of the Bonds on the Revenues or (b) prior to, on a parity with or
subordinate to, that of the Bonds on Other Revenues, in which event the Commission and
the Trustee may establish such other accounts under the Indenture as they deem
necessary or appropriate; and

(d) with respect to Approved Swap Agreements, no Approved Swap Agreement
will be entered into unless prior to or contemporaneously with the incurrence thereof, a
certificate of a Commission Official as described in (b)(1)above, or a report of a
Consultant as described in (b)(2) above, which takes into account the expected payments
by and to the Commission pursuant to such Approved Swap Agreement in calculating
Annual Debt Service is delivered.
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ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COMMISSION

Bonds and Other Parity Obligations

The Commission has previously issued Bonds and Notes under the terms of the Indenture
that have an equal claim to the Trust Estate with the 2009B Bonds. Currently, $2,245,545,000
aggregate principal amount of such Bonds are Outstanding. See APPENDIX C - SUMMARY
OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE.

In addition to the Outstanding Bonds, the Commission has entered into various interest
rate exchange agreements with a current notional amount of $1,330,130,000 that constitute
Parity Swap Agreements under the Indenture. Under the terms of the Indenture, regularly
scheduled amounts payable under Parity Swap Agreements, and in certain cases termination
payments, are secured on a parity with the Bonds by the Trust Estate. See APPENDIX A - THE
PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE - Financial Policies and Guidelines and APPENDIX C-
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE.

Following the issuance of the 2009B Bonds and the completion of the refundings and
swap terminations described under "PLAN OF FINANCING," $2,280,820,000 aggregate
principal amount of such Bonds will be outstanding and $1,330,130,000 notional amount of such
Parity Swap Agreements will be outstanding.

The Commission anticipates issuing approximately $5 billion of Additional Bonds under

the Indenture through 2019, the end of its current Ten Year Capital Plan, to fund capital
expenditures detailed in such Ten Year Capital Plan.

Subordinate Bonds

Act 44 authorizes the Commission to issue bonds for the purpose of paying costs of
PennDOT and bond-related expenses. Proceeds of such bonds may be applied toward the
satisfaction of the Commission's annual payment obligations to PennDOT under the Lease of
Interstate 80. The Commission has $2,574,772,763 of outstanding Turnpike Subordinate
Revenue Bonds and Notes (the "Subordinate Bonds") under the authorization of Act 44 to be
paid solely from monies released from the General Reserve Fund (such bonds are therefore
subordinate to Bonds and other Parity Obligations under the Indenture).

Upon fulfillment of conditions set forth in the Subordinate Indenture, the Commission
may issue additional Subordinate Bonds under the terms of the Subordinate Indenture. In
addition to any Subordinate Bonds, the Commission is authorized under the terms of the
Subordinate Indenture to enter into various interest rate exchange agreements that will constitute
parity swap agreements under the Subordinate Indenture. Under the terms of the Subordinate
Indenture, amounts payable under parity swap agreements, including termination payments, may
be secured on a parity with the Subordinate Bonds. The Commission has not entered into any
parity swap agreements under the Subordinate Indenture.

There is no statutory limit on the amount of Subordinate Bonds that may be issued by the
Commission. To date, the Commission has issued Subordinate Bonds under the Subordinate
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Indenture, but has not issued any Subordinated Indebtedness under the Indenture. The
Commission has no plans to issue any Subordinated Indebtedness under the Indenture.

Under Act 44, the Commission may also issue up to $5 billion of Special Revenue Bonds
which are subordinate to Parity Obligations under the Indenture and to the Subordinate Bonds
under the Subordinate Indenture. The Special Revenue Bonds authorized by Act 44 are subject
to various limitations, including, among others, the following: the aggregate amount of such
Special Revenue Bonds is limited to $5 billion; no more than $600,000,000 of Special Revenue
Bonds may be issued in any calendar year; debt service on the Special Revenue Bonds shall be
payable from any available funds of the Commission but are additionally secured by a pledge of
amounts in the Motor License Fund created under Act 44 required to pay any debt service
shortfall; all such debt service payments are subordinate obligations of the Commission payable
solely from certain money in, or periodically released from, the General Reserve Fund after

meeting all other Commission requirements pursuant to any financial documents, financial
covenants, insurance policies, liquidity policies or agreements in effect at the Commission; and
the proceeds from the issuance of the Special Revenue Bonds may only be used for roads and
bridges. No Special Revenue Bonds have been issued by the Commission to date and no such
bonds are expected to be issued in the immediate future. See: "APPENDIX A- THE

i PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE- Act 44", for a description of the Subordinate Bonds and
Special Revenue Bonds which the Commission is authorized to issue under Act 44.

; Other Bonds Issued by Commission - No Claim on Trust Estate

The Commission has also issued Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds that are currently
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $814,041,246 and Registration Fee Revenue
Bonds that are currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $442,020,000. The
Commission has entered into various interest rate exchange agreements (swaps) with respect to
certain of the Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds and Registration Fee Revenue Bonds. Neither
the Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds nor the Registration Fee Revenue Bonds are secured by or
have any interest in the Trust Estate. Furthermore, neither the Oil Franchise Tax Revenues nor
the Registration Fee Revenues are pledged to secure the 2009B Bonds.

CERTAIN RISK FACTORS

There are various factors which could adversely affect the sufficiency of the Trust Estate
and which, if present, may result in an inability to meet the debt service requirements on the
2009B Bonds. The following is intended only as a summary of certain risk factors attendant to
an investment in the 2009B Bonds and is not intended to be exhaustive. In order to identify risk
factors and make informed investment decisions, potential investors should be thoroughly
familiar with the entire Official Statement (including each Appendix), and the Bond Documents
in order to make a judgment as to whether the 2009B Bonds are an appropriate investment.

Certain Matters Relating to Enforceability of Obligations. The remedies available to
an Owner upon an Event of Default under the Indenture are in many respects dependent upon
judicial action which is subject to discretion or delay. Under existing law and judicial decisions,
including specifically the United States Bankruptcy Code, the remedies specified in the
Indenture may not be readily available or may be limited.
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The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the original delivery of the
2009B Bonds will be qualified as to enforceability of the various legal instruments by, among
other things, limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws
or legal or equitable principles affecting creditors' rights.

Legislative Action. State legislation is introduced from time to time which, if adopted,
may affect the Commission and/or the System. The Commission cannot predict whether or not
these bills will be enacted into law or how such legislation may affect the Commission and its
ability to pay debt service on the 2009B Bonds.

Decline in Toll Revenues. The information provided with respect to toll revenues
collected by the Commission is based on historical data. The amount of future toll revenues to
be collected by the Commission depends upon a number of factors, some of which are not in the
control of the Commission. Some of these factors include a decline in traffic on the System due
to general economic conditions, diversion of traffic to alternative non-toll routes, increased fuel
costs, availability of alternate forms of travel and shipping, and government regulations, such as
Clean Air Act requirements, increased mileage standards or higher fuel taxes, which could
significantly restrict motor vehicle use. The Commission is obligated to set tolls at a level that
will generate revenues sufficient to pay all of its obligations, however, there is no certainty that
the traffic on the System will continue to generate such revenues.

Adverse Changes to Third Party Financial Institutions. Adverse changes in the
financial condition of certain third-party financial institutions may adversely affect the
Commission's financial position. Different types of investment and contractual arrangements
may create exposure for the Commission to such institutions including: (i) risk to the
Commission's investment portfolio due to defaults or changes in market valuation of the debt
securities of such institutions, (ii) counterparty risk related to swaps used by the Commission to
hedge its cost of funds; and (iii) risk of rating changes of the Commission's credit enhancers or
liquidity providers which may adversely affect the interest costs on the Commission's variable
rate debt or render such variable rate debt unmarketable.

Other Factors. Additional factors which may affect the financial condition of the
Commission and the future operation of the System include the following:

• Increased and/or unanticipated costs of operating the System;

• Increased and/or unanticipated costs of operating Interstate 80;

• Work stoppage, slowdown or action by unionized employees;

• Increased mass transit systems;

• Complete or partial destruction or temporary closure of the System for extended
periods of time; and

• Increased pension costs, unfunded healthcare and other non-pension
post-employment benefits.
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AMENDMENT OF INDENTURE

Supplemental Indenture No. 17 contains provisions amending the definition of Annual Debt
Service to allow the Commission to take scheduled subsidy payments to the Commission with respect to
any "Build America Bonds" issued as Bonds under the Indenture into account as a credit when calculating
the Annual Debt Service for such Bonds. The Commission would also be required to deposit such
subsidy payments into an account of the Debt Service Fund created for each such series of Bonds and
apply them to debt service. Such amendments will become effective upon receipt of the consent of the
holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. The initial
purchasers of the 2009B Bonds, on behalf of themselves, their successors and assigns, will have
consented irrevocably to such amendments by their purchase of the 2009B Bonds, and such consent
will be deemed sufficient to satisfy the requirement_ of the Indenture. See "Amendments to
Indenture" in APPENDIX C - SUMMARIES OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE -
DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Commission for the years ended May 31, 2009 and
i May 31, 2008 are set forth in "APPENDIX B - AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2009

AND 2008" certified by Ernst& Young, in its capacity as Independent Auditor. The

Commission has not asked Ernst & Young to perform any additional review in connection with
this Official Statement.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Commission will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking for the benefit of
the Registered Owners from time to time of the 2009B Bonds (the "Disclosure Undertaking")
pursuant to United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Rule 15c2-12.

Pursuant to the Disclosure Undertaking, the Commission will provide to the appropriate
national repository (currently, EMMA, as hereinafter defined) within 180 days of the end of each
fiscal year of the Commission commencing with the fiscal year ending May 31, 2009, annual
financial information, consisting of financial and operating data of the type set forth in this
Official Statement in Tables I, II and III of "APPENDIX A- THE PENNSYLVANIA
TURNPIKE COMMISSION" and in "APPENDIX B - AUDITED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS: 2009 AND 2008" as well as a summary of any material legislative or
regulatory developments affecting Act 44 or the tolling of Interstate 80. In the event that audited
financial statements are not available within 180 days of the close of the applicable fiscal year,
the Annual Financial Information will contain unaudited financial statements and the audited

financial statements will be provided for filing when available.

The Disclosure Undertaking will also provide that the Commission will file in a timely
manner, with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB") as set forth below,
notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the 2009B Bonds, if
material: (i) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (ii)non-payment related defaults;
(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (iv) unscheduled
draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (v) substitution of credit or banks,
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or their failure to perform; (vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of
the 2009B Bonds; (vii) modifications to rights of holders of the 2009B Bonds; (viii) 2009B Bond
calls; (ix)defeasances; (x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
2009B Bonds; and (xi) rating changes. The foregoing events are quoted from Rule 15c2-12.

The SEC requires the listing of(i) through (xi) in the preceding paragraph, although some
of such events are not applicable to the 2009B Bonds. For example, items (iv) and (v) are not
applicable to the 2009B Bonds because there is no credit enhancement providing for the payment
of the 2009B Bonds.

The Commission shall file in a timely manner with the MSRB's Electronic Municipal
Market Access System ("EMMA"), accessible at http://emma.msrb.org, which is currently the
only national repository.

The Commission may amend the Disclosure Undertaking and waive any of the provisions
thereof, but no such amendment or waiver shall be executed and effective unless (i)the
amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in legal requirements, change in law
or change in the identity, nature or status of the Commission or the governmental operations

i conducted by the Commission; (ii) the Disclosure Undertaking, as modified by the amendment
! or waiver, would have been the written undertaking contemplated by Rule 15c2-12 at the time of

original issuance of the 2009B Bonds, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of
Rule 15c2-12; and (iii) the amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of the
Registered Owners of the 2009B Bonds. Evidence of compliance with the foregoing conditions
shall be satisfied by delivery to the Commission of an opinion of counsel having recognized skilli
and experience in the issuance of municipal securities and federal securities law to the effect that

i , the amendment or waiver satisfies the conditions set forth in the preceding sentence. Notice of
any amendment or waiver shall be filed by the Commission with each Repository (presently only
EMMA) and shall be sent to the Registered Owners of the 2009B Bonds.

The Disclosure Undertaking will recite that it is entered into for the benefit of the
Registered Owners from time to time of the 2009B Bonds. For the purposes of the Disclosure
Undertaking, for so long as the 2009B Bonds are registered in the name of DTC or its nominee,
"Registered Owner" shall mean and include the holder of a book-entry credit evidencing an
interest in the 2009B Bonds. Holders of book-entry credits may file their names and addresses
with the Commission for the purposes of receiving notices or giving direction under the
Disclosure Undertaking.

A default under the Disclosure Undertaking shall not be deemed to be a default under the
2009B Bonds or the Indenture, and the sole remedy to enforce the provisions of the Disclosure
Undertaking shall be the right of any Registered Owner, by mandamus, suit, action or proceeding
at law or in equity, to compel the Commission to perform the provisions and covenants contained
in the Disclosure Undertaking.

The Disclosure Undertaking will terminate (1) upon payment or provision for payment in
full of the 2009B Bonds, (2)upon repeal or rescission of Section (b)(5)of Rule 15c2-12, or
(3) upon a final determination that Section (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 is invalid or unenforceable. A
copy of the Disclosure Undertaking is on file at the principal office of the Commission.
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The Commission has complied with all of its continuing disclosure requirements pursuant
to Rule 15c2-12 with respect to its other series of bonds.

RELATIONSHIPS OF CERTAIN PARTIES

Cozen & O'Connor, Co-Bond Counsel, and The Law Offices of Denise Joy Smyler,
Co-Bond Counsel and Stevens & Lee, P.C. counsel to the Underwriters, provide legal services to
the Commission in various matters from time to time. Financial S&Lutions LLC, a wholly
owned affiliate of Stevens & Lee, has provided swap advisory services to the Commission from
time to time. In addition, Morgan Stanley Capital Services Inc., JP Morgan Chase, PNC Bank,
National Association, and Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. have entered into various swap
agreements with the Commission.

UNDERWRITING

Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, on behalf of itself and the other Underwriters shown
on the cover hereof (the "Underwriters"), are expected to enter into a purchase contract (the
"Purchase Contract") with the Commission pursuant to which the Underwriters will jointly and
severally agree, subject to certain customary conditions precedent to closing, to purchase the
2009B Bonds from the Commission at a purchase price equal to $413,976,310.40 representing
the aggregate principal amount of the 2009B Bonds, plus net original issue premium of
$40,864,018.00, less underwriters' discount of $1,897,707.60.

Pursuant to the Purchase Contract, the Underwriters will be obligated to purchase all of
the 2009B Bonds if any of such 2009B Bonds are purchased. The 2009B Bonds may be offered
and sold to certain dealers (including the Underwriters and other dealers depositing such 2009B
Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than such public offering prices, and such public
offering prices may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriters. The Commission has
agreed to be liable to the Underwriters to the extent of all losses, claims, damages and liabilities
arising out of incorrect statements or information contained in this Official Statement or material
omissions therein, except for information furnished by the Underwriters, and with respect to
certain other matters.

Morgan Stanley, parent company of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, an underwriter
of the 2009B Bonds, has entered into a retail brokerage joint venture with Citigroup Inc. As part
of the joint venture, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will distribute mtmicipal securities to
retail investors through the financial advisor network of a new broker-dealer, Morgan Stanley
Smith Barney LLC. This distribution arrangement became effective on June 1, 2009. As part of
this arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will compensate Morgan Stanley Smith
Barney LLC for its selling efforts with respect to the 2009B Bonds.

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., one of the underwriters of the 2009B Bonds, has entered into
an agreement (the "Distribution Agreement") with UBS Financial Services Inc. for the retail
distribution of certain municipal securities offerings at the original issue prices. Pursuant to the
Distribution Agreement (if applicable for this transaction), J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. will share
a portion of its underwriting compensation with respect to the 2009B Bonds with UBS Financial
Services Inc.
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Wells Fargo Securities is the trade name for certain capital markets and investment
banking services of Wells Fargo & Company and its subsidiaries, including Wachovia Bank,
National Association.

RATINGS

Moody's Investors Service, Standard& Poor's Rating Group, and Fitch, Inc., have
assigned their municipal bond ratings of "Aa3", "A+", and "A+", respectively, in each case
based on the long-term underlying municipal bond rating of the Commission for the 2009B
Bonds.

An explanation of the significance of each of such ratings may be obtained from the
rating agency furnishing the same at the following addresses: Moody's Investors Service,
99 Church Street, New York, NY 10007; Standard & Poor's Rating Group, 25 Broadway, New
York, NY 10004; and Fitch, Inc., One State Street Plaza, New York, NY 10007. A rating is not
a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. There is no assurance that such ratings will
continue for any given period of time or that they may not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by
the rating agencies, or either of them, if, in their or its judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any
such downward change in or withdrawal of such ratings, or any of them, may have an adverse
effect on the market price of the 2009B Bonds.

LITIGATION

There is no controversy or litigation of any nature now pending or threatened restraining
or enjoining the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the 2009B Bonds, or in any way
contesting or affecting the validity of the 2009B Bonds or any proceedings of the Commission
taken with respect to the offer or sale thereof, or the pledge or application of any monies or
security provided for the payment of the 2009B Bonds, the existence or powers of the
Commission or the construction of the Commission's capital improvement program.

The Commission is covered by Act No. 152 approved September28, 1978 which
provides for a limited waiver of sovereign immunity by the Commonwealth. Damages for any
loss are limited to $250,000 for each person or $1,000,000 in the aggregate.

There are currently approximately 74 open claims for personal injury and/or property
damage pending against the Commission, none of which individually or in the aggregate are
deemed to expose the Commission to a material risk of loss.

The Commission has received from the Pennsylvania Office of the Attorney General (the
"PaAG") a grand jury document subpoena requesting a broad range of information. The
Commission is cooperating with the PaAG in connection with such request for information. The
Commission also understands that several former employees have appeared before the grand
jury. The nature of the inquiry is unknown at this point. It is not possible for the Commission to
predict what effect this inquiry and its eventual outcome may have.
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LEGAL MATrERS

Certain legal matters will be passed upon by Cozen & O'Connor, Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania and The Law Offices of Denise Joy Smyler, both of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania,
Co-Bond Counsel. A copy of the form of opinion of Co-Bond Counsel which will be delivered
with the 2009B Bonds is set forth in "APPENDIX D - FORM OF OPINION OF CO-BOND

COUNSEL." Certain other legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their
counsel, Stevens & Lee, P.C., Reading, Pennsylvania, and for the Commission by its Chief
Counsel, Doreen A. McCall, Esquire.

FINANCIAL ADVISORS

The Commission has retained Phoenix Capital Partners,LLP, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania,
and NW Financial Group, LLC, Jersey City, New Jersey, as Co-Financial Advisors with respect
to the authorization and issuance of the 2009B Bonds. The Financial Advisors are not obligated
to undertake or assume responsibility for, nor have they undertaken or assumed responsibility
for, an independent verification of the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the information
contained in this Official Statement. Phoenix Capital Partners, LLP is an independent advisory
firm and is not engaged in the business of underwriting, holding or distributing municipal or
other public securities.

TRUSTEE

The Commission has appointed U.S. Bank National Association (successor to First Union
National Bank), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, as the Trustee and Authenticating Agent under the
Indenture. The obligations and duties of the Trustee are as described in the Indenture. The
Trustee has not evaluated the risks, benefits or propriety of any investment in the 2009B Bonds,
and makes no representation, and has reached no conclusions, regarding the validity of the
2009B Bonds, the security therefor, the adequacy of the provisions for payment thereof or the tax
status of the interest on the 2009B Bonds. The Trustee has relied upon the opinion of Co-Bond
Counsel for the validity and tax status of the interest on the 2009B Bonds as well as other matters
set out in that opinion. Furthermore, the Trustee has no oversight responsibility, and is not
accountable, for the use or application by the Commission of any of the 2009B Bonds
authenticated or delivered pursuant to the Indenture or for the use or application of the proceeds
of such 2009B Bonds by the Commission.

Under the terms of the Indenture, the Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss or
damage resulting from any action or inaction taken in good faith in reliance upon an opinion of
counsel and the Trustee is liable only for those damages caused by its gross negligence or willful
misconduct. Under the Indenture, the Trustee is not required to take notice, and is not deemed to
have notice, of any default under the Indenture (except for defaults in payment by the
Commission), unless the Trustee has been specifically notified in writing of such default by the
owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds. All notices or
other instruments required by the Indenture to be delivered to the Trustee must be delivered at
the corporate trust office of the Trustee. In the absence of any such notice, the Trustee may
conclusively assume no Event of Default (as defined in the Indenture) exists, except as expressly
stated in the Indenture. The summary of the Trustee's rights, duties, obligations and immunities
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is not intended to be a complete summary and reference must be made to the Indenture for a
complete statement of the Trustee's rights, duties, obligations and immunities.

TAX MATTERS

Federal Tax Exemption

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") contains provisions
relating to the tax-exempt status of interest on obligations issued by governmental entities which
apply to the 2009B Bonds. These provisions include, but are not limited to, requirements
relating to the use and investment of the proceeds of the 2009B Bonds and the rebate of certain
investment earnings derived from such proceeds to the United States Treasury Department on a
periodic basis. These and other requirements of the Code must be met by the Commission
subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the 2009B Bonds in order for interest thereon to be
and remain excludable from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. The
Commission has covenanted to comply with such requirements.

In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, interest on the 2009B Bonds will be excluded from
gross income for purposes of federal income taxation under existing statutes, regulations, rulings
and eourt decisions. The opinion of Co-Bond Counsel is subject to the condition that the
Commission complies with all applicable federal income tax law requirements that must be
satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the 2009B Bonds in order that interest thereon continues
to be excluded from gross income. The Commission has covenanted to comply with all such
requirements. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements could cause the interest on
the 2009B Bonds to be includable in gross income retroactive to the date of issuance of the
2009B Bonds. Interest on the 2009B Bonds is not treated as an item of tax preference under
Section 57 of the Code for purposes of the individual and corporate alternative minimum taxes;
however, under the Code, to the extent that interest on the Bonds is a component of a corporate
holder's "adjusted current earnings," a portion of that interest may be subject to the corporate
alternative minimum tax.

In addition to the matters addressed above, prospective purchasers of the 2009B Bonds
should be aware that ownership of the 2009B Bonds may result in collateral tax consequences to
certain taxpayers, including, but not limited to, foreign corporations, certain S corporations,
recipients of social security and railroad retirement benefits, financial institutions and property or
casualty insurance companies. Co-Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other
federal tax consequences relating to the 2009B Bonds or the receipt of interest thereon.

Original Issue Discount

The difference between the principal amount of the 2009B Bonds maturing on December
1, 2018 (3.125% coupon), December 1, 2019 (3.125% coupon) and December 1, 2020 (3.500%
coupon) (the "Discount Bonds"), and their initial offering price to the public (excluding bond
houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or
wholesalers), as shown on the inside cover hereof, constitutes original issue discount which is
excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes to the same extent as interest on the
Discount Bonds. Further, such original issue discount accrues actuarially on a constant interest
rate basis over the term of each Discount Bond, and the basis of each Discount Bond acquired at
such initial offering price by an initial purchaser thereof will be increased by the amount of such
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accrued original issue discount. Purchasers of any Discount Bonds, whether at the time of
the initial issuance or subsequent thereto, should consult their own tax advisors with
respect to the tax treatment of original issue discount.

Original Issue Premium

The 2009B Bonds other than the Discount Bonds are hereinafter referred to as the

"Premium Bonds." An amount equal to the excess of the initial public offering price of a
Premium Bond as shown on the inside cover hereof over its stated redemption price at maturity
constitutes premium on such Premium Bond. A purchaser of a Premium Bond must amortize any
premium over such Premium Bond's term using constant yield principles, based on the
purchaser's basis in such Premium Bond as reduced by a corresponding amount, resulting in an
increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes
upon a sale or disposition of such Premium Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the
purchaser's basis is reduced, no federal income tax deduction is allowed. Purchasers of any
Premium Bonds, whether at the time of the initial issuance or subsequent thereto, should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the determination and treatment of
premium.

State Tax Exemption

In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, under the existing laws of the Commonwealth, the
interest on the 2009B Bonds is free from Pennsylvania personal income taxation and
Pennsylvania corporate net income taxation, but such exemption does not extend to gift, estate,
succession or inheritance taxes or any other taxes not levied or assessed directly on the 2009B
Bonds or the interest thereon. Profits, gains or income derived from the sale, exchange or other
disposition of the 2009B Bonds are subject to state and local taxation within the Commonwealth.

• This summary is based on laws, regulations, rulings and decisions now in effect, all of
which may change. Any change could apply retroactively and could affect the continued validity
of this summary. Prospective purchasers should consult their tax advisors about the
consequences of purchasing or holding the 200913 Bonds.

MISCELLANEOUS

The financial data and other information contained herein have been obtained from the
Commission's records, audited financial statements and other sources which are believed to be
reliable. No guarantee is given that any of the assumptions, forecasts or estimates contained
herein will be realized.

The references herein to the Enabling Acts, the 2009B Bonds, the Indenture,
Supplemental Indenture No. 17, the Subordinate Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking are brief summaries of certain provisions thereof. Such summaries do not purport to
be complete and, accordingly, are qualified by reference and are subject to the full texts thereof.

Neither this Official Statement nor any other disclosure in connection with the 2009B
Bonds is to be construed as a contract with the holders of the 2009B Bonds. Any statements
made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not
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expressly so identified, are intended merely as such and not as representations of fact.

PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE COMMISSION

By: /s/Nikolaus H. Grieshaber
Chief Financial Officer
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APPENDIX A

THE PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE COMMISSION
l

i
THE COMMISSION

General

The Commission is an instrumentality of the Commonwealth existing pursuant to an Act
of the General Assembly of Pennsylvania approved July 18, 2007, P. L. 169, No. 44 ("Act 44_')
and various Acts of the General Assembly approved on several dates, including the Act of
May 21, 1937, P. L. 774, Act 211, the Act of May 24, 1945, P. L. 972; the Act of February 26,
1947, P. L. 17, the Act of May 23, 1951, P. L. 335; the Act of August 14, 1951, P. L. 1232; and
the Act of September 30, 1985, P. L. 240, No. 61 ("Act 61"), (collectively, the "Enabling Acts").
Pursuant to the Enabling Acts, the Commission has the power to construct, operate and maintain
the System and to enter into a lease for 1-80 with the Department of Transportation of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("PennOOT'). Its composition, powers, duties, functions,
duration and all other attributes are derived from the Enabling Acts as amended and
supplemented by subsequent legislation. The Enabling Acts may be modified, suspended,
extended or terminated at any time by further legislation.

The Commission is composed of five members, including one ex officio member, the
Secretary of PennDOT. Mr. Allen D. Biehler is the current Secretary. He was recently elected
Chairman of the Commission. Any vacancy in the membership of the Commission (other than
the Secretary of Transportation) must be filled by appointment of the Governor, with the advice
and consent of two thirds of the members of the Pennsylvania Senate.

The present members of the Commission and the dates on which their respective terms
expire are as follows:

Name Position Expiration of Term
Allen D. Biehler Chairman Ex-Officio

Timothy J. Carson Vice Chairman June 24, 2013
J. William Lincoln Secretary/Treasurer June 24, 2013
Pasquale T. Deon, Sr. Commissioner June 30, 2010
A. Michael Pratt Commissioner June 24, 2013

Act 44 extensively revised and modified earlier legislation, added new authorities and
responsibilities and required adoption of a code of conduct for executive level employees, as
well as members of the Commission. As more fully discussed herein, Act 44 obligated the
Commission, among other things, to enter into a lease with PennDOT and to make substantial
lease payments to PennDOT to provide funds for various transportation needs in the
Commonwealth. See particularly "The Pennsylvania Turnpike - Act 44 - Lease between
PennDOT and Commission" and "- Act 44 Payments to PennDOT for Roads, Bridges and
Transit." In addition, Act 44 granted the Commission the right to lease that portion of 1-80
within the Commonwealth and the option to convert such portion of 1-80 to a toll road subject to
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certain federal approvals, as more fully described in "The Pennsylvania Turnpike - Act 44 -
Lease Between PennDOT and Commission" and "- Tolling of 1-80" herein.

The Enabling Acts provide that the Commission shall not be required to pay any taxes or
assessments on any property acquired or used by it. It also provides that turnpike revenue bonds
issued by the Commission shall not be deemed to be a debt of the Commonwealth or a pledge of
the faith and credit of the Commonwealth and that the Commonwealth is not obligated to levy or
pledge any form of taxation or make any appropriation for the payment of such bonds. The
Commission has no taxing power.

Executive Personnel

Joseph G. Brimmeier has been the Chief Executive Officer since February 2003. Prior to
that time, he served as Chief of Staff to former U.S. Representative Ron Klink.

George M. Hatalowich was named the Chief Operating Officer in February 2007. Prior
to that time, he was Contracts Administration Manager from 2003 to 2007, Engineering
Contracts Supervisor and Agreement Supervisor from 1993 to 2003, and Bridge Design Engineer
from 1990 to 1993.

Nikolaus H. Grieshaber was named Chief Financial Officer in June 2008. Prior to that

time, he held positions of Director of Treasury Management and Treasury Manager with the
Commission. Before joining the Commission in 2000, he was a finance manager and portfolio
manager for ADP Capital Management, assistant treasurer for BTR Dunlop Finance, cash
manager for Silo, Inc. and investment analyst for American Life Insurance Company.

Frank J. Kempf, Jr. was named Chief Engineer in July 2007. Prior to that time, he held
positions of Assistant Chief Engineer Design and Chief Bridge Engineer with the Turnpike
Commission. Before joining the Commission in 1986, he worked as a Bridge Design Engineer
for a consulting engineering firm and with PennDOT.

Doreen A. McCall, Esq., has been the Chief Counsel since July 2005. Prior to that time,
she served as Chief Counsel to the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission from
February 2003 to July 2005 and as Deputy General Counsel in the Governor's Office of General
Counsel from April 2000 to January 2003. From September 1996 to April 2000, she was an
Assistant General Counsel and from November 1993 to August 1996, she was a staff attorney in
the Office of Inspector General.

THE PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE

General

The present Pennsylvania Turnpike System (the "'System") is composed of..

• the 359 mile Turnpike Mainline traversing the southern portion of Peunsylvania
from east to west;

• the 110 mile north south section identified as the Northeast Extension;
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• the approximately 16 mile north south connection, known as the Beaver Valley
Expressway, which intersects the Turnpike Mainline in the southwestern portion
of the Commonwealth;

• the approximately 13 mile Amos K. Hutchinson Bypass which adjoins the
Turnpike Mainline near the New Stanton Interchange;

• the 23 mile section of the Mon/Fayette Project and the 8 mile section from the
Pennsylvania/West Virginia border to Fairchance, which is located just south of
Uniontown; and

• the 6 mile Southern Beltway project from PA 60 to US 22 (which was opened to
traffic to bring the System mileage to 535 miles).

The Turnpike Mainline connects with the Ohio Turnpike at its western terminus and with "
the New Jersey Turnpike at its eastern terminus. The Turnpike Mainline commences on the
eastern boundary of Pennsylvania at the Delaware River Bridge which connects the System to
the New Jersey Turnpike. The Turnpike Mainline traverses the state in a westerly direction
generally paralleling the southern border of the state immediately north of Philadelphia and south
of Harrisburg to the vicinity of Somerset. West of Somerset, the highway follows a
northwesterly direction to the northeast of Pittsburgh and to the Ohio state line, south of
Youngstown, Ohio.

The System was constructed prior to development of the National Interstate Highway
System but portions have been designated as Interstate Routes. However, no Federal Highway
Trust Fund monies have been utilized in the construction of the Turnpike Mainline, Northeast
Extension, Beaver Valley Expressway or Amos K. Hutchinson Bypass section of the Turnpike.
The Turnpike Mainline has been designated as Interstate Route 276 between the area where
Interstate Route 95 crosses the Pennsylvania Turnpike System and the Valley Forge Interchange.
The portion of the Turnpike Mainline west of the Valley Forge Interchange to the western
terminus at the Ohio state line has been designated as Interstate Route 76. In addition, the
Turnpike Mainline between the New Stanton and Breezewood Interchanges has been designated
as Interstate Route 70. The Northeast Extension has been designated as Interstate Route 476.

The System was constructed and opened to traffic in sections. The original Turnpike
Mainline segment between Irwin and Carlisle was opened in 1940. Ten years later, in 1950 the
100 mile section between Carlisle and King of Prussia, was completed and opened. After 1950,
construction of new segments of the System occurred at more frequent intervals with the
Turnpike Mainline segment in service as of May, 1956. The initial segment of the Northeast
Extension between the Turnpike Mainline and the temporary interchange just south of the
Lehigh Tunnel was opened in 1955. The final segment, from such interchange to Scranton, was
completed and opened for traffic in November, 1957.

The Delaware River Bridge, which connects the Turnpike Mainline with the New Jersey
Turnpike System, is owned jointly by The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission and the New
Jersey Turnpike Authority.
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The roadway for which the Commission will have operational responsibility will be
greatly expanded if the Commission exercises the right granted to it under Act 44 to lease that
portion of 1-80 (an east west highway in the Interstate Highway System) within the
Commonwealth and receives the necessary federal approvals to convert such portion of 1-80 to a
toll road, as more fully described in "Act 44 - Lease Between PennDOT and Commission" and"
-Tolling of 1-80" herein. However, see "Recent Developments and Future Legislation" for other
possible developments.

Revenue Sources of the Commission

Tolls. All rates, rents, fees, charges, fines and other income derived by the Commission
from the vehicular usage of the System and all rights to receive the same (the "Tolls", as defined
in the attached APPENDIX C) constitute one of the Commission's three principal streams of
revenues. The Tolls are presently pledged to secure the Commission's outstanding turnpike
senior revenue bonds (collectively, the "Senior Revenue Bonds") and the Senior Indenture
Parity Obligations (the Senior Revenue Bonds and the Senior Indenture Parity Obligations,
together with any Senior Indenture Subordinated Indebtedness issued under the Senior Indenture,
herein collectively the "'Senior Indenture Obligations") which will be subject to or may be
issued under the terms of the Senior Indenture. Currently, $2,245,545,000 aggregate principal
amount of Senior Revenue Bonds are Outstanding under the Senior Indenture. Other Senior
Parity Obligations include, among other things, interest rate swaps and reimbursement and
standby bond purchase agreements. There are currently no Senior Subordinated Obligations
Outstanding. The lien of the Subordinate Indenture in and to the Trust Estate is subordinate to
the lien of the Senior Indenture to the Tolls, and therefore all Subordinate Indenture Bonds, and
all other parity obligations issued by the Commission under the Subordinate Indenture are
subordinated to the payment of the Senior Indenture Obligations issued under the Senior
Indenture. The Commission may in the future, under the terms of the Senior Indenture, identify
in writing certain roads, other than the Mainline Section and the Northeast Extension, as not
being part of the System for the purposes of the Senior Indenture. The Tolls are not pledged to
secure the Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds (as defined below), are not pledged to secure the
Registration Fee Revenue Bonds (as defined below), and are not pledged to secure bonds and
other obligations issued under the Subordinate Indenture. The Commission's cash flow from
Tolls is only indirectly subject to the lien of the Subordinate Indenture.

Oil Franchise Tax Revenues. The Commission's second principal stream of revenues
consists of that portion of the Commonwealth's oil franchise tax revenues (the "O//Franchise
Tax Revenues") allocated by statute to the Commission or the holders of the Commission's Oil
Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds (the "O// Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds"), a total of
$814,041,246 of which are issued and outstanding. The Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, the
proceeds of which were spent on portions of the Mon/Fayette Expressway and the Southern
Beltway, are secured solely by Oil Franchise Tax Revenues. The Oil Franchise Tax Revenues
are not pledged to secure any Senior Indenture Obligations (including the 2009B Bonds), any
Subordinate Indenture Bonds or any Registration Fee Revenue Bonds.

Registration Fee Revenues. The Commission's third principal stream of revenues
: consists of that portion of the Commonwealth's vehicle registration fee revenues (the

"'Registration Fee Revenues") allocated by statute to the Commission or the holders of any of
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the Commission's Registration Fee Revenue Bonds (the "Registration Fee Revenue Bonds"), a
total of $442,020,000 of which are issued and outstanding. The Registration Fee Revenue
Bonds, the proceeds of which were spent on portions of the Mon/Fayette Expressway and the
Southern Beltway, are secured by Registration Fee Revenues. Registration Fee Revenue Bonds
are to be paid solely from the Registration Fee Revenues. The Registration Fee Revenues are not
pledged to secure any Senior Indenture Obligations, including the 2009B Bonds, the Subordinate
Indenture Bonds or the Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds.

Neither the Subordinate Indenture Obligations, the Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds nor
the Registration Fee Revenue Bonds are secured by or have any interest in the Trust Estate.

Future Sources. In addition to Additional Subordinate Indenture Bonds, the
Commission may, from time to time, issue other notes and bonds payable from such sources as
may be available so long as the Tolls, the Oil Franchise Tax Revenues securing the Oil Franchise
Tax Revenue Bonds or the Registration Fee Revenues securing the Registration Fee Revenue
Bonds are not pledged to such other notes and bonds or, if pledged, are pledged on a subordinate
basis. The Commission has approved a toll increase in the amount of 25% effective January 4,
2009, and expects to implement annual increases. A toll increase in the amount of 3% will be
effective January 3, 2010. In addition, the Commission anticipates that it will borrow substantial
additional funds through the year 2024 for purposes of funding capital expenditures for the
System and payments under Act 44 and the Lease. Such borrowings are expected to be
undertaken principally under the Senior Indenture and the Subordinate Indenture. Any projected
toll increases may be revised by the Commission if necessary to meet the then existing debt and
operational obligations of the Commission.

The ability of the Commission to repay such borrowings could be adversely affected by
many factors, some of which are beyond the control of the Commission. For example, economic
circumstances which result in significant declines in motor vehicle acquisition or operating cost
increases could adversely affect the number of motor vehicles in use. The cost of fuel could
increase which could adversely affect both the number of motor vehicles using the System and
the mileage that such vehicles travel. Government regulations, such as Clean Air Act
requirements, might also significantly restrict motor vehicle use and therefore diminish Tolls.
See "Toll Schedule and Rates" and "Five Year Financial History" for further information,
including information on recent declines in traffic volume and gross fare revenues. See
"CERTAIN RISK FACTORS" in the forepart of this Official Statement.

In addition, from time to time, legislation is introduced in the Pennsylvania General
Assembly, with respect to Act 44 and otherwise, which may affect the Commission and,
therefore, may affect certain of the assumptions made in the Official Statement. The
Commission cannot predict if any such bills or other legislation will be enacted into law, or how
any such legislation may affect the Commission's ability to pay the 2009B Bonds. See "Recent
Developments and Future Legislation."

Act 44

On July 18, 2007, Pennsylvania Govemor Rendell signed Act44 into law, creating a
"public public partnership" between the Commission and the Pennsylvania Department of
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Transportation ("PennDOT') to provide funding for roads, bridges and transit throughout the
Commonwealth. Under Act 44, a 50 year Lease and Funding Agreement dated as of October 14,
2007 (the "Lease") was entered into by the Commission and PennDOT. Many of the terms of
Act 44 are required to be set forth in the Lease. See "Lease Between PennDOT and
Commission."

Lease Between PennDOT and Commission. On October 14, 2007 the Commission and
PennDOT entered into the Lease as required under the terms of Act 44. The Lease provides for a
lease from PennDOT to the Commission of the portion of I-80 located in the Commonwealth. In
addition, the Lease contains certain provisions set forth in Act 44, including provisions dealing
with the terms and conditions of the conversion of 1-80 into a toll road (the "Conversion"),
subject to the requisite approval of the United States Federal Highway Administration (the
"FHWA"), and the operation, maintenance, repair and improvement of 1-80. The term of the
Lease is 50 years.

The Lease grants the unilateral option to the Commission to effectuate the Conversion at
any time before the third anniversary of the Lease (the "Conversion Perioar'). The Commission
may elect to extend such Conversion Period for three additional one year periods. The
Commission is authorized, with the cooperation of PennDOT, to apply to the FHWA under one
of the federal tolling pilot programs for the right to operate and toll 1-80. See "Tolling of 1-80"
below. In accordance with the requirements of Act 44, the Lease provides that 1-80 will be an
"open tolling" system with no more than ten toll collection points, and service plazas will not be
permitted in the right of way along 1-80. After Conversion, all legal, financial and operational
responsibility for 1-80 would reside with the Commission and all toll revenues subsequently
collected, would be paid to the Commission, except as otherwise agreed by the Commission and
PennDOT. The Commission's submission to FHWA stated that it planned to spend an average
of $250,000,000 per year on capital improvements to 1-80 over a 10 year period if the FHWA
approved tolling of 1-80.

The Lease also commits the Commission to make certain payments to PennDOT,
including $900 million in fiscal year 2010, whether or not Conversion has occurred. Thereafter,
the scheduled annual payments increase by 2.5 percent for each fiscal year for the remainder of
the 50 year term, with certain credits for 1-80 Cost Savings once Conversion has occurred, as
described below. All such cash payments are due in equal quarterly installments. The Lease
further provides that the Commission is obligated to pay all debt service due with respect to the
Guaranteed Bonds, if issued by the Commission; and to pay to PennDOT certain surplus
revenues, as described below. As of the date of this Official Statement, the Commission has paid
PennDOT all quarterly payments required under the Lease in an aggregate amount of
$2,050,000,000 all of which were financed or reimbursed from the proceeds of Bond
Anticipation Notes issued under the Indenture or non guaranteed Subordinated Indenture Bonds.

Upon Conversion, the cash component of the scheduled annual payment obligation will
be offset by an amount equal to $116,985,856 in fiscal year 2011, reflecting cost savings to the
Commonwealth's Motor License Fund if 1-80 becomes a tolled facility ("1-80 Cost Savings").
Under Act 44, the 1-80 Cost Savings credit (which will be pro rated for the fiscal year during
which Conversion occurs) increases by 4 percent for each fiscal year thereafter.
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The Lease prohibits any proceeds of Guaranteed Bonds or revenue from the operation of
1-80 (including tolls charged for the use thereof) from being applied to the portions of the
payment obligations to PennDOT required to be deposited into the Public Transportation Trust
Fund for mass transit.

If the Conversion does not occur by October 14, 2010 (as such date may be extended at
the option of the Commission for up to three (3) one year extension periods), Act 44 provides
that the scheduled annual payment obligation will be reduced to $450 million per fiscal year, and
the obligation to pay the annual surplus amount will terminate.

The Commission is required by the terms of the Lease to fix and adjust tolls at levels that
will generate revenues (together with other available moneys) sufficient to pay, among other
things, amounts to PennDOT pursuant to the Lease when due and other obligations of the
Commission.

Act 44 Payments to PennDOT for Roads, Bridges and Transit. Act 44 provides that all
required payments under the Lease or as required by Act 44 shall be subordinate obligations of
the Commission payable solely from the General Reserve Fund after meeting all other
Commission requirements pursuant to any financial documents, financial covenants, liquidity
policies or agreements in effect at the Commission. Of the Commission's payments to
PennDOT, the Lease provides that $450 million shall be deposited in the Motor License Fund to
be available for roads and bridges in fiscal year 2007-08, $500 million in fiscal year 2008-09 and
$500 million in fiscal year 2009-10. Thereafter, assuming Conversion occurs, the amount,
adjusted for any 1-80 Cost Savings, shall increase by 2.5% for each successive fiscal year for the
remainder of the 50 year term of the Lease. If Conversion does not occur prior to the end of the
Conversion Period, such payments shall drop to $200 million for each fiscal year thereafter. The
balance of the annual payments under the Lease shall be deposited into the Public Transportation
Trust Fund for distribution to Pennsylvania's local and regional public transportation agencies
for operating and capital purposes. These amounts to be so deposited pursuant to the Lease are
$300 million in fiscal year 2007-08, $350 million in fiscal year 2008-09 and $400 million in
fiscal year 2009-10, which amount shall increase by 2.5% for each fiscal year thereafter,
assuming Conversion occurs. If Conversion does not occur, such payments will reduce to $250
million annually. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no portion of the payments of the Commission
to be deposited into the Public Transportation Trust Fund may be made with the revenues
generated by the Commission from the operation of 1-80 or from the proceeds of the Guaranteed
Bonds. The first ten payments, in the aggregate amount of $2,050,000,000 were all timely made
as required under Act 44. The $225 million dollar payment due on July 31, 2009 was financed
with a portion of the proceeds of the Commission's $856,735,000 Turnpike Subordinate
Revenue Bonds, Series B of 2009 (the "'2009B Subordinate Bonds") issued in July of 2009 and
a portion of the proceeds of the Commission's $99,998,204 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue
Bonds, Series C of 2009 (the "2009C Subordinate Bonds") issued in July of 2009. The $225
million payment due October 31, 2009 was financed with a portion of the proceeds of the
Commission's $524,749,558.45 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series D of 2009 (the
"2009D Subordinate Bonds") and Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series E of 2009 (the
"2009E Subordinate Bonds") issued in October of 2000. There are currently $2,574,772,763
Subordinate Bonds outstanding under the Subordinate Indenture.
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Upon the occurrence of the Conversion, the Commission is additionally committed under
Act 44 to make annual surplus payments (the "Annual Surplus Paymenf') of the General
Reserve Fund Surplus available at the end of each fiscal year, according to a certificate of the
Auditor General. The General Reserve Fund Surplus is defined in Act 44 as the amount which
(i) is certified by the Auditor General as existing in the Commission's General Reserve Fund on
the last day of the fiscal year of the Commission, and (ii) is not required to be retained in the
General Reserve Fund pursuant to any financial documents, financial covenants, insurance
policies, liquidity policies or agreements in effect at the Commission, including the Senior
Indenture and the Subordinate Indenture. Currently, the Lease and Act 44 are inconsistent on the
beginning date of the Annual Surplus Payment. The Commission anticipates amending the
Lease to match the terms of Act 44.

If Conversion does not occur by the end of the Conversion Period, the Commission's
obligation to make payments after the end of the Conversion Period is $450 million annually
over the term of the Lease, with $200 million to be deposited in the Motor License Fund to be
available for roads and bridges and $250 million to be deposited in the Public Transportation
Trust Fund annually to be available for transit.

Issuance of Bands; Commission Payments. Under the Enabling Acts, including Act 44,
the Commission is authorized and empowered, among other things, to issue turnpike revenue
bonds, notes or other obligations (either senior on a parity basis or subordinate) to pay
(i) pursuant to the Lease, the costs of construction, reconstructing, widening, expanding or
extending 1-80 or any other costs of 1-80 and the System, (ii) certain amounts to PennDOT
pursuant to the Lease for purposes of funding PennDOT highway, road and bridge construction
and maintenance programs in the Commonwealth, (iii) costs of improvements to the System, and
(iv) certain amounts into a Public Transportation Trust Fund pursuant to the Lease to be used
exclusively for mass transit programs (provided that, pursuant to the terms of the Lease, the
proceeds of any Special Revenue Bonds (also referred to herein and in the Subordinate Indenture
as Guaranteed Bonds) may not be applied for payments to mass transit programs).

The bonds authorized to be issued by the Commission under Act 44, after execution of
the Lease, include up to $5 billion of Special Revenue Bonds, as described below. Proceeds of
such bonds may be applied toward the satisfaction of the Commission's scheduled annual
payment obligations under the Lease and Act 44, except, pursuant to the terms of the Lease, that
portion of the annual payment obligations to be deposited in the Public Transportation Trust
Fund. The Commission presently intends any such long term bonds to be issued under the
Subordinate Indenture and paid solely from Commission Payments (and therefore to be
subordinate to the Senior Indenture Obligations issued under the Senior Indenture). See
"Statutory Limitations on the lncurrence of Guaranteed Bonds" below.

Pursuant to the terms of the Subordinate Indenture, the Commission Covenanted, after
payment of all required debt service on all Senior Indenture Obligations and subject to the
provisions of the Senior Indenture, to pay to the Subordinate Trustee, and it instructed the Senior
Trustee to pay to the Subordinate Trustee, out of the General Reserve Fund established under the

' Senior Indenture, such amounts as are required by the Subordinate Indenture, by a supplemental
indenture to the Subordinate Indenture or by a parity swap agreement to pay, at the times

i;
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specified, debt service on all outstanding Subordinate Indenture Bonds and the parity obligations
under the Subordinate Indenture.

Accordingly, the Commission shall instruct and furnish a debt service schedule to the
Senior Trustee providing for the payment to the Subordinate Trustee out of available funds held
in the General Reserve Fund the amount from time to time necessary to satisfy all required
deposits under the Subordinate Indenture to the Commission Payments Fund and to pay debt
service on the outstanding Subordinate Indenture Bonds, the parity obligations and all other
payments required from time to time under the Subordinate Indenture and in a supplemental
indenture to the Subordinate Indenture.

The Guaranteed Bonds will have a subordinate right to payment from Commission
Payments to the rights of payment in favor of the holders of the Revenue Bonds issued under the
Subordinate Indenture.

The Commission may, from time to time, issue additional bonds, including Revenue
Bonds and Special Revenue Bonds, to help satisfy its payment obligations under Act 44. Such
obligations, if issued, are anticipated to be issued on a subordinate basis to the Senior Revenue
Bonds issued under the Senior Indenture, but will be parity obligations of the outstanding
Subordinate Bonds issued under the Subordinate Indenture. APPENDIX E sets forth the

existing debt service schedule for the Senior Indenture Bonds.

Statutory Limitations on the Incurrence of Guaranteed Bonds. Under Act 44, the
Commission is authorized to issue, by resolution, Special Revenue Bonds (as defined in §9511.2
of Act 44) up to an aggregate principal amount of $5 billion, exclusive of original issue discount,
for the purpose of paying bond related expenses and costs of PeunDOT, including the costs of
highway, road, tunnel and bridge construction, renovation and expansion, including acquisition
of land, rights, machinery and equipment and certain finance charges relating thereto, public
transportation systems, planning, engineering, administrative and other expenses, and debt
service. In addition, no more than $600 million in aggregate principal amount of such Special
Revenue Bonds, exclusive of original issue discount, may be issued in any calendar year. No
such bond may be issued unless the Lease is in effect, and no such bond may be outstanding
beyond the stated term of the Lease at the time of issuance. Special Revenue Refunding Bonds
(as defined in §9511.2 Act 44) shall not be deemed to count against the total or annual maximum
issuance volume under Act 44. No Guaranteed Bonds have been issued nor are being issued
contemporaneously with the 2009B Bonds.

Should the Commission issue Guaranteed Bonds in the future and then fail to timely pay
the debt service on such Guaranteed Bonds, the Subordinate Trustee shall proceed under the
terms of Act 44 to notify PennDOT of such default, and PennDOT shall give notice to the
Treasurer of the Commonwealth of such deficiency and to request the payment of funds
necessary to cure such deficiency only from funds available for such purpose in the Motor
License Fund. The Commonwealth has no obligation to appropriate any funds, other than
available funds on deposit in the Motor License Fund, for the payment of any such Guaranteed
Bonds. The Commission is obligated pursuant to the Lease to reimburse the Treasurer of the
Commonwealth for any amounts withdrawn from the Motor License Fund in order to cure a
default in the payment by the Commission with respect to the annual debt service on any such
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Guaranteed Bonds. This reimbursement obligation is subject and junior to the payment
obligations of the Commission under the Guaranteed Bonds.

Tolling of 1-80. 1-80 currently is part of the National Interstate Highway System,
traversing northern Pennsylvania for approximately 311 miles from the Delaware Water Gap
Bridge over the Delaware River to the Ohio Pennsylvania state line. 1-80, including the portion
located in Pennsylvania, is the second longest Interstate Highway route in the United States,
connecting downtown San Francisco, California with Teaneck, New Jersey. Pursuant to Act 44,
the Commission, in consultation with PennDOT, is authorized to apply, and has applied, to the
U.S. Department of Transportation for permission to convert the portion of 1-80 which is in
Pennsylvania to a toll road.

Act 44 and the Lease require the Secretary to cooperate with the Commission on the
Conversion application by ensuring that all information required for the application is made
available to the Commission as soon as practicable.

Act 44 grants the Commission the option, at any time before the third anniversary of the
Lease, to convert 1-80 to a toll road, and thereafter to assume legal, financial and operational
responsibility for 1-80. The Conversion Period may be extended unilaterally by the Commission
for three one year periods.

Under Act 44, the Commission may give PennDOT notice of the Commission's intent to
exercise its option to convert 1-80 to a toll road ("Conversion Notice") at any time prior to the
expiration of the Conversion Period. On the date the Conversion is effective as set forth in the
Conversion Notice (the "'Conversion Date"), the Commission shall receive an annual credit
toward its payment obligations under Act 44 for the 1-80 operational cost savings (prorated for
the fiscal year during which the Conversion occurs), starting at $116,985,856 for fiscal year
2011, and increasing by 4 percent for each fiscal year after the fiscal year in which the
Conversion Date occurs.

Act 44 authorizes an open tolling system with no more than ten toll collection points.
The Commission may contract with PennDOT for any portion of the maintenance of 1-80 at cost
levels agreed to by PennDOT and the Commission. Service plazas are not permitted in the right
of way along 1-80.

The Commission submitted its Preliminary Expression of Interest to the FHWA in
August 2007, requesting tolling authority for that portion of 1-80 traversing the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania. By a letter dated September 26, 2007, the FHWA replied to the Commission
stating that the Interstate System Reconstruction and Rehabilitation Pilot Program (the "Pilot
lh,ogram") is the appropriate tolling pilot program under which the Commission should apply.
The Commission submitted to FHWA a joint application with PennDOT on October 13, 2007.
On October 15, 2007, Governor Rendell sent a letter supporting the application to United States
Department of Transportation Secretary Mary Peters. The FHWA responded to the application
with a request for additional information on December 12, 2007. Among FHWA's requests were
a clearer identification of the rehabilitation, reconstruction and improvement projects currently
being planned for 1-80 by the Commission after the Conversion Date, further information of
PennDOT's historic funding strategy for 1-80, and the completion of consultative meetings held

A-10



with the metropolitan and mml planning organization through which 1-80 passes. The
Commission and PennDOT replied to the FHWA on December 20, 2007, and they jointly
acknowledged the request for additional information and confirmed their intent to continue
seeking federal approval for the Conversion. Representatives of the Commission and PennDOT
met with FHWA staff on two occasions during the first half of 2008 to discuss the additional
information to be included in the updated application. As a result of these discussions, an
amended Phase 1 application, along with a letter of support from Governor Rendell, was
submitted to FHWA on July 22, 2008, and certain supplemental information was furnished to
FHWA on August 29, 2008.

On September 11, 2008, FHWA sent the Commission and PennDOT a letter stating that
it could not approve the 1-80 application at that time, because of insufficient information
concerning how rental payments for 1-80 were determined and whether they are related to the
true costs of the leasehold interest. More specifically, FHWA stated that, while it considers a
lease payment to a lessor such as PennDOT to be a permitted use of toll revenues, because the
FHWA has no information in the form of competitive bids or investment grade traffic and
revenue studies stating that the lease payments are related to the market based costs of the 1-80
leasehold interest, the FHWA could not determine that such lease payments are a cost necessary
for the proper operation of 1-80. The Commission submitted additional supplemental
information to the FHWA in support of its 1-80 application on October 29, 2009.

If the Commission decides not to pursue further the tolling of 1-80 and does not extend
the Conversion Period, the Conversion Period will lapse on October 14, 2010. In such event, the
Commission believes that System revenues should enable it to satisfy its reduced payment
obligations as set forth in Act 44 without reliance on any 1-80 toll revenues. There can be no
assurance that the application will ultimately be approved by FHWA or that a slot in the Pilot
Program will be available for the Commonwealth. See "Recent Developments and Future
Legislation."

If the application for Conversion is ultimately approved, PennDOT and the Commission
will enter into an agreement with the federal government. The terms of such conversion
agreement have not been drafted and there can be no assurance that the proceeds of toll revenue
from 1-80 may be used to pay some or any portion of the future lease payments due to PerlnDOT
under the Lease. In any event, even if the application for Conversion is ultimately approved, the
Commission retains the right to complete or abandon the Conversion.

If 1-80 is not tolled and no other funding is substituted, then Act 44 funding of highways
and transit would drop from $900 million annually to $450 million annually.

Rules Relating to Governance and AccountabiliOp Under Act 44. Act 44 sets forth
certain rules relating to governance and accountability of the Commission, including, but not
limited to, the filing of an annual financial plan of the Commission with the Pennsylvania
Secretary of the Budget no later than June 1 of each year (the "Financial Plan"), providing
updates to the Chairman and Minority Chairman of the Pennsylvania House and Senate
Transportation Committees regarding the conversion of 1-80, conducting traffic studies to
quantify diversion of traffic from 1-80 to other roadways as a result of the Conversion,
conducting an audit by the Auditor General every four years to be paid for by the Commission
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and the adoption by the Commission of a comprehensive code of conduct for Commissioners and
executive level employees. The Commission completed its Financial Plan for the 2010 fiscal
year and delivered it to the Secretary of the Budget by the June 1 deadline. A complete copy of
the Financial Plan can be obtained by contacting the Commission. See discussion in the forepart
of the Official Statement under "Pennsylvania Turnpike System - Act 44 Financial Plan."

Recent Developments and Future Legislation

From time to time, legislation is introduced in the Pennsylvania General Assembly and
Congress which may affect the Commission and, therefore, may affect certain of the assumptions
made in the Official Statement. The Commission cannot predict if any such bills or other
legislation will be enacted into law, or how any such legislation may affect the Commission's
ability to pay the 2009B Bonds.

State Legislation. At the state level, Representative Scott E. Hutchinson announced his
intention to introduce legislation in the Pennsylvania General Assembly which will require the
Commission to maintain its scheduled annual payments to PennDot pursuant to Act 44 through
Fiscal Year 2013-2014 with an annual cost of living increase of 2.5%. He has also introduced a
bill which would have PennDot assume all powers and duties of the Commission that relate to
operation, maintenance, construction and reconstruction of the Pennsylvania Turnpike and
related highways and receive all tolls and other money otherwise payable to the Commission,
transfer all of the Commission's property to PennDot and dissolve the Commission; such bill has
been referred to the Transportation Committee. Representative Mike Vereb has announced that
he will introduce a similar bill.

Federal Legislation. At the federal level, United States Representatives whose districts
are traversed by 1-80 have urged the U.S. Secretary of Transportation not to approve any
application from the Commission and PennDOT to convert 1-80 to a toll road.

On February 13, 2009, Congressman Glenn Thompson from the 5th District of
Pennsylvania, introduced H.R. 1071 which would prohibit the imposition and collection of tolls
on existing interstate highways constructed with federal funds. The legislation was referred to
the House Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure and the House Subcommittee on
Highway and Transit. No other reported action has been taken on this legislation.

On May 21, 2009, Senator Kay Bailey Hutchison, R TX, introduced Senate Bill 1115
which would prohibit the imposition of any tolls on any segment of highway constructed with
federal funds where construction is complete, the highway is in active operation, and is not
tolled. The legislation has been referred to the Committee on Environment and Public Works.

In June, 2009, James O. Oberstar, Chairman of the U.S. House of Representatives
Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure, presented the Surface Transportation
Authorization Act of 2009 to the Subcommittee on Highways and Transit staff for markup. This

I bill (which has not yet been assigned a number but can be found at
http://transportation.house.gov.medicalfile/highways/HPP/OBERST 044 xml.pdf) would create
new federal oversight for projects such as the tolling of Federal highways by establishing an
Office of Public Benefit in the Federal Highway Administration and would have to approve

A-12



tolling of 1-80. The tolling ofl-80 would be subject to the approval of this proposed office if this
bill becomes law.

In the future, additional legislation may be introduced in the U.S. Congress that could
adversely affect the conversion or the tolling of 1-80.

Interchanges and Service Areas

The Pennsylvania Turnpike System has a total of 57 interchanges which connect it with
major arteries and population centers in its 531 mile traffic corridor. Thirty of the interchanges
are located on the Turnpike Mainline, including Turnpike Mainline barriers at the New Jersey
and Ohio state lines, and 10 interchanges are situated on the Northeast Extension. The additional
17 interchanges are located on the 3 extensions previously noted. There are currently 19 service
plazas along the Pennsylvania Turnpike System providing gasoline and diesel fuel, other
automotive supplies and services and restaurant services. The Pennsylvania Turnpike
Commission has negotiated long term leases with HMSHost Restaurants, LLC and Sunoco, Inc.
to design, reconstruct, finance, operate and maintain the Commission's Service Plazas. The two
companies are expected to invest approximately $190 million in the project over a five year
period, at no cost to the Commission.

If 1-80 is convened to a toll road, Act 44 prohibits service plazas in the right of way and
mandates the adoption of an open tolling system of no more than 10 toll collection points.

Toll Schedule and Rates

The current System generally employs a closed or ticket system method for toll
collection. Tolls are determined on the basis of the length of the trip and vehicle class. There
are 9 vehicle classes determined either by axles or, in the case of commercial vehicles, by axles
and weight. Historically, all drivers were issued a ticket upon entering the System and were
required to surrender the ticket and pay the appropriate toll upon exiting. Electronic toll
collection methods, however, have been implemented throughout the System. See "THE
PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE - E-ZPass Lanes."

Between 1957 and 2008, the Commission implemented only 5 revisions in its toll
schedule, effective on September 1, 1969, August 1, 1978, January 2, 1987, June 1, 1991 and
August 1, 2004. On August 1, 2004, Turnpike tolls increased by 1.8 cents per mile for passenger
vehicles from 4.1 to 5.9 cents per mile. Commercial vehicles had an average increase of 5.3
cents per mile. Such toll increase was consistent with the rate of inflation over the 13 years since
the Commission's prior toll increase in 1991. All revenue generated by such toll increase have
been used to fund capital improvements to the Turnpike's roads, tunnels and other system
upgrades. On July 22, 2008, the Commission approved a toll increase in the amount of 25%
which became effective on January 4, 2009, with the expectation that it would implement annual
increases thereafter. The Commission approved a toll increase in the amount of 3% which will
become effective on January 3, 2010. Such toll increase will be used to provide funds for
payments under the Lease and other Act 44 purposes. In addition, the Commission anticipates
that it will borrow substantial additional funds in the future.
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The following Table I illustrates the current tolls and per mile rates applicable to each
vehicle class for a trip on the Mainline Section from Interchange 1 through Interchange 359.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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TABLE I
Current Tolls and Per Mile Rates for a Mainline

Roadway East - West Complete Trip
(Delaware River Bridge - Warrendale (Ticket System))

Vehicle Toll Gross Vehicle Weight Per Mile
Class (Thousand Pound) Current Toll Rate

1 1-7 $24.70 $0.075
2 7-15 36.25 0.110
3 15-19 45.00 0.137
4 19-30 52.50 0.160
5 30-45 73.75 0.224
6 45-62 93.75 0.285
7 62-80 133.75 0.407
8 80-100 175.00 0.532
9 Over 100 992.00 3.015

Note: The above rates represent an "East West" trip for the ticket system toll rate between
Warrendale (#30) and the Delaware River Bridge (#359) interchanges. The Gateway
Barrier toll rate is based on five axle classes and is computed separately from the ticket
system. The 2009 toll rate is $3.75 for the first two axles and $3.75 for each additional
axle. The rates do not increase above six axles.

Act 44 requires the Commission to fix toll rates such that revenues from tolls and other
sources to the Commission are sufficient to pay the cost of the System's operation, construction,
expansion and maintenance, all Commission obligations and interest thereon, sinking fund
requirements of the Commission, other requirements in any trust indentures, notes or resolutions,
payments to the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation under the Lease and any repayment
to the Federal Government with respect to the conversion of 1-80 to a toll road.

If the Commission ultimately receives approval from the FHWA to convert 1-80 to a toll
road, additional toll revenues could be generated from 1-80. However, under the provisions of the
Pilot Program, the Commission believes that 1-80's financial operations would need to be
separate from those of the System. If an application for conversion is ultimately approved,
PennDOT and the Commission will enter into an agreement with the federal government
concerning the operation of 1-80, including the use of the proceeds of toll revenue from 1-80.
There can be no assurance that such agreement will authorize or permit the use of the proceeds
of toll revenue from 1-80 to pay some or any portion of the future payments due to PennDOT
under the Lease. See "Act 44 - Tolling of 1-80" above.

Five Year Financial History

The following tables II and Ill summarize the financial history of the System for the five
fiscal years from 2005 to 2009. The financial statements are a combination of cash basis
financial statements with certain accruals included. Tables II and III should be read in

conjunction with the financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted
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accounting principles and related notes included in "APPENDIX B - AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS: 2009 AND 2008."

TABLE H

: Number of Vehicles and Fare Revenues - Summarized by Fare Classification
(000's Omitted)

Year Number of Vehicles Fare Revenues
Ended Net Fare

May31: Passenger Commercial Total Passenger Commercial Total Discount Revenues
2005 163,316 25,109 188,425 $309,032 $252,097 $561,129 $15,971 $545,158

2006 160,421 25,403 185,824 $321,268 $286,140 $607,408 $18,771 $588,637

2007 160,107 25,316 185,423 $322,781 $294,836 $617,617 $24,975 $592,642

2008 164,097 25,455 189,552 $327,761 $291,389 $619,150 $20,224 $598,926
2009 162,637 23,582 186,219 $354,642 $283,603 $638,245 $22,640 $615,605

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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TABLE HI

Summary of SystemRevenues and Operating Expenditures Before Interest and Other
Charges t

(000's Omitted)
Years Ended May 31

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Revenues

Net Toll Revenues $545,158 $588,637 $592,642 $598,926 $615,605
Concession Revenues 10,923 8,486 3,877 3,212 3,087

Interest lncome (non bond proceeds) 7,139 8,400 13,142 13,566 9,903
Miscellaneous 15,393 12,484 11,925 17,699 14,855

Total Revenues $578,613 $618,007 $621,586 $633,403 $643,450

Operating Expenditures
Turnpike Patrol $25,278 $28,965 $30,735 $31,977 $34,127
General & Administrative 15,247 15,438 16,670 19,870 18,492
Normal Maintenance 51,226 53,095 57,110 63,653 61,327

Employee Benefits & Other Misc. 38,940 41,833 46,112 65,865 79,563
Items

Fare Collection 54,681 55,149 55,007 60,348 60,317
Traffic Services, Safety &
Communications 33,396 37,339 37.872 37.295 39.008

Total Operating Expenditures $218,768 $231,819 $243,506 $279,008 $292,834

Revenues less Operating $359,845 $386,188 $378,080 $354,395 $350,616
Expenditures
Annual Senior Debt Service $88,112 $97,654 $111,543 $126,058 $159,756
Requirement
Coverage Ratio 4.08 3.95 3.39 2.81 2.19

Budget Process

The Commission's Finance Department develops preliminary budget information for all
Commission departments. This information is provided to each of the respective departments for
their review and to enable them to make any proposed revisions for their budget requests. The
information is then returned to the Finance Department and a Commission wide preliminary
budget is prepared. This budget is reviewed by senior management and, in cooperation with the
respective departments, revisions are made when necessary to conform to the annual financial
plan. The final recommended budget is then presented to the Commission for formal approval.

In addition, Act 44 requires the Auditor General of the Commonwealth to conduct an
audit of the accounts of the Commission and to review its performance, procedures, operating
budget, capital budget and debt every four years. Act 44 also requires the Commission to
prepare and submit to the Secretary of the Budget a financial plan no later than June 1 of each
year for the ensuing Fiscal Year, describing its proposed operating and capital expenditures,
borrowings, liquidity and other financial management covenants and policies, estimated toll rates

This summary of revenues and operating expenditures is not intended to present results of operations in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
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and all other revenues and expenses. The purpose of the financial plan is to demonstrate that the
Commission's operation in accordance with the plan can be reasonably anticipated to have
unencumbered funds sufficient to make all payments due to the PennDOT under Act 44 and the
Lease in the upcoming year after all other Commission Obligations have been met. Any
deviations and the causes therefor in prior year plans must be explained.

Financial Policies and Guidelines

The Commission originally adopted its first Investment Policy and Guideline for the
investment of cash assets on June 6, 1997. The Commission approved an amendment to the
Investment Policy effective November 7, 2002 that permitted the use of additional types of
eligible securities consistent with the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture entered into in
2001. The policy statements set forth the purpose, objectives, and guidelines for eligible
securities, performance benchmarks, periodic reviews and amendments with respect to
investments. -(See Note 4, "Cash and Investments - Concentration of Credit Risk" in the Notes
to Financial Statements (Years Ended May 31, 2009 and 2008) in APPENDIX B for a discussion
of the Commission's concentration of credit risk to particular issuers.

The Commission adopted three Financial Policies on April 20, 2004: a Debt Management
Policy, an Interest Rate Swap Management Policy and a Liquidity Standard Policy. These
financial management policies were developed in recognition of the increasing financial
sophistication of the Commission with respect to its debt structure and to provide guidance
governing the issuance, management, ongoing evaluation and reporting of all debt obligations.

The Commission's Interest Rate Swap Management Policy ("Swap Policy") establishes
guidelines for the use and management of all interest rate management agreements, including,
but not limited to, interest rate swaps, swap options, caps, collars and floors (collectively
"Swaps" or "Agreements") incurred in connection with the incurrence of debt. The Commission
may change the Swap Policy in its sole discretion.

The Swap Policy authorizes the Commission to use Swaps to hedge interest rate
movement, basis risk and other risks, to lock in a fixed rate or, alternatively, to create synthetic
variable rate debt. Swaps may also be used to produce interest rate savings, limit or hedge
variable rate payments, alter the pattern of debt service payments, manage exposure to changing
market conditions in advance of anticipated bond issues (through the use of anticipatory hedging
instruments) or for asset/liability matching purposes. Key elements of the Swap Policy include

the following:
I

Swap Caunte_atCies - Credit CtqgeKa. The Commission will make its best efforts to
work with qualified Swap counterparties that have a general credit rating of: (i) at least "A3" or
"A °' by two of the nationally recognized rating agencies and not rated lower than "A3" or "A"
by any nationally recognized rating agency, or (ii) have a "non terminating" "AAA" subsidiary

: as rated by at least one nationally recognized credit rating agency.

Term andNotionalAmount. For Swaps tied to an issued series of bonds, the term of the
Swap agreement shall not extend beyond the final maturity date of the related bonds. The total
net notional amount of all Swaps related to a bond issue should not exceed the amount of
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outstanding bonds. In calculating the net notional amount, netting credit shall be given to any
Swaps that offset each other for a specific bond transaction.

SecudO, and Source of Repayment. The Commission may use the same security and
source of repayment (pledged revenues) for Swaps as is used for the bonds that are hedged by
the Swap, if any, but shall consider the economic costs and benefits of subordinating the
Commission's payments and/or termination payment under the Swap. The Commission shall
consult with Bond Counsel regarding the legal requirements associated with making the
payments under the Swap on a parity or non parity basis with outstanding Commission debt.

tqohibitedAgreements. The Commission will not use Agreements that:

Are speculative or create extraordinary leverage as risk;

Lack adequate liquidity to terminate without incurring a significant bid/ask
spread; or

Provide insufficient price transparency to allow reasonable valuation.

Annual Snap Repm't. The Commission's Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with
the Commission's Financial Advisor, Swap Advisor and Bond Counsel, will evaluate the risks
associated with outstanding Swaps at least annually and provide to the senior executives and the
Commissioners a written report of the findings based upon criteria set forth in the Swap Policy.

Disclosure and Financial Reporting. The Commission will ensure that there is full and
complete disclosure of all Swaps to rating agencies and in disclosure documents. Disclosure in
marketing documents, including Bond offering documents, shall provide a clear summary of the
special risks involved with Swaps and any potential exposure to interest rate volatility or
unusually large and rapid changes in market value. With respect to its financial statements, the
Commission will adhere to the guidelines for the financial reporting of Swaps, as set forth by the
Government Accounting Standards Board or other applicable regulatory agencies.

The Commission has a number of interest rate exchange agreements with respect to
certain series of the Senior Revenue Bonds as well as with respect to certain series of its
Registration Fee Revenue Bonds and Oil Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds. See "APPENDIX B -
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2009 AND 2008." As of December 9, 2009, the
aggregate market value of such Swaps to the counterparties thereto from the Commission was
calculated to be approximately $57,960,243.

There are a number of risks associated with Swaps that could affect the value of the
Swaps, the ability of the Commission to accomplish its objectives in entering into the Swaps and
the ability of the Commission to meet its obligations under the Swaps. These risks include,
among others, the following: eounterparty risk - the failure of the counter-party to make required
payments; credit risk - the occurrence of an event modifying the credit rating of the Commission
or its counterparty; termination risk - the need to terminate the transaction in a market that
dictates a termination payment by the Commission; tax risk - the risk created by potential tax
events that could affect Swap payments; and basis risk - the mismatch between actual variable
rate debt service and variable rate indices used to determine Swap payments. The Commission
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actively monitors the degree of risk and exposure associated with the Swaps to which it is a party
but can offer no assurances that compliance with its Swap Policy will prevent the Commission
from suffering adverse financial consequences as a result of these transactions.

E-ZPass Lanes

The Commission has installed E-ZPass, a form of electronic toll collection, throughout
the System. Not only has E-ZPass enhanced safety and convenience for users of the System, the
technology has improved traffic flow and reduced congestion at the System's busiest
interchanges, especially in southeastern Pennsylvania. Express E-ZPass lanes have been
constructed at three interchanges and permit E-ZPass customers to travel through the toll plaza at
highway speeds. In addition, E-ZPass customers traveling in twelve other states that have
implemented E-ZPass technology are able to use E-ZPass. Currently, E-ZPass is available on the
entire Turnpike system, including the western extensions. The Commission has not experienced
material problems in connection with the installation or operation of the E-ZPass system.

To help ensure, protect and preserve the collection of toll revenue due to the
Commission, a violation enforcement system (VES) has been installed at all interchanges where
E-ZPass has been installed to identify violators (customers who travel through E-ZPass lanes and
do not have E-ZPass) and motorists with problem tags that result in no reads. VES enables the
Commission to collect appropriate tolls and other additional fees relating to the evasion of fares
through E-ZPass lanes and other causes of nonpayment. Act 44 includes new enforcement
provisions for E-ZPass, including, among other things, certain evidentiary presumptions with
respect to whether the operator of a vehicle using E-ZPass fails to pay the prescribed toll,
procedures for notifying the vehicle operator of the violation charged, evidentiary standards for
determining ifa violation occurred and civil liability amounts of the vehicle owner for violations.

The Commission's annual revenues from E-ZPass drivers have increased to

$389,462,401 dt_ring the fiscal year ending May 31, 2009 from $346,993,675 for the fiscal year
ending May 31, 2008. The Commission's annual revenue from ticketed drivers (i.e. those not
using E-ZPass) decreased to $248,782,278 from $254,436,050 during the same period. The
Commission expects that E-ZPass usage will continue to increase.

The Commission is a member of the E-ZPass Interagency Group (lAG), a coalition of toll
authorities throughout the United States. The Interagency Group includes the following
agencies: Peace Bridge Authority; Burlington County Bridge Commission; Skyway Concession
Company LLC (Chicago Skyway); Delaware Department of Transportation; Delaware River and
Bay Authority; Delaware River Joint Toll Bridge Commission; Delaware River Port Authority;
Illinois State Toll Highway Authority; ITR Concession Company (Indiana Turnpike); Maine
Turnpike Authority; Maryland Transportation Authority; Massachusetts Turnpike Authority;
Massachusetts Port Authority; Metropolitan Transportation Authority Bridges & Tunnels; New
Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Turnpikes; New Jersey Turnpike Authority;
New York State Bridge Authority; New York State Thruway Authority; Port Authority of New
York and New Jersey; Rhode Island Turnpike and Bridge Authority; South Jersey Transportation
Authority; Virginia Department of Transportation; and West Virginia Parkways Authority. The
Ohio Tumpike Commission recently joined and implemented its E-ZPass system on October 1,
2009.
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New highway construction projects, such as the Mon/Fayette Expressway and Southern
Beltway, are being designed and built to be compatible with the introduction of the E-ZPass
system. The installation of the E-ZPass system has required the incorporation of innovative
technologies into a single toll system that uses hardware and software adaptable to future
technologies. The Commission has a contract, extending through 2009, with TransCore
Company for the design, installation and maintenance of the E-ZPass system software and
hardware and the operation of the E-ZPass Customer Service and Violations Processing Centers.
The E-ZPass system implementation is a major component of the Commission's Ten Year
Capital Plan. Plans call for enhancements to E-ZPass lane signage and design of additional
Express E-ZPass lanes.

Slip Ramps

The Commission has constructed an altemative interchange (a "Slip Ramp") near the
Fort Washington Interchange. Such unmanned ramps, designed for the exclusive use of E-ZPass
customers, are expected to reduce congestion at the Turnpike's busier interchanges and similarly
are expected to provide better access to industrial parks and job centers. The Commission is
considering the construction of slip ramps in other growing areas as well. Slip ramp locations
currently in design include Route 29 in Chester County, near the Great Valley Corporate Center;
Route 903 in Carbon County; Philadelphia Park in Bucks County; and the Lansdale Interchange
in Montgomery County.

Personnel and Labor Relations

As of October 1, 2009, the Commission employed 2,181 persons, consisting of 451
management employees, 1,582 union members, and 148 temporary employees. Seventy-seven
and four-tenths percent (77.4%) of all employees are engaged in maintenance operations and fare
collection. The civil service requirements applicable to the state government do not apply to
employees of the Commission.

The Commission is a party to three collective bargaining agreements and one
memorandum of understanding with Teamsters' Local Unions covering central office, field, and
first level supervisory personnel. The three collective bargaining agreements became effective
on October 1, 2007 and expire on September 30, 2011. The memorandum of understanding has
no termination date. Since union representation began, the Commission has experienced one
work stoppage which occurred on November 24, 2004 and lasted for 7 days.

Retirement Plan

Substantially all employees of the Commission are covered by the State Employee's
Retirement System of the Commonwealth ("SERS"). The costs of the contributory plan are paid
by the Commission quarterly based upon a stipulated contribution rate. Participating agency
contributions, including those for the Commission, are mandated by statute and are based upon
an actuarially determined percentage of gross pay that is necessary to provide the SERS with
assets sufficient to meet the benefits to be paid to the SERS members.
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The Commission's retirement contribution, as a percentage of covered payroll, for all
Class A and Class AA member whose normal retirement age is any age upon accumulation of 35
years of eligibility points or age 60, with three years of service are as follows:

Year Ended June 30 Class A Class AA

(Commonwealth's fiscal year)

2009 2.64% 3.29%

2008 2.63% 3.28%

2007 2.59% 3.23%

The Commission's required contributions and percentage contributed are as follows:

Year Ended May 31 Commission Required Percent Contributed
Contribution

(in millions)

2009 $3.8 100%

2008 $3.7 100%

2007 $3.3 100%

A copy of the System's annual financial statements may be obtained by writing to: State
Employees' Retirement System, 30 North Third Street, P.O. Box 1147, Harrisburg,
Pennsylvania, 17108-1147.

The SERS has recently advised the Commission that, based on the assumptions and
forecasts of SERS, the employer contribution rates, including those of the Commission, are
projected to increase to 33.5% of payroll in Fiscal Year 2014. Based on these projections, which
assume an 8% investment return, the Commission's annual contribution would increase from
approximately $4,000,000 in Fiscal Year 2010 to approximately $30,000,000 in Fiscal Year
2014, which represents approximately 3% of estimated revenues in that Fiscal Year. SERS
projects that composite contribution rates will gradually decrease thereafter to approximately
20% of payroll in Fiscal Year 2035. The Commission will continue to monitor these projected
increases and to evaluate its options to minimize their impact.

Other Post Employment Benefit Liabilities

Historically, the Commission has funded its post employment benefit liabilities on a pay
as you go basis. In accordance with the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board applicable to the Commission, the Commission began reporting its unfunded
actuarial accrued liabilities for health care and other non pension post employment benefits
("OPEB") and its annual OPEB cost each year commencing with its audited financial statements
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for the Fiscal Year ending May 31, 2009. The Commission's unfunded actuarial accrued OPEB
liability for the Fiscal Year ending May 31, 2008, was $214,067,000 using an 8% discount rate
and assuming that the annual required contribution would be invested in an irrevocable separate
trust account. The Commission's annual required contribution for Fiscal Year 2010 is estimated
to be $29.1 million. The annual required contribution for Fiscal Year 2009 was $27.8 million.
The Commission is required to have biennial actuarial valuations of its OPEB obligations.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Act 61 Projects

In 1985, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth enacted Act 61 that, among other
things, authorized and empowered the Commission to undertake the construction of new projects
and to operate them as part of the System. Although Act 44 repeals Act 61, it further provides
that all activities initiated under Act 61 shall continue and remain in full lbrce and effect and

may be completed under Act 44.

Ten Year Capital Plan

The Commission has a Ten Year Capital Plan for its facilities and equipment (exclusive
of 1-80), consisting of Highway, Technology Fleet and Facilities Programs, which it updates each
year. The current Ten Year Capital Plan for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 is included below. The
Highway Program consists of roadway, bridge, tunnel and toll plaza/interchange projects. The
Technology Program consists of toll collection, communication, Intelligent Transportation
Systems (ITS) and other electronic information management projects. The Fleet Program funds
rolling stock that is required to maintain the system. The Facilities Program consists of buildings
and large, heavy or high value equipment needs.

The highest priority highway project is the ongoing full depth roadway total
reconstruction of the east/west Mainline and Northeast Extension. This work includes the

reconstruction of the roadway, the widening of the median, and the replacement of both mainline
and overhead bridges. To date, approximately 68 miles of total reconstruction has been
completed and approximately 8 miles are currently in construction. The Reconstruction from
Valley Forge Interchange (Milepost 326.0) to Norristown Interchange (Milepost 333.0) was
completed in 2008. Reconstruction from Gateway Interchange (Milepost 1.5) the New
Castle/Beaver Falls Interchange (Milepost 10) was completed in 2009. Total reconstruction
projects from Irwin Interchange (Milepost 67.0) to New Stanton Interchange (Milepost 75.0),
from Milepost 31 to Milepost 38 and from Milepost 210.0 to Milepost 215.0 is currently under
construction. The Commission currently plans to spend approximately $1.8 billion on total
reconstruction projects and about $916 million on various bridge projects over the next ten years.

The replacement of the Lehigh River and Pohopoco River Bridges on the Northeast
Extension and the replacement of the Allegheny River Bridge are both major bridge projects
currently under construction. The replacement of the Gettysburg, Lebanon/Lancaster and
Harrisburg East Toll Plazas were all completed in 2008.

The Technology Program includes funding of $250 million over the next ten years to
address the Commission's technology needs including toll collection projects, communication,
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application development and technical operational needs. One of the primary initiatives of the
Technology Program is a project to replace the Commission's core financial and administrative
systems with an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system software package. The
Commission is in the process of implementing SAP to provide a set of integrated business
process supported by multi module application software with a centralized data repository.

The Fleet Program includes funding of $91 million to purchase rolling stock to insure
adequate maintenance of the roadway system.

The Facilities Program includes funding of $416 million to repair and place the aging
facilities of the Commission. This commitment will ensure that major equipment and facilities
are in good repair to support ongoing Turnpike operations.

Mon/Fayette Expressway and Southern Beltway

Four projects constructed as part of the Mon/Fayette Expressway are in operation. One is
a six mile toll road between Interstate Route 70 and U.S. Route 40 in Washington County. This
project was built by PennDOT and turned over to the Commission upon its opening in 1990.
The second is an eight mile section of toll road from the Pennsylvania/West Virginia border to
Fairchance, which is located just south of Uniontown. The third project is a 17 mile section of
the Mon/Fayette Expressway from Interstate Route 70 in Washington County to Pennsylvania
Route 51 in Allegheny County. In 2008, approximately 8 miles of the Uniontown to
Brownsville Mon/Fayette Project opened in Fayette County, north of Uniontown. These are now
part of the System.

The remaining 7 miles of the Uniontown to Brownsville Project of the Mon/Fayette
Expressway is now under construction and is scheduled to open in 2012. A 26 mile section of
the Mon/Fayette Expressway, extending from Pennsylvania Route 51 to Interstate Route 376 in
Pittsburgh, received environmental clearance in December 2004. Final design through design
field view has been completed. Additional design, right-of-way acquisition and construction
cannot progress until additional funding is identified.

When completed, the Mon/Fayette Expressway will extend from Interstate Route 68 in
West Virginia to Interstate Route 376 near Pittsburgh, a distance of approximately 65 miles.

The proposed Southern Beltway is to be constructed from the Mon/Fayette Expressway,
near Finleyville, extending as part of a beltway south of Pittsburgh to Pennsylvania Route 60 at
the Pittsburgh International Airport. It is composed of three distinct projects. The project from
PA 60 to U.S. 22 (also known as the Findlay Connector) opened to traffic in late 2006. The
project from U.S. 22 to 1-79 received environmental clearance for its 13.3 miles in September,
2008 and is in final design; right of way acquisition began in late 2008. The remaining Southern
Beltway project, from 1-79 to the Mon/Fayette Expressway, received environmental clearance in
May 2009. Further advancement of the US 22 to 1-79 project cannot proceed until additional
funding is identified.

The proceeds of the Commission's Oil Franchise Tax Bonds, Series A and B of 1998 and
Series A, B and C of 2003 and the Registration Fee Revenues Bonds, Series of 2001 were
applied to fund construction of the Mon/Fayette and Southern Beltway projects. It is anticipated
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that the remaining costs to complete the Mon/Fayette Expressway and the Southern Beltway will
be financed with Oil Franchise Tax Revenues and Registration Fee Revenues along with other
funding sources. Although the open sections of the Mon/Fayette Expressway and the Southern
Beltway are toll roads, Mainline System Revenues will not be pledged for the financing of their
construction.

The Commission has no legal obligation to complete the unfinished portions of the
Mon/Fayette Expressway and Southern Beltway projects at this time. However, the Commission
recently has begun to consider other approaches to completing such projects, due in large part to
an estimated cost of $5.2 billion to complete them. On September 17, 2008, the Commission
issued a Request for Concepts/Solutions to complete such projects, noting that it was "seeking
innovative public private partnership Concepts/Solutions for financing, designing, constructing,
operating, and maintaining the un-built 52 miles of the Mon/Fayette Expressway and Southern
Beltway." The purpose of the Request was "to receive submissions that include
Concepts/Solutions from teams that can demonstrate the necessary financial capacity and
technical expertise to complete all or part of such major projects." The existing completed
portions of the Mon Fayette Expressway and Southern Beltway accounted for 1.3% of the
Commission's gross System revenue in fiscal 2008 and revenue on the completed portions has
been sufficient to cover annual operating expenses.

The Request noted that "There are limited state and federal resources to complete three
un-built projects of this program. The two un-built Southern Beltway projects are each
approximately thirteen miles in length and the un-built Mon/Fayette Expressway project from
PA Route 51 to 1-376 is approximately 26 miles in length." The Commission noted that it
welcomed "all innovative ideas for completing all or part of the Mon Fayette Expressway and
Southern Beltway projects."

The Commission held an informational meeting on September 17, 2008 at which it was
reported the Commission requested that interested parties submit their ideas for completing one
or more of the unfinished projects by January 15, 2009. The Commission received and evaluated
three responses and conducted oral interviews with all respondents in March 2009.

Since that time, a number of significant events have occurred. World financial markets
have become more uncertain resulting in less credit available to fund public-private partnership
("PPP") projects, proposed federal regulations for transportation PPP projects are more stringent,
proposed federal taxation schedules for amortization and depreciation have been lengthened, new
transportation legislation at the federal and state level may not be addressed this year, a number
of transportation PPPs nationwide have received no responses or have not been consummated
and all three respondents indicated that Commission financial participation would be required for
any of the construction scenarios.

As a result of the evaluation of the three responses and the significant events listed above,
the Commission will not move forward with a Request for Proposals at this time.
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Suite 40002001 Market Street
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Commissioners

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Pennsylvania Turnpike
Commission, a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as of May 31, 2009 and
2008, and for the years then ended as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged

: to perform an audit of the Commission's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the fmancial position of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission as of May 31, 2009 and 2008,
and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Management's Discussion and Analysis and the required schedule of funding progress for
postemployment healthcare benefits are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

September 20, 2009

0907-t 072283-PH l

AmembE*ililrtlO(Ernst&youngGlobalLimited



Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis

May 31, 2009

The management of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (hereinafter referred to as the
Commission) offers this narrative overview and analysis of the Commission's financial activities
for the year ended May 31, 2009, which should be read in conjunction with the Commission's
basic financial statements.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Commission's basic
financial statements. While the Commission is considered a component unit of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, it is also an enterprise fired. Therefore, the Cor_mission's
financial statements are presented in a manner similar to a private-sector business and have been
prepared according to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). All
of the current year's revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded as they are
incurred, regardless of when the cash is received or disbursed.

The balance sheet presents information on all of the Commission's assets and liabilities, with the
difference being reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets serve as a
relative indicator of the change in financial position of the Commission.

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets shows the result of the
Commission's total operations during the fiscal year and reflects both operating and
nonoperating activities. Changes in net assets (increases or decreases) reflect the current fiscal
period's operating impact upon the overall financial position of the Commission.

The statement of cash flows provides a detailed analysis of all sources and uses of cash. The
direct method of cash flows is presented, ending with a reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities. The statement of cash flows is divided into the following
activities sections--operating, investing, capital financing, and noncapital financing.

Notes to the basic financial statements contain supplemental information and offer explanations
to the basic financial statements. The notes are intended to assist the reader in understanding the
Commission's basic financial statements.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis

Comparative Condensed Balance Sheets

May 31
2009 2008 2007

(In Thousands)
Assets

Current assets $ 745,690 $ 909,211 $ 654,864

Long-term investments 311,219 362,065 544,855
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 4,091,440 3,766,829 3,430,937
Other assets 50_512 38,819 26,290
Total assets $ 5,198_861 $ 5,076,924 $ 4,656,946

Liabilities and net assets

Current liabilities $ 955,938 $ 214,790 $ 230,368
Debt net of unamortized premium and

unamortized refunding losses 4,047,102 3,755,287 2,631,488
Other noncurrent liabilities 39,851 37,880 34,942

Total liabilities 5,042,891 4,007,957 2,896,798

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,263,878 1,327,020 772,709
Restricted 49,926 57,681 731,995

Unrestricted (1,157_834) (315,734) 255,444
Total net assets 155_970 1,068,967 1,760,148
Total liabilities and net assets $ 5,198,861 $ 5,076,924 $ 4,656,946

As noted earlier, net assets serve as an indicator of the Commission's overall financial position.

Restricted net assets are restricted for projects defined in Trust Indentures and applicable bond
issue official statements. The Commission's total net assets were $0.156 billion, $1.069 billion,

and $1.760 billion as of May 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The large decreases in net
assets in the fiscal years 2009 and 2008 were the result of $850 million and $750 million paid to

the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation (PennDOT) as required by Act 44 and the lease
and funding agreement between the Commission and PennDOT. These payments were recorded

as nonoperating expenses. Please refer to Note 8 (Commitments and Contingencies) of the

financial statements and to the Events That Will Impact Financial Position section of this MD&A

for additional information regarding Act 44 and the lease and funding agreement between the
Commission and PennDOT.
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Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis (continued)

Total assets increased by $121.9 million and $420.0 million in fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008,
respectively. The 2009 increase is mostly related to an increase of $324.6 million in capital
assets which was partially offset by a decrease in cash and investments of $216.2 million. The
increase in capital assets was due mainly to the completion of phase 1 of the Uniontown to
Brownsville section of the Mon-Fayette project which is included in infrastructure.

The 2008 increase was mainly the result of increases of $77.1 million and $335.9 million in cash
and investments and capital assets, respectively. The increase in cash and investments was the
result of new debt issuances while the increase in capital assets was the result of an increase of
$152.0 million in assets under construction and a $251.0 million increase in infrastructure which
was primarily due to the completion of the new Susquehanna River Bridge.

Total liabilities increased by $1,034.9 million in fiscal 2009 and by $1,111.2 million in fiscal
2008. The fiscal 2009 increase is due mainly to the issuance of new bonds. The new issuances
include: Series 2008 B Subordinate, 2008 C, 2008 C Subordinate and 2009 A Subordinate. The
subordinate bonds were issued to fund Act 44 payments.

The fiscal 2008 increase was due mainly to the issuance of new bonds and bond anticipation
notes. The new issuances include: Series A&B 2007 Turnpike Bond Anticipation Notes; Series
2008 A Turnpike Subordinate Revenue bonds; Series A 2008 Turnpike Multi-Modal Revenue
Refunding bonds; and Series B 2008 Turnpike Multi-Modal Revenue bonds. The 2007 A&B
Bond Anticipation Notes and the 2008 A Subordinate bonds were issued primarily to make
payments to the Pennsylvania Depa_u_lent of Transportation in accordance with Act 44; the 2008
A Refunding Series were issued to refund Series 2006 B&C bonds; and the 2008 B bonds were
issued to finance various projects in the Commission's Ten-Year Capital Plan.
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Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis (continued)

Comparative Statements of Revenues and Expenses

Year Ended May 31
2009 2008 2007

(In Thousands)
Operating:

Operating revenues $ 633,547 $ 620,205 $ 608,4A.4
Cost of services (393,364) (372,959) (369,855)

Depreciation (237,108) (193,696) (198,414)
,: Operating income 3,075 53,550 40,175

Nonopemting revenues (expenses):
Oil company franchise tax revenues 57,379 60,592 67,07 l
Motor license registration fee revenue 28,000 28,000 28,000
Investment earnings 27,672 50,488 67,689
Other nonopemting revenues (expenses) 660 (135) 1,405
Act 44 payments to PennDOT (850,000) (750,000) -

Interest and bond expense (191,553) (146,250) (135,415)
Nonoperating income (loss) (927_842) (757,305) 28,750
Change in net assets before capital

contributions (924,767) (703,755) 68,925
Capital contributions 11,770 12,574 24,306

Change in net assets $(912,997) $(691,181) $ 93,231

For fiscal years ended May 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, operating and nonoperating revenues
totaled $747.3 million, $759.3 million, and $772.6 million, respectively, while expenses totaled

$1,672.0 million, $1,463.0 million, and $703.7 million, respectively.

Total revenues for fiscal 2009 were $12.0 million or 1.6% lower than 2008. "['he decrease in total

revenues was the result of decreases in nonoperating revenues. Investment earnings were down

$22.8 million resulting from a decline in market interest rates and lower balances throughout the

year and Oil Company Franchise Tax revenues were down $3.2 million. These decreases were

partially offset by an increase of $19.1 million in gross toll revenue resulting from a toll rate
increase of 25% in January 2009.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis (continued)

Total expenses for fiscal 2009 were $209.0 million higher than 2008 primarily due to increases
in Act 44 payments, interest and bond expenses, cost of services and depreciation expense. The
Commission paid an additional $100.0 million to PennDOT in fiscal 2009 as required by Act 44.
In addition, interest and bond expenses increased by $45.3 million, which was mainly the result
of fiscal 2009 and 2008 bond issuances. The $20.4 million increase in cost of services is mostly
attributable to an $8.4 million increase in annual OPEB costs and a $7.9 million increase in 1-80
related expenses. An increase in depreciation expense of $43.4 million resulting from completion
of phase 1 of the Uniontown to Brownsville (Mon/Fayette) and total reconstruction projects and
a full year of depreciation expense for the new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system also
added to the overall increase in expenses.

Total revenues for fiscal 2008 were $13.3 million or 1.7% lower than 2007. The decrease in total

revenues was the result of decreases in nonoperafing revenues. Investment earnings were down
$17.2 million resulting from a decline in market interest rates and lower balances throughout the
year and Oil Company Franchise Tax revenues which were down $6.5 million. Net fares
increased $6.3 million or 1.1% from fiscal 2007; the increase was the result of a 1.9% increase in
traffic volumes.

Total expenses for fiscal 2008 were $759.3 million higher than 2007. The increase was the result
of $750.0 million paid to PennDOT as required by Act 44. Cost of services increased
$3.1 million or 0.8% and depreciation expense decreased $4.7 million or 2.4%. Although
$361.8 million of capital assets were added to the depreciable base during the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2008, other assets were fully depreciated, which caused the decrease in the depreciation
expense.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The Commission's investment in capital assets as of May 3 I, 2009 amounted to $7.8 billion of
gross asset value with accumulated depreciation of $3.7 billion, leaving a net book value of
$4.1 billion. This investment represents 78.7% of the Commission's total assets compared with
74.2% in 2008. Capital assets consist of land, buildings, improvements, equipment,
infrastructure, and assets under construction. Infrastructure assets are typically items that are
immovable such as highways, bridges, and tunnels. The net book value of capital assets at
May 31,2008 was $3.8 billion.
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Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis (continued)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (continued)

Capital Assets (continued)

Assets under construction at the end of fiscal 2009 were $1,229.8 million, which was
$116.5 million less than fiscal 2008. This decrease is mainly the result of the completion of
phase 1 of the Uniontown to Brownsville (Mon/Fayette) project.

In fiscal 2009, $642.7 million of constructed capital assets were completed which was
$280.9 million more than the $361.8 million of constructed capital assets completed in fiscal
2008. In addition to constructed capital assets, the Commission made capital asset acquisitions
totaling more than $29.7 million and $17.0 million in fiscal 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Commission spent $419.3 million on capital improvements to the existing mainline system
and $207 million on the Mon/Fayette Expressway and Southern Beltway roadway expansion
(Act 61) projects during fiscal year 2009.

Roadway reconstruction totaling 67.5 miles has been completed. An additional 18.5 miles of
roadway reconstruction has been initiated, and another 26 miles of reconstruction is currently in
design. The Commission also completed 20.6 miles of roadway resurfacing, helping to maintain
a quality-riding surface with a system-wide median IRI (InternationalRoughness Index) of 87.

The Commission completely replaced 18 aging original bridges with new bridges, and
rehabilitated another 18 bridges in fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008. Construction of the new
Allegheny River Bridge is continuing with the new westbound bridge nearly complete, and with
an overall project completion date of October 2010. Demolition of the old Susquehanna River
Bridge was completed in 2008 marking the completion of that project.

Facility projects continue to focus on environmental and safety compliance, and on the
maintenance and repair of existing buildings including HVAC, electrical and plumbing systems.
Equipment purchases and regular maintenance of existing equipment is ongoing to ensure the
Turnpike fleet of dump trucks, plows, and other equipment is of sufficient number and
functioning properly so that maintenance staff will be adequately equipped to maintain the
roadway.

Construction of phase 1 of the Uniontown to Brownsville project, an 8.4 mile section from
Pittsburgh Road to US 40, opened to traffic in October 2008 and is now incorporated into the
Turnpike System.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis (continued)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (continued)

Capital Assets (continued)

Phase 2 of the Uniontown to Brownsville, a 7 mile section, will complete the Mon/Fayette
Expressway from the West Virginia Line in Fayette County to PA 51 in Washington County, a
distance of 54 miles. Phase 2 major construction projects have been bid and this segment is
currently under construction. As of July 1, 2009, 29% of the construction work has been
completed and the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission anticipates completion for phase 2 in late
2011 or early 2012.

The Mon/Fayette Expressway project, extending from PA Route 51 to Interstate Route 376 in
Pittsburgh, has completed the preliminary design phase and is waiting for additional funding.

The proposed Southern Beltway is planned to be constructed from the Mon/Fayette Expressway,
near Finleyville, extending as part of a beltway south of Pittsburgh to Pennsylvania Route 60 at
the Pittsburgh International Airport. It is presently planned for construction in three sections.
1-79 to Mon/Fayette Expressway has completed the environmental phase and is inactive until
additional resources are found. The section from US 22 to 1-79 is in final design and acquisition
of right-of-way for 71 total take parcels is underway. Additional funding is needed to continue
the US 22 to 1-79 project to complete the design and for all of its construction. The Findlay
Connector (PA 60 to US 22), a six mile section of the Southern Beltway from the Pittsburgh
International Airport to US 22, was opened to traffic in October of 2006.

A federal Environmental Impact Statement Record of Decision was issued for the 1-95 Turnpike
interchange project in late 2004 and preliminary design for the project has been completed. Final
design has been initiated for the proposed Stage 1 construction which would include the tolling
modifications (new mainline toll plaza near Milepost 352, open road tolling, westbound at
Delaware River Bridge and elimination of tolls at Delaware Valley Interchange) and the 1-95
ramps which will bring the 1-95 designation on to the PA & NJ Turnpikes. There are also several
early action overhead bridge replacements required prior to mainline construction. Two of the
early action bridges are scheduled to be bid in 2010 and will be paid for by 100% Turnpike
funds. Additional funding is needed for the construction of the remainder of the project.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis (continued)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (continued)

Capital Assets (continued)

The above paragraphs describe the changes in capital assets occurring during the fiscal years
ended May 31, 2009 and 2008. Please refer to the capital assets section in the notes to the
financial statements (Note 5) for more detailed capital asset schedules.

Debt Administration

In January 2009, the Commission issued $308,035,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds
Series A of 2009. The 2009 A Subordinate Bonds were issued primarily to make payments to the
Pennsylvania Department of Transportation (PennDOT) in accordance with Act 44.

On December 18, 2008 the Commission entered into two forward starting swap agreements with
two counterparties (Deutsche Bank and Goldman Sachs). Each swap agreement had a notional
amount of $150,000,000 with an effective date of June 1, 2010 and a termination date of Jnne 1,
2039. The Commission entered into these forward starting interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate variations and interest rate costs with respect to the Series 2009 A and
Series 2010 A Mainline Revenue Bonds. The Commission issued its Series 2009 A revenue

bonds in June 2009 and expects to issue its Series 2010 A revenue bonds in June 2010.

In October 2008, the Commission issued $411,110,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds,
Series C of 2008. The bonds consist of Subseries C-1 Subordinate Revenue Bonds issued for

$231,335,000, Subserics C-3 Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes issued for
$102,060,000 and Subseries C-4 Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (federally
taxable) issued for $77,715,000. These bonds were issued to make payments to the Pennsylvania
Department of Transportation (PennDOT) in accordance with Act 44.

On August 19, 2008, the Commission issued $50,000,000 Turnpike Multi-Modal Revenue
Bonds, Series C of 2008 maturing June 1, 2038. These bonds bear interest at a variable rate and
were issued primarily to finance the costs of various Mainline capital expenditures to fund the
reconstruction of roadbed and roadway and the widening, replacing and redeeking of certain
bridges and/or the rehabilitation of certain interchanges.
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Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis (continued)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (continued)

Debt Administration (continued)

In July 2008, the Commission issued $233,905,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds,
Series B of 2008. Subseries B-1 of 2008 bonds total $164,915,000 and Subseries B-2 of 2008
bonds total $68,990,000 (federally taxable). These bonds were issued to make payment to
PennDOT in accordance with Act 44.

In May 2008, the Commission issued Series 2008 B Multi-Modal Revenue Bonds in the amount
of $402,000,000. The 2008 B Series Bonds were issued primarily to provide funds to finance the
costs of various Mainline capital expenditures for the Pennsylvania Turnpike system as set forth
in the Commission's currentTen-Year Capital Plan.

In May 2008, the Commission issued Series 2008 A Multi-Modal Refunding Bonds in the
amount of $233,455,000. The primary purpose of this variable to variable refunding was to
replace the Ambac insured 2006 B&C bonds with the 2008 A bonds which are uninsured,
supported by a JP Morgan Standby Bond Purchase Agreement.

In April 2008, the Commission issued Series 2008 A (Subseries A-l) Subordinate Bonds in the
amount of $176,565,000 and (Subseries A-2) which are federally taxable for $68,290,000. The
2008 A Subordinate Bonds were issued primarily to make payments to PennDOT in accordance
with Act 44. Also in April 2008, the Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2003 C
were converted to a fixed interest rate of 5.0% from the auction rate.

In October 2007, the Commission issued 2007 Series A&B Turnpike Bond Anticipation Notes in
the amounts of $280,830,000 and $251,025,000, respectively. The 2007 Series Anticipation
Notes were issued primarily to make payments to PennDOT in accordance with Act 44 to fund
certain grants to mass transit agencies and various road, highway, bridge and capital projects of
PennDOT. Both Series have a final maturity of October 15, 2009. Additionally, the Series B
Anticipation Notes are federally taxable.

The above paragraphs describe debt and swap activity occurring during the fiscal year. Please
refer to the bonds payable and commitments and contingencies sections in the notes to the
financial statements (Notes 6 and 8) for more detailed schedules and descriptions of long-term
debt and swap activity.
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Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis (continued)

Events That Will Impact Financial Position

In December 2006, Governor Edward G. Rendell announced his intention to seek expressions of
interest for a possible sale or lease of the Pennsylvania Turnpike system in order to obtain funds
for highway, bridge and transit programs throughout the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The
Commonwealth hired several firms to perform work related to a possible sale or lease of the
Pennsylvania Turnpike; however, the state legislature did not support the plan and alternative
proposals were considered. In July 2007, House Bill 1590, titleA Act 44 of 2007, was passed by
the state legislature and signed by Governor Rendell. The provisions of Act 44 required the
Turnpike Commission to enter into a 50-year lease of the Pennsylvania portion of Interstate 80
with PennDOT and to make substantial lease payments to PennDOT to provide funds for various
transportation needs of the Commonwealth. In addition, Act 44 granted the Commission the
option to convert such portion of Interstate 80 to a toll road subject to certain federal approvals.
As required under Act 44, the Commission and PennDOT entered into a 50-year Lease and
Funding Agreement on October 14, 2007. The Commission's payments to PennDOT for the
fiscal years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008 were $850 million and $750 million, respectively.
Please refer to Note 8 (Commitments and Contingencies) for additional information regarding
required annual payments for the remainder of the term of the lease.

The Commission submitted its Preliminary Expression of Interest to the Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA) in August 2007, requesting tolling authority for that portion of
Interstate 80 traversing the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. By a letter dated September 26,
2007, FHWA replied to the Commission stating that the Interstate System Reconstruction and
Rehabilitation Pilot Program (the Pilot Program) is the appropriate tolling pilot program under
which the Commission should apply. The Commission submitted to FHWA a joint application
with PennDOT on October 31, 2007. FHWA responded to the application with a request for
additional information on December31, 2007. Among FHWA's requests were a clearer
identification of the rehabilitation, reconstruction, and improvement projects currently being
planned for Interstate 80 by the Commission after the Conversion Date, and further information
of PennDOT's historic funding strategy for Interstate 80. The Commission and PennDOT replied
to FHWA on December :20, 2007, and they jointly acknowledged this request for additional
information and confirmed their intent to continue seeking federal approval for the Conversion.
Representatives of the Commission and PennDOT met with FHWA staff on two occasions
during the fast half of 2008 to discuss the additional information to be included in the updated
application.

0907-1072283-PH 1 1



Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Analysis (continued)

Events That Will Impact Financial Position (continued)

The Commission and PennDOT submitted an amended application to FHWA to toll Interstate 80
in July 2008 and supplemented such application in August 2008. By letter dated September 11,
2008, FHWA advised the Commission and PennDOT that it was unable to move the application
forward at that time primarily because the proposed lease payments (from the Commission to
PennDOT), as presented to FHWA, did not meet federal statutory requirements. The
Commission and PennDOT are evaluating strategies for the submittal of a new application.

The Commission continued to meet its funding commitments in full and on time during fiscal
2009, the second year of Act 44. As the Commission carries out its new Act 44 responsibilities, it
also continues its efforts to maintain and improve the Turnpike. Meeting Act 44 and Turnpike
funding commitments in a constrained financial environment requires carefully managing
financial obligations while maintaining financial flexibility.

The Commission has met these significant challenges over the past fiscal year despite the
unprecedented economic environment of rising fuel prices in the first half of the fiscal year and
the worsening recession during the second half of the year by adjusting its financing and budget
strategies which include cost-containment measures. As part of the Act 44 financial planning
process, the Commission evaluates alternative tolling, operating cost, capital program and debt
financing strategies to meet its obligations in a cost-effective and prudent manner. The ability to
continually review and, as appropriate, adjust strategies throughout the term of the Lease
provides the Commission with the necessary flexibility to adapt to changing market conditions.

The above paragraphs provide a brief overview of Act 44 and its requirements. Please refer to
the commitments and contingencies section in the notes to the financial statements (Note 8) for
additional information regarding the Commission's commitments under the Lease and Funding
Agreement.

0907- 1072283-Plq 12



Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Balance Sheets

(ln Thousands)

May 31
2009 2008

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 147,740 $ 143,276
Short-term investments 8,164 27,478
Accounts receivable 595 1,038

Accrued interest receivable 2,029 1,902
Inventories 19,144 15,372
Restricted current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 444,395 552,298

Short-term investments 85,984 128,552

Accounts receivable 36,471 36,514

Accrued interest receivable 1_168 2_781
Total current assets 745,690 909,211

Noneurrent assets:

Long-term investments:

Long-term inveslments unrestricted 200,078 181,446

Long-term investments restricted 111_141 180,619
Total long-term investments 311,219 362,065

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 204,665 181,846

Assets under construction 1,229,835 1,346,351

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 742,815 697,816
Improvements other than buildings 60,322 59,482

Equipment 401,944 397,477

Infrastructure 5_199,598 4,613,052
7,839,179 7,296,024

Less accumulated depreciation 3fl47_739 3,529,195i

' 4,091,440 3,766,829
Other assets:

Other assets 2,332 1,433
Deferred issuance costs 48,180 37,386

Total other assets 50,512 38,819

Total noncurrent assets 4,453,171 4,167,713
Total assets $ 5,198,861 $ 5,076,924
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May 31
2009 2008

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 217,668 $ 121,272
Current portion of debt 709,715 67,555
Unearned income 28_555 25,963

i Total current liabilities 955,938 214,790

Noncurrent liabilities:

Debt, less current portion, net of unamortized premium of
$50,337 and $56,906 in 2009 and 2008, respectively, and net
ofunamortized refunding loss of $65,855 and $70,904 in
2009 and 2008, respectively 4,047,102 3,755,287

Other noncurrent liabilities 39_851 37,880
Total noncurrent liabilities 4_086,953 3,793,167
Total liabilities 5,042,891 4,007,957

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,263,878 1,327,020
Reslricted for certain construction and maintenance purposes 49,926 57,681
Unrestricted (1_157,834) (315,734)

Total net assets 155,970 1,068,967

Total liabilities and net assets $ 5,198,861 $ 5,076,924

See accompanying notes.

0907- 1072283-PH 14



Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

(ln Thousands)

Year Ended May 31
2009 2008

Operating revenues:
Fares - net of discounts of $22,640 and $20,224 for the years

ended May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively $ 615,604 $ 598,926
Other 17,943 21,279

633,547 620,205
Operating expenses:

Cost of services 393,364 372,959
Depreciation 237,108 193,696

630,472 566,655

Operating income 3,075 53,550

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Oil company franchise tax revenues 57,379 60,592
Motor license registration fee revenue 28,000 28,000
Investment earnings 27,672 50,488

_ _ Other nonoperating revennes (expenses) 660 (135)
Act 44 payments to PennDOT (850,000) (750,000)
Interest and bond expenses (191,553) (146,250)

(927,842) (757,305)
Change in net assets before capital conlributions (924,767) (703,755)
Capital contributions 11_770 12_574
Change in net assets (912,997) (691,181)

Net assets at beginning of year 1,068,967 1,760,148
Net assets at end of year $ 155,970 $1,068,967

See accompanying notes.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended May 31
2009 2008

(ln Thousands)
Operating activities
Cash received from customer tolls and deposits $ 629,760 $ 667,795
Cash payments for goods and services (252,946) (309,323)
Cash payments to employees (135,476) (156,602)
Cash received from other operating activities 12_939 14,503
Net cash provided by operating activities 254,277 216,373

Investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 780,732 1,259,581
Interest received on investments 26,343 46,675
Purchases of investments (665_189) (864,777)
Net cash provided by investing activities 141,886 441,479

Capital and related financing activities
Capital grants received 12,584 16,694
Construction and acquisition of capital assets (528,560) (531,828)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,225 29
Payments for bond expenses (2,282) (3,322)
Payments for redemption of debt (67,555) (52,645)

Interest paid on debt (153,443) (140,368)
Proceeds from new debt 1_003_050 11179,835
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 265,019 468,395

Noncapital financing activities
Cash payments to PennDOT (850,000) (750,000)
Cash proceeds from motor license grant 28,000 28,000
Cash proceeds from oil company franchise tax 57r379 58,709
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (764,621) (663,291)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (103,439) 462,956

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 695_574 232,618
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 592,135 $ 695,574

Continued on the following page - see accompanying schedule of reconciliation.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Year Ended May 31
2009 2008

(ln Thousands)
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities
Operating income $ 3,075 $ 53,550
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 237,108 193,696
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (641) (3,121)
Inventories (3,772) 1,033
Other assets (939) (1,047)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 17,475 (29,849)
Other noncurrent liabilities 1_971. 2,111

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 254_277 $ 216,373

Noneash Activities

The Commission recorded an increase of $3.4 million and $9.7 million in the fair value of its
investments for the years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Commission recognized $4.4 million and $3.2 million in income for bond premium
amortization for the years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Commission recorded $5.0 million and $4.9 million in expenses for amortization of deferred
refunding losses for the years ended May 31, 2009 and2008, respectively.

See accompanying notes.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2009

1. Financial Reporting Entity

The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (the Commission) was created as an instrumentality of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania on May 21, 1937, with powers to construct, operate, and
maintain the Turnpike System and to issue Turnpike revenue bonds, repayable solely from tolls
and other Commission revenues. The Commission is considered a component unit of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth).

In evaluating how to define the Commission for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 14, The Reporting Entity, and No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units--an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 14. GASB Statement No. 14 defines the reporting entity as the primary government and
those component units for which the primary government is fmancially accountable. GASB
Statement No. 39 provides additional guidance to determine whether certain organizations for
which the primary government is not financially accountable should be reported as component
units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government. The
Commission believes it has no component units based on its review of GASB Statements No. 14
and No. 39.

The Commission consists of five members, one of whom is the Secretary of Transportation. The
others are appointed by the Governor with the approval of a majority of the Senate.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Commission's accounting policies are

: described below:

Application of FASB Pronouncements

The Commission has elected not to apply any FASB statements or interpretations issued after
November 30, 1989.

Basis of Accounting

The Connuission's basic financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Commission considers all highly liquid debt
investment securities that mature within three months of acquisition to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value with the exception of certain nonparticipating contracts such
as repurchase agreements that are reported at cost, which does not materially differ from fair
value. Fair values are based on published market rates.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on
the date received. Interest is capitalized based on average construction cost and the average bond
interest rate, less interest earned on invested construction funds. Acquisitions of capital assets
valued at $15,000 or greater are capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The following lives are used:

Buildings 10 - 45 years
Improvements other than buildings 15 - 20 years
Equipment 3 - 40 years
Infrastructure 10 - 50 years

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost (determined on a first-in, first-out method) or
market.

Debt Premium/Discount and Issuance Costs

Debt premium/discount and issuance costs are being amortized using the effective interest rate
method over the varying terms of the bonds issued.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Unearned Income

E-ZPass customers of the Turnpike Commission are required to deposit fimds in advance of
anticipated travel. Since this money is collected prior to the customers' travel and revenue
recognition, it is recorded as unearned income. Unearned income related to E-ZPass customers
was $28.4 million and $25.9 million for the years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Operating Revenues

Revenues associated with operations of the toll road are considered operating revenues. The
principal operating revenues of the Commission are fare revenues from customers. Other
operating revenues include: service station, restaurant,property and other rental income as well
as electronic toll collection and violation enforcement fees related to the E-ZPass program. Also
included is revenue from various sponsorship agreements.

Fare Revenues

Fare revenues are recognized when vehicles exit the Turnpike System. As of May 31, 2009 and
2008, approximately 61.0% and 58.9%, respectively, of the fare revenues were realized through
electronic toll collection; the remainder was realized through cash collection or a credit card
program for military and class 9 vehicles.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses relate directly to operating and maintaining the toll road. The principal
operating expenses of the Commission are cost of services and depreciation. Other expenses are
considered nonoperatmg expenses.

Cost of Services

Cost of services includes: wages and salaries, benefits, utilities, fuels, professional fees and
services, PA State Police services, and purchased goods, including materials and supplies.

Utilization of Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Commission's
policy to use restricted resources In'st and then unrestricted resources as needed.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Nonoperating revenues include: Oil Company Franchise Tax revenues, Motor License
Registration Fee revenues, investment earnings, and other miscellaneous revenues not associated
with the operations of the toll road. Nonoperating expenses include: Act 44 payments to
PennDOT, interest and bond expenses, and other miscellaneous expenses not associated with the
operations of the toll road.

Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenues

The Commission receives 14% of the additional 55 mills of the Commonwealth's Oil Company
Franchise Tax revenues pursuant to Act 26 established in 1991. The revenues are recorded as
nonoperating revenue and totaled $57.4 million and $60.6 million for the fiscal years ended
May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. These revenues are kept in a separate fund as required by
the applicable bond indenture. This fimd's assets equaled $277.3 million and $667.9 million as
of May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and consisted essentially of cash, investments, and
assets under construction.

Motor License Registration Fee Revenues

The Commission received $28.0 million in grants during each of the fiscal years ended May 3 l,
2009 and 2008 from the Commonwealth's Motor License Fund. The revenue from these grants
has been recorded as nonoperating revenue. The Commission has elected to account for this
grant in a separate fund. This fund's assets totaled $87.1 million and $253.8 million as of
May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and consisted essentially of cash, investments, and assets
under construction.

Act 44 Payments to PennDOT

The Commission and PennDOT entered into a Lease and Funding Agreement as required under
the terms of Act 44. See Note 8 for more information regarding this Lease and Funding
Agreement.
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Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital Contributions

The Commission receives grants from other governments for reimbursement of costs for various
highway construction projects. During the years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008, the Commission
received $11.8 million and $12.6 million, respectively, in reimbursements from the Federal
government.

Derivatives

The Commission enters into various interest rate swaps in order to manage risks associated with
interest on its bond portfolio. As currently allowed under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, the Commission does not record the fair value or changes in the
fair value of interest rate swaps in its financial statements. See Note 8 for relevant disclosures.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts were reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2008, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 53, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. This statement is effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2009. Early adoption is allowed.

3. Indenture Requirements and Restrictions

The Commission's debt has been issued under the provisions of a Trust Indenture, dated July 1,
1986, which was amended and restated as of March 1, 2001; a Trust Indenture dated August 1,
1998 (1998 Indenture); and a Trust Indenture dated July 1, 2005 (collectively referred to as the
Indentures) between the Commission and the Trustee (U.S. Bank Corp., successor to Wachovia
Bank); and a Subordinate Trust Indenture dated April 1, 2008 between the Commission and TD
Bank, N.A. as Trustee. Accordingly, certain activities of the Commission are restricted by the
Indentures.

The Commission is required to maintain certain accounts with the Trustees as specified by the
Indentures. Funds maintained in such accounts are restricted to use for construction, Turnpike
System maintenance and operation, Act 44 payments and debt service.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Cash and Investments

Cash deposits are in various financial institutions. The Indentures require that cash deposits be
either insured or collateralized by a pledge of direct obligations of the United States Government
or the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or otherwise in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania governing trust funds of public bodies.

The following summary presents the amount of Commission deposits all of which are fully
insured or collateralized with securities held by the Commission or its agent in the Commission's
name.

Total Bank Total Book
Balance Balance

(ln Thousands)
May 31, 2009
Demand deposits $ 588,223 $ 592,135

May 31, 2008
Demand deposits $ 83,544 $ 65,374

The Indentures permit investments in obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States of
America, its agencies, and its instrumentalities (United States Government obligations);
certificates of deposit issued by institutions insured by the FDIC or fully collateralized with
United States Government obligations; investment agreements with certain financial institutions;
commercial paper and asset-backed securities rated in the highest category by applicable rating
agencies; money market funds and auction rate certificates rated in one of the two highest
categories by applicable rating agencies; corporate bonds and medium term notes with a
minimum rating of AA-; investments in long-tema debt obligations of any state or political
subdivision but only to the extent that the applicable rating agency has assigned a rating to such
obligations, which at the time of purchase is not lower than the highest underlying rating
assigned to any series of Commission bonds then outstanding; and repurchase agreements with
banks or primary government dealers reporting to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York
coUateralized with obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States of America.

Debt insurers have placed additional restrictions on construction funds. For these funds,
corporate bonds, auction rate c_ertificates, asset-backed securities, and medium term notes are not
allowed.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Cash and Investments (continued)

The Commission has an investment policy that defines guidelines and operational factors
governing the investment of cash assets. The policy is consistent with the Indentures regarding
permitted investments; however, it imposes the following additional limitations:

• Investments in government agencies are limited to 35% of the portfolio.

• Investments in certificates of deposit and investment agreements are limited to 30% of
the portfolio.

• Investments in commercial paper, corporate bonds, and asset-backed securities, in
aggregate, are limited to 35% of the portfolio.

• Investments in any single issuer, excluding U.S. Treasury and Federal Agencies, are
limited to 5% of the portfolio.

The Commission's investment policy also limits investments to those issues expected to mature
within five years, taking into consideration call, prepayment, or other features that may impact
maturity.

Credit Risk

The Commission's exposure to credit risk as of May 31, 2009 is as follows:

Quality Rating
Debt Investments AAA AA A A-1 *Unrated

(In Thousands)

Government agency securities $ 154,235 $ $ - $ - 5;41,967
Corporate obligations 30,293 38,137 - 62,536 -
Municipal bonds 17,262 2,599 - - -
Guaranteed investment contracts - - - 16,449

* Unrated debt investments are securities that are not rated by the NRSROs.

Investments guaranteed by the full faith of the U.S. Government, such as U.S. Treasuries,
GNMA mortgages, and related repurchase agreements, are not considered to have credit risk and
do not require disclosure of credit quality.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Cash and Investments (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

As of May 31, 2009, the Commission had investments of more than 5% of its consolidated
portfolio with the following issuers:

Total Percent
Issuer Investments of Total

(ln Thousands)

Federal Home Loan Bank $ 64,867 6.50%
Federal National Mortgage Association 50,350 5.05

Interest Rate Risk

On May 31, 2009, the effective duration of the Commission's investments, by type, was as
follows:

Effective
Duration

Investment Type Fair Value {Years)
(In Thousands)

U.S. Treasuries $ 34,212 2.58
GNMA mortgages 7,677 1.99
Govemment agency securities 196,202 1.97
Municipal bonds 19,861 9.26
Guaranteed investment contracts 16,449 0.48
Corporate obligations 130,966 1.78
Total investment securities and cash equivalents $ 405,367
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
: A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Cash and Investments (continued)

The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents and investments by type:

May 31
2009 2008

(ln Thousands)

U.S. Treasuries $ 34,212 $ 46,230
GNMA Mortgages 7,677 5,005
Government agency securities 196,202 326,540
Municipal bonds 19,861 20,006
Corporate obligations 130,966 103,855
Repurchase agreements - 630,201
Guaranteed investment contracts 16_449 16,458
Total investment securities and cash equivalents 405,367 1,148,295

Demand deposits 592_135 65,374
Total cash and cash equivalents and investments $ 997,502 $1,213,669
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Capital Assets

A summary of changes to capital assets for the years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Balance Balance

June 1_2008 Additions Transfers Retirements Ma_' 31_2009
(In Thousands)

Capital assets not being depreciated
(cost)

Land $ 181,846 $ 23,209 $ - $ 390 $ 204,665

Assets under construction 1,346_351 526_137 (642_653) - Ir229_835
Total capital assets not being

depreciated 1,528,197 549,346 (642,653) 390 1,434,500

Capital assets being depreciated
(cost)

Buildings 697,816 29 49,917 4,947 742,815
Improvements other than buildings 59,482 751 89 - 60,322
Equipment 397,477 5,664 14,006 15,203 401,944
Infrastructure 4_613_052 7,905 578_641 - 5_199r598
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,767,827 14,349 642,653 20,150 6,404,679

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 233,844 19,901 - 3,583 250,242
Improvements other than buildings 43,563 1,865 - - 45,428
Equipment 269,566 40,677 - ' 14,981 295,262

Infrastructure 2r982_222 174,585 - - 3r156_807
Total accumulated depreciation 3,529r195 237r108 - 18_564 3,747,739
Total capital assets being depreciated,

net 2_238,632 (222r759 _ 642r653 1_586 2_656_940
Total capital assets $ 31766,829 $ 326,587 $ - $ 1_976 $ 4_091_440
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Capital Assets (continued)

Balance Balance

June 1_2007 Additions Transfers Retirements May 31, 2008
(ln Thousands)

Capital assets not being depreciated
(cost)

Land $ 174,661 $ 7,276 $ - $ 91 $ 181,846

Assets under construction 1,194,364 513,780 (361,793) - 1,346,351
Total capital assets not being

depreciated 1,369,025 521,056 (361,793) 91 1,528,197

Capital assets being depreciated
(cost)

Buildings 666,087 4,356 28,240 867 697,816
Improvements other than buildings 58,831 - 867 216 59,482
Equipment 319,524 5,390 76,967 4,404 397,477
Infrastructure 4,362,098 - 255,719 4,765 4_613,052
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,406,540 9,746 361,793 10,252 5,767,827

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 215,367 19,113 - 636 233,844
Improvements other than buildings 41,643 2,136 - 216 43,563
Equil_nent 251,389 21,689 - 3,512 269,566
Infrastructure 2,836,229 150,758 - 4,765 2,982,222

Total accumulated depreciation 3,344,628 193,696 - 9,129 3,529, ]95
Total capital assets being depreciated,

net 2,061,912 (183,950) 361,793 1,123 2_238_632
Total capital assets $ 3,430,937 $ 337,106 $ - $ 1,214 $ 3,766,829

For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008, the Commission incurred interest costs of
$17.1 million and $26.2 million, respectively, which qualified for capitalization. For 2009, the
interest expense was offset by $9.2 million of interest income resulting in a net capitalization of
$7.9 million. For 2008, the interest expense was offset by an approximately equal amount of
interest income resulting in a net capitalization of zero.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Debt

Debt consists of the following:

May 31
2009 2008

(In Thousands)
Mainline Debt

1998 Series Q: Issued $53,000 in July 1998 at a variable rate
(based on SIFMA, reset daily, paid the l*tof each month) due
in varying installments through June 1,2028. $ 53,000 $ 53,000

2001 Series R: Issued $186,025 in March 2001 at 5.00% to
5.125%, due in varying installments through December 1,
2030. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 186,025 186,025

2001 Series S: Issued $244,925 in May 2001 at 3.40% to
5.60%, due in varying installments through June 1, 2015.
Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 143,530 160,205

2001 Series T: Issued $86,660 in September 2001 at 4.13% to
5.50%, due in varying installments through December 1,
2013. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 72,755 75,355

2001 Series U: Issued $169,820 in September 2001 at a variable
rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1stof each
month) due in varying installments through December 1, 2019. 169,820 169,820

2002 Series A: Issued $288,265 in September 2002 at a variable
rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1stof each
month) due in varying installments through December 1, 2030. 288,265 288,265

2002 Series B: Issued $160,880 in September 2002 at a variable
rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1stof each
month) due in varying installments through December 1, 2012. 49,470 67,940

2004 Series A: Issued $269,245 in June 2004 at 5.00% to
5.50%, due in varying installments through December 1,

: 2034. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 269,245 269,245
2006 Series A: Issued $118,015 in June 2006 at 5.00%, due in

varying installments through December 1,2026. Interest paid
each June 1 and December 1. 118,015 118,015

2007 Series A: Issued $280,830 in October 2007 at 4.00%, due
in varying installments through October 15, 2009. Interest
paid each April 15 and October 15. 280,830 280,830

2007 Series B (Federally Taxable): Issued $251,025 in
October 2007 at 5.29% due in varying installments through
October 15, 2009. Interest paid each April 15 and October 15. 251,025 251,025
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Debt

May 31
2009 2008

(ln Thousands)
Mainline Debt (continued)
2008 Series A Subordinate (Subseries A-l): Issued $176,565 in

April 2008 at 4.125% to 5.00%, due in varying installments
through June 1, 2038. Interest paid each June 1 and
December 1. $ 176,565 $ 176,565

2008 Series A Subordinate (Subseries A-2 Federally Taxable):
Issued $68,290 in April 2008 at 3.74% to 6.41%, due in
varying installments through June 1,2022. Interest paid each
June 1 and December 1. 68,290 68,290

2008 Series B Multi-Modal: Issued $402,000 in May 2008 at a
variable rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1st of
each month) due in varying installments through December 1,
2038. 402,000 402,000

2008 Series A Multi-Modal Refunding: Issued $233,455 in
May 2008 at a variable rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly,
paid the 1a of each month) due in varying installments
through December 1, 2022. 221,705 233,455

2008 Series B Subordinate (Subseries B-2 Federally Taxable):
Issued $233,905 in July 2008 at 5.00% to 7.47% due in
varying installments through June 1, 2036. Interest paid each
June 1 and December 1. 233,905 -

2008 Series C Multi-Modal Revenue: Issued $50,000 in
August 2008 at a variable rate (based on SIFMA, reset
weekly, paid the 1st of each month) due in varying
installments through June 1, 2038. 50,000 -

2008 Series C Subordinate (Subseries C-4 Federally Taxable):
Issued $411,110 in October 2008 at 4.00% to 6.25% due in
varying installments through June 1, 2038. Interest paid each
June I and December 1 (Subseries C-3 interest due on
July 31, 2009). 411,110 -

2009 A Subordinate: Issued $308,035 in January 2009 at 3.00%
to 5.00% due in varying installments through June 1, 2039.
Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 308,035 -

Total Mainline debt payable 3,753,590 2,800,035
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6. Debt (continued)

May 31
2009 2008

(In Thousands)
Oil Company Franchise Tax Debt
1998 Series A Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue: Issued

$310,475 in August 1998 at 3.85% to 5.50%, partially
defeased in July 2003 and November 2006, due in varying
installments through December 1, 2023. Interest paid each
June 1 and December 1. $ 18,505 $ 21,665

1998 Series B Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue: Issued
$228,405 in August 1998 at 3.85% to 5.25%, partially
defeased in July 2003 and November 2006, due in varying
installments through December 1, 2027. Interest paid each
June l and December l. 28,845 30,600

2003 Series A Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue: Issued
$124,730 in August 2003 at 2.50% to 5.25%, partially
defeased in November 2006, due in varying installments
through December 1, 2024. Interest paid each June 1 and
December 1. 53,405 57,355

2003 Series B Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue: Issued
$197,955 in August 2003 at 2.38% to 5.50%, partially
defeased in November 2006, due in varying installments
through December 1, 2032. Interest paid each June 1 and
December 1. 69,910 73,305

2003 Series C Oil Company Franchise Tax Multi-Modal
Revenue: Issued $160,000 in August 2003 at a variable rate,
were converted to a fixed rate of 5.00% in May 2008, due in
varying installments through December 1, 2032. Interest paid
each June 1 and December 1. 160,000 160,000

2006 Series A Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding:
Issued $98,705 in November 2006 at 5.00%, due in varying
installments through December 1, 2023. Interest paid each
June 1 and December 1. 98,705 98,705

2006 Series B Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding:
Issued $141,970 in November 2006 at 3.75% to 5.00%, due in
varying installments through December 1,2031. Interest paid
each June 1 and December 1. 141,670 141,970

Total Oil Company Franchise Tax debt payable 571,040 583,600
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6. Debt (continued)

May 31
2009 2008

(In Thousands)
Motor License Registration Fee Debt
2005 Series A: Issued $234,135 in August 2005 at 3.25% to

5.25%, due in varying installments through July 15, 2030.
Interest paid each January 15 and July 15. $ 216,280 $ 221,780

2005 Series B, C, and D: Issued $231,425 in August 2005 at a
variable rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 15_ of
each month) due in varying installments through July 15,
2041. 231_425 231 _425

Total Motor License Registration Fee debt payable 447_705 453_205
Total debt payable 4,772,335 3,836,840
Unamortized premium 50,337 56,906
Unamortized deferred loss on refundings (65_855) (70,904)
Total debt, net of unamortized premium and deferred loss on

refundings 4,756,817 3,822,842
Less current portion 709_715 67_555
Debt, noncurrent portion $ 4_047_102 $ 3,755,287

As disclosed in Note 3, the Commission's Trust Indentures impose certain restrictions and

requirements. The Commission's Trust Indenture for the Series 2008 A Turnpike Subordinate

Revenue Bonds imposes that the Commission establish and maintain schedules of tolls for traffic

over the System as required by the Senior Indenture, and in addition, the amount paid into the

General Reserve Fund of the Senior Indenture in each fiscal year and for each Commission

Payment, will be at least sufficient to provide funds in an amount not less than: (1) 115% of the

Annual Debt Service for each fiscal year on account of all outstanding Revenue Bonds and

Revenue Bonds Parity Obligations; (2) 100% of the Annual Debt Service for such fiscal year on

account of all Outstanding Guaranteed Bonds, Guaranteed Bonds Parity Obligations and
Subordinated Indebtedness; and (3) any payment by the Commission required by the Subordinate

Indenture for restoring deficiency in the Debt Service Fund within an eighteen (18) month

period.

The Amended and Restated Trust Indenture of 2001 requires that tolls be adequate to provide

funds to cover current expenses and (1) provide funds in an amount not less than the greater of

130% of the maximum principal and interest requirements for the succeeding year, or (2) 100%

of the maximum principal and interest payments for the next fiscal year plus the amount required

for maintenance of the Turnpike System as determined by the Commission's Consulting
Engineer. If any deficiencies occur, the Commission is authorized to raise tolls accordingly.
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6. Debt (continued)

The Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds are secured by a pledge and assignment by the
Commission to the Trustee of: (1) all proceeds from the Commission's allocation of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Oil Company Franchise Tax; (2) the Commission's right to
receive its allocation of the Oil Company Franchise Tax and any portion of the allocation
actually received by the Commission; (3) all monies deposited into accounts or funds created by
the 1998 Indenture, as supplemented; and, (4)all investment earnings on all monies held in
accounts and funds established by the 1998 Indenture.

The 1998 Indenture requires the Commission to petition the General Assembly of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for additional funds in the event that the Commission's
allocation of the Oil Company Franchise Tax is inadequate to pay maximum principal and
interest payments for the succeeding year.

Pursuant to Section 20 of Act 3, the Commonwealth appropriates $28,000,000 of Act 3 revenues
to the Commission annually. The $28,000,000 is payable to the Commission in the amount of
$2,333,333 per month. The Registration Fee Revenue Bonds are secured by a pledge and
assignment by the Commission to the Trustee of any receipts, revenues and other moneys
received by the Trustee on or after the date of the Indenture from the Commission's allocation of
Act 3 revenues and any income earned on any fund or account established pursuant to the
Indenture.

Changes in debt are as follows:

Balance at Balance at Due Within

June 1,2008 Additions Reductions May31,2009 One Year
(In Thousands)

Mainline debt 5 2,800,035 $1,003,050 $ 49,495 $ 3,753,590 $ 690,955
Oil Company Franchise Tax debt 583,600 - 12,560 571,040 13,075
Motor License Registration Fee debt 453r205 - 5_500 447_705 5,685

3,836,840 1,003,050 67,555 4,772,335 709,715
Premium (discount) 56,906 (2,151 ) 4,418 50,337 -

Less: deferred loss on refundings 70,904 - 5,049 65,855 -
$ 3,822,842 $1,000,899 $ 66,924 $ 4,756,817 $ 709,715
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6. Debt (continued)

Balance at Balance at Due Within

June 1_2007 Additions Reductions May 31_ 2008 OneYear
(In Thousands)

Mainline debt $1,655,270 $ 1,412,165 $ 267,400 $ 2,800,035 $ 49,495
Oil Company Franchise Tax debt 594,945 - 11,345 583,600 12,560
Motor License Registration Fee debt 458,535 - 5,330 453,205 5,500

2,708,750 1,412,165 284,075 3,836,840 67,555
Premium (discount) 49,005 11,068 3,167 56,906 -
Less: deferred loss on refundings 73,622 2,187 4,905 70,904

$ 2,684,133 $ 1,421,046 $ 282,337 $ 3,822,842 $ 67,555

The issuance of new debt is conducted in accordance with the terms of the applicable Trust
Indenture and approval of the Commissioners.

In October 2007, the Commission issued Series A&B Bond Anticipation Notes in the amounts of
$280,830,000 and $251,025,000, respectively. The 2007 Series Anticipation Notes were issued
primarily to make payments to the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation (PennDOT) in
accordance with Act 44 to fired certain grants to mass transit agencies and various road,
highway, bridge and capital projects of PennDOT. The Series A Anticipation Notes have a
4.00% fixed rate. The Series B Anticipation Notes are federally taxable and were issued at
5.29%.

In April 2008, the Commission issued Series 2008 A (Subseries A-I) Subordinate Bonds in the
amount of $176,565,000 at fixed rates from 4.125% to 5.00% and (Subseries A-2) which are
federally taxable for $68,290,000 at fixed rates from 3.74% to 6.41%. The 2008 A Subordinate
Bonds were issued primarily to make payments to PermDOT in accordance with Act 44 to fund
certain grants to mass transit agencies and various road, highway, bridge and capital projects of
PeunDOT. Also in April 2008, the Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2003 C
were converted from auction rate to 5.00% fixed.

In May 2008, the Commission issued Series 2008 A Multi-Modal Refunding Bonds in the
amount of $233,455,000. The primary purpose of this variable to variable refunding was to
replace the Ambac insured 2006 B&C bonds with the 2008 A bonds which are uninsured,
supported by a JP Morgan Standby Bond Purchase Agreement. The refunding of these bonds
resulted in a deferred loss of $2.2 million that will be amortized over the life of the bonds.
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6. Debt (continued)

In May 2008, the Commission also issued Series 2008 B Multi-Modal Bonds in the amount of
$402,000,000. The 2008 B Series Bonds were issued primarily to provide funds to fmance the
costs of various capital expenditures for the Pennsylvania Turnpike System as set forth in the
Commission's current Ten-Year Capital Plan. The bonds were issued at a variable rate.

In July 2008, the Commission issued $233,905,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds,
Series B of 2008 which bear interest at fixed interest rates. Subseries B-1 of 2008 bonds total

$164,915,000 and consist of: $65,420,000 Serial Bonds maturing June 1, 2030, $48,830,000
5.50% Term Bonds maturing June 1, 2033 and $50,665,000 5.25% Term Bonds maturing June 1,
2036. Subseries B-2 of 2008 bonds total $68,990,000 (federally taxable) and consist of:
$6,565,000 Serial Bonds maturing June 1, 2018 and $62,425,000 7.47% Term Bonds maturing
June 1, 2025. These bonds were issued primarily to finance the costs of making payments to fund
certain grants to mass transit agencies and to fund various road, highway and bridge capital
projects of PennDOT.

In August 2008, the Commission issued $50,000,000 Turnpike Multi-Modal Revenue Bonds,
Series C of 2008 maturing June 1, 2038. These bonds bear interest at a variable rate and were
issued primarily to finance the costs of various capital expenditures to fund the reconstruction of
roadbed and roadway and the widening, replacing and redecking of certain bridges and/or the
rehabilitation of certain interchanges.

In October 2008, the Commission issued $411,110,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds,
Series C of 2008. The bonds consist of Subseries C-1 Subordinate Revenue Bonds issued for

$231,335,000, Subseries C-3 Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes issued for
$102,060,000 and Subseries C-4 Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (federally
taxable) issued for $77,715,000. These bonds were issued primarily to make payments to
PennDOT in accordance with Act 44 to fund certain grants to mass transit agencies and various
road, highway, bridge and capital projects of PennDOT.

In January 2009, the Commission issued $308,035,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds,
Series A of 2009. The 2009 A Subordinate Bonds were issued primarily to make payments to
PermDOT in accordance with Act 44 to fund certain grants to mass transit agencies and various
road, highway, bridge and capital projects of PennDOT.
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6. Debt (continued)

In prior years, the Commission defeased certain revenue bonds by placing funds in irrevocable
trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased bonds. Accordingly, the
trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds were not included in the
Commission's financial statements. At May31, 2009 and 2008, the Commission had
$895.5 million and $993.0 million, respectively, of defeased bonds outstanding.

Total debt service requirements subsequent to May 31, 2009 are as follows:

Principal
Year Ending May 31 Maturities Interest Total

(ln Thousands)

2010 $ 709,715 $ 160,606 $ 870,321
2011 166,150 141,066 307,216
2012 92,320 135,863 228,183
2013 96,855 132,494 229,349
2014 101,640 128,920 230,560
2015 -2019 569,340 590,078 1,159,418
2020 - 2024 609_525 502,775 1,112,300
2025 - 2029 763,250 359,917 1,123,167
2030-2034 900,565 206,701 1,107,266
2035 - 2039 669,265 50,732 719,997
2040 - 2044 93,710 1,282 94,992

$ 4,772,335 $ 2,410,434 $ 7,182,769

ii
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Debt (continued)

Debt service requirements subsequent to May 31, 2009 related to the Mainline debt are as
follows:

Principal
Year Ending May 31 Maturities Interest Total

(ln Thousands)

2010 $ 690,955 $ 119,702 $ 810,657
2011 146,585 100,909 247,494
2012 71,885 96,594 168,479
2013 75,440 94,190 169,630
2014 79,185 91,644 170,829
2015 - 2019 439,290 421,232 860,522
2020 - 2024 442,755 370,291 813,046
2025 - 2029 550,435 274,416 824,851
2030 - 2034 672,960 176,839 849,799
2035 - 2039 564,870 44,942 609,812
2040 - 2044 19,230 481 19_711

$ 3,753,590 $1,791_240 $ 5,544,830

Debt service requirements subsequent to May 31, 2009 related to Oil Company Franchise Tax
debt are as follows:

Principal
Year Ending May 31 Maturities Interest Total

(ln Thousands)

2010 $ 13,075 $ 27,691 $ 40,766
2011 13,685 27,150 40,835
2012 14,340 26,521 40,861
2013 15,020 25,868 40,888
2014 15,735 25,168 40,903
2015 - 2019 91,015 113,920 204,935
2020 - 2024 116,410 89,190 205,600
2025 - 2029 147,760 57,276 205,036
2030 - 2034 144,000 17_984 161_984

$ 571,040 $ 410,768 $ 981,808
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6. Debt (continued)

Debt service requirements subsequent to May 31, 2009 related to Motor License Registration Fee
debt are as follows:

Principal
Year Ending May 31 Maturities Interest Total

(In Thousands)

2010 $ 5,685 $ 13,213 $ 18,898
2011 5,880 13,007 18,887
2012 6,095 12,748 18,843

: 2013 6,395 12,436 18,831
2014 6,720 12,108 18,828
2015 - 2019 39,035 54,926 93,961
2020 - 2024 50,360 43,294 93,654
2025 - 2029 65,055 28,225 93,280
2030 - 2034 83,605 11,878 95,483
2035 - 2039 104,395 5,790 110,185
2040 - 2044 74,480 801 75,281

$ 447,705 $ 208,426 $ 656,131
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Debt (continued)

Swap Payments and Associated Debt

swap payments and related debt service requirements subsequent to May 3 l, 2009, assuming
current interest rates remain the same for the term of the agreements are as follows:

Variable-Rate Bonds Fixed

Principal Interest Rate
Year Ending May 31 Maturities Interest Swaps, Net Total

(In Thousands)

2010 $ 15,540 $ 6,717 $ 33,516 $ 55,773
2011 13,385 6,535 32,992 52,912
2012 13,785 6,366 32,508 52,659
2013 14,405 6,190 32,005 52,600
2014 2,110 6,098 31,749 39,957
2015 - 2019 213,360 26,176 149,287 388,823
2020 - 2024 117,080 20,240 132,916 270,236
2025 - 2029 160,305 18,108 120,781 299,194
2030 - 2034 238,195 13,990 87,938 340,123
2035 - 2039 278,335 7,116 40,090 325,541
2040 - 2044 74,480 801 3,158 78,439

$ 1,140,980 $ 118,337 $ 696,940 $ 1,956,257

Fixed-Rate Bonds Variable

Principal Interest Rate
Year Ending May 31 Maturities Interest Swaps, Net Total

(In Thousands)

2010 $ - $ 13,901 $ (7,796) $ 6,105
2011 - 13,901 (8,590) 5,311
2012 - 13,901 (8,577) 5,324
2013 - 13,901 (8,564) 5,337
2014 - 13,901 (8,550) 5,351
2015-2019 - 69,504 (42,514) 26,990
2020 - 2024 42,855 68,500 (40,466) 70,889
2025-2029 151,360 41,441 (20,051) 172,750
2030 - 2034 83,800 10,694 (5,250) 89,244
2035 - 2039 - - (703) (703)

$ 278,015 $ 259,644 5(151,061) $ 386,598
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6. Debt (continued)

Swap Payments and Associated Debt (continued)

As rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary. Please refer
to Note 8 Commitments and Contingencies - Interest Rate Swaps for additional information
pertaining to the individual swaps.

7. Retirement Benefits

Substantially all employees of the Commission participate in the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania State Employees' Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
public employee retirement system that was established under the provisions of Public Law 858,
No. 331.

Membership in the System is mandatory for most Commission employees. The System provides
retirement, death, and disability benefits, which were established by and can be amended
according to statute. Retirement benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Employees who
retire at age 60 with three years of service or with 35 years of service if under age 60 are entitled
to an unreduced annual retirement benefit.

Article 11 of the Pennsylvania Constitution provides the General Assembly the authority to
establish or amend benefit provisions. Act 2001-9, signed into law on May 17, 2001, established
Class AA membership whereby, generally, annual full retirement benefits for electing active
members is 2.5% of the member's highest three-year average salary (final average salary)
multiplied by years of service. Cormaaission employees hired after June 30, 2001 are Class AA
members. Members hired on or before June 30, 2001 had the option, but were not required, to
elect Class AA membership. Those members not electing Class AA membership are considered
Class A. The general annual benefit for full retirement for Class A members is 2% of the
member's final average salary multiplied by years of service.

Covered Class A and Class AA employees are required by statute to contribute to the System at a
rate of 5% and 6.25%, respectively, of their gross pay. Employees' contributions are recorded in
individually identified accounts, which are also credited with interest, calculated quarterly to
yield 4% per annum, as mandated by statute. Accumulated employee contributions and credited
interest vest immediately and are returned to the employee upon termination of service if the
employee is not eligible for other benefits.
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7. Retirement Benefits (continued)

Participating agency contributions, including those for the Commission, are also mandated by
statute and are based upon an actuarially determined percentage of gross pay that is necessary to
provide the System with assets sufficient to meet the benefits to be paid to System members.

The Commission's retirement contribution, as a percentage of covered payroll, for all Class A
and Class AA members whose normal retirement age is any age upon accumulation of 35 years
of eligibility points or age 60, with three years of service is as follows:

Year Ended June 30 Class A Class AA

2009 2.64% 3.29%
2008 2.63% 3.28%
2007 2.59% 3.23%

The Commission's required contributions and percentage contributed are as follows:

Commission

Required
Year Ended May 31 Contribution % Contributed

(In millions)

2009 $ 3.8 100%
2008 $ 3.7 100%
2007 $ 3.3 100%

A copy of the System's annual financial statements can be obtained by writing to: State
Employees' Retirement System, 30 North Third Street, P.O. Box 1147, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
17108-1147.
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8. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

The Commission is a defendant in a number of legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally
incidental to routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted
against the Commission arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, and
condemnation proceedings. Tort claims against the Commission are generally barred by
sovereign immunity, except as waived by statute. Further, to the extent waived, damages for any
loss are limited by sovereign immunity to $250,000 for each person and $1,000,000 for each
accident. Based on the current status of all of the Commission's legal proceedings, it is the
opinion of Commission management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the
Commission's financial position.

Open Purchase Order Commitments

The Commission had open purchase order commitments of $1,166,707,132 and $1,133,215,453
at May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Lease and Funding Agreement Between the Commission and PennDOT

On October 14, 2007, the Commission and PennDOT entered into a Lease and Funding
Agreement (the Agreement) as required under the terms of Act 44. The Agreement provides for
an option to the Commission to lease the portion of Interstate 80 located in the Commonwealth
from PennDOT. In addition, the Agreement contains certain provisions set forth in Act 44,
including provisions dealing with the terms and conditions of the conversion of Interstate 80 into
a toll road (the Conversion), subject to the requisite approval of the Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA), and the operation, maintenance, repair and improvement of Interstate
80. The term of the Agreement is 50 years.

The Agreement grants the unilateral option to the Commission to effectuate the Conversion at
any time before the third anniversary of the Agreement (the Conversion Period), provided that
the Commission may elect to extend such Conversion Period for three additional one-year
periods.

Also, the Agreement commits the Commission to make certain payments to PennDOT. The
Commission made payments of $850 million and $750 million (recorded as nonoperating
expense) in fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008, respectively. The Commission will make the scheduled
payment of $900 million in fiscal year 2010. Thereafter, the scheduled annual payments
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Lease and Funding Agreement Between the Commission and PennDOT (continued)

•increase by 2.50% for each fiscal year for the remainder of the 50-year term, with certain credits
for Interstate 80 Cost Savings once Conversion has occurred. All such cash payments are due in
equal quarterly installments.

Upon Conversion, the cash component of the scheduled annual payment obligation will be offset
by an amount equal to $116,985,856 per fiscal year, reflecting cost-savings to the
Commonwealth's Motor License Fund if Interstate 80 becomes a tolled facility (Interstate 80
Cost Savings). Under Act 44, the Interstate 80 Cost Savings credit (which will be prorated for the
fiscal year during which Conversion occurs), increases by 4.00% for each fiscal year thereafter.

If the Conversion does not occur by October 14, 2010 (such date may be extended at the option
of the Commission for up to three (3) one-year extension periods), Act 44 provides that the
scheduled annual payment obligation will be reduced to $450 million per fiscal year beginning in
fiscal 2011.

The payment obligations of the Commission under the Agreement are subordinate obligations of
the Commission, payable from amounts in the General Reserve Fund only as permitted by any
financing documents, financial covenants, liquidity policies, or other agreements in effect of the
Commission. However, the Commission is required by the terms of the Lease to fix and adjust
tolls at levels that will generate revenues (together with other available moneys) sufficient to
pay, among other things, amounts to PennDOT pursuant to the Agreement when due and other
obligations of the Commission.

Interest Rate Swaps

On December 18, 2008, the Commission entered into two forward starting swap agreements with
two counterparties (Deutsche Bank and Goldman Sachs). Each swap agreement had a notional
amount of $150,000,000 with an effective date of June 1, 2010 and a termination date of June 1,
2039. The Commission entered into these forward starting interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate variations and interest rate costs with respect to the Series 2009 A and
Series 2010 A Mainline Revenue Bonds. The Commission issued its Series 2009 A revenue

bonds in June 2009 and expects to issue its Series 2010 A revenue bonds in June 2010.
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Interest Rate Swaps (continued)

Following is a summary of the swaps in place as of May 31, 2009. These swap agreements
contain certain risks as described below.

Receivable Payable Fair Value
Final Floating Fixed Floating Fixed (to) from

Associated Debt Notional Value Maturit_ Rate Index °l Rate Rate Index °) Rate Counterparty

SedesU2001 $ 127,365,000 12/01/2019 67.00%ofl-monthLIBOg 4.21% $(18,317,424)
42,455,000 12/01/2019 (6,106,133)

Series A 2002 72,066,250 12/01/2030 67.00% of I-month LIBOR 4.40% ( 15,710,I 66)

144,070,000 12/01/2030 (31,405,159)
72,066,250 1210112030 (15,710,327)

SedesU2001 andA2002 107,784,000 12/01/2030 60.08%oflO-yearLIBOR 67.00%of 1-month 4,726,937

Constant maturity 107,784.000 12/01/2030 LIBOR 4,726,937
107,784,000 12/01/2030 4,726,937
134,733,000 12/01/2030 5,909,336

Series B 2002 12,367,500 12/01/2012 SIFMA 4.54% (794,720)
24,735,000 12/01/2012 (1,589,232)

12,367,500 12/0112012 (794,840)

Series C 2003 48,000,000 12/01/2032 63.00% of I-month LIBOR SIFMA (5,550,614)
112,000,000 12101/2032 plus 20 basis points (12,951,456)

Series C 2003 80,000,000 11115/2032 60.15% of 10-year LIBOR 67.00% of l-month 2,433,721
Constant maturity 80,000,000 I I/I 5/2032 LIBOR 2,433,721

Series 2005 57,860,000 07/1512041 SIFMA 4.20% (6,526,302)
57,845,000 07/15/2041 (6,524,842)
57,860,000 07/15/2041 (6,521,494)
57,860,000 07/15/2041 (6,521,494)

Series A 2006 118,015,000 12/01/2026 4.19% SIFMA 11,529,106

Series 2008 100,000,000 12/01/2038 SIFMA 4.89% (22,102,083)
100,000,000 12/01/2038 (22,100,571 )
100,000,000 12/01/2038 (22,102,073 )

Series A 2009 forward

starting 150,000,000 06101/2039 99.80% of3-month LIBOR SIFMA 9,695,003
Series A 2009 forward

starting 150,000,000 06/0112039 99.68% of 3-month LIBOR SIFMA 9,593,384

c*) 1-month LIBOR was 0.32% at May 3 I, 2009.

3-month LIBOR was 0.66% at May 31,2009.
10-year LIBOR was 3.78% at May 3 I, 2009.
SIFMA was 0.39% at May 31,2009.
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Interest Rate Swaps (continued)

• Credit Risk - The Commission is exposed to credit risk for swaps that have positive fair
values. The Commission was exposed to credit risk with respect to the Series U of 2001
and A of 2002 constant maturity, the Series C of 2003 constant maturity, the Series A of
2006 and Series A of 2009 forward starting swaps at May 31, 2009. However, should
interest rates change and the fair values of the other swaps become positive, the
Commission would have additional credit risk exposure.

The Commission had eleven counterparties at May 31, 2009. The credit ratings of the
swap providers as of May 31, 2009 were AAA to A and Aaa to A2 by Standard& Poor's
and Moody's, respectively. To mitigate the exposure to credit risk, the swap agreements
include collateral provisions in the event of downgrades to the swap counterparties' credit
ratings. Collateral would be posted with a third-party custodian and would be in the form
of cash, U.S. Treasury Obligations, or U.S. Government Agency Securities.

• Interest Rate Risk - The Commission is exposed to variable interest rates with respect to
the fixed-to-variable swap agreement associated with the Series A of 2006 Revenue
Bonds. Additionally, the Commission will be exposed to variable interest rates if the
swap provider for the variable-to-fixed swap agreement defaults or if a variable-to-fixed
swap is terminated.

• Basis Risk - The underlying variable rates for the Commission's Series U of 2001 and
Series A of 2002 bonds are based on Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Association (SIFMA) while the Series U of 2001 and Series A 2002 swaps are based on a
percentage of LIBOR. Therefore, the Commission is exposed to basis risk to the extent
SIFMA exceeds 67% of one-month LIBOR.

The Commission is also exposed to basis risk related to Series C of 2003 and the constant
maturity swap agreements. The exposure for the agreement associated with the Series C
2003 is to the extent that SIFMA exceeds 63% of one-month LIBOR plus 20 basis points.
The exposure for the Series C 2003 constant maturity swap is to the extent 67% of
one-month L1BOR exceeds 60.15% of 10-year LIBOR. The exposure for Series U of
2001 and Series A of 2002 Revenue Bonds constant maturity swap is to the extent 67%
of one-month LIBOR exceeds 60.08% of 10-year LIBOR. The risk for the Series A
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Interest Rate Swaps (continued)

of 2009 (Deutsche Bank) is to the extent SIFMA exceeds 99.80% of 3-month LIBOR and
the Series A (Goldman Sachs) of 2009 is to the extent SIFMA exceeds 99.68% of 3-
month LIBOR.

• Termination Risk - The swap agreements may be terminated due to a number of
circumstances and the Commission retains the option to terminate the swaps at any time.
If a swap agreement is terminated (by either party), the respective variable-rate bond
would no longer carry a synthetic fixed interest rate. Also, if at the time of termination,
the swap had a negative fair value, the Commission would be liable to the swap
counterparty for a liability equal to the swap's fair value. It is the Commission's intent to
maintain the swap transactions for the life of the financing.

9. Related Party Transactions

The Commission incurred costs of $36.4 million and $35.5 million related to its use of the
Commonwealth's State Police in patrolling the Turnpike System in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

10. Postemployment Benefits

Plan Description

The Commission maintains a welfare plan program (the Plan), one purpose of which is to
provide benefits to eligible retirees and their dependents. The Plan is a single employer, defined
benefit plan. The Plan's financial statements are not included in the financial statements of a
public employee retirement system. The Plan issues a stand-alone financial report, which can be
obtained by contacting the Commission's Accounting Department.

Plan benefit provisions and employee contribution rates are established and may be amended by
the Commission. The Plan provides certain postemployment medical, prescription drug, dental
and vision benefits to management employees who have reached 20 years of service and are
under age 60; benefit eligibility changes from 20 to 10 years for retirees 60 years of age or older.
The Plan provides certain postemployment medical and prescription drug benefits to union
employees who have reached 20 years of service and are under age 60; benefit eligibility
changes from 20 to 10 years for retirees 60 years of age or older.
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10. Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Plan Description (continued)

The Commission established The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Retiree Medical Trust to
provide these postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). The Trust is administered
by PNC Bank, which acts as a third-party administrator and administers the Trust under an
administrative agreement with the Commission.

Funding Policy

The Commission approved a Retiree Medical Trust Funding Policy whereby the Commission
anticipates approving an annual contribution to the Trust in the amount of the Annual Required
Contribution as determined by the Commission's actuary during the approval of each Operating
Budget.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Asset

The Commission implemented Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, prospectively during fiscal 2008 and no net OPEB obligation or asset was carried
forward from prior accounting periods. Therefore, the Commission's annual OPEB cost
(expense) for fiscal 2008 was equal to its annual required contribution (ARC) of $19,455,000.
The ARC is actuarially calculated in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45
and represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
costs each year and the amortization of the actuarial accrued liabilities over a period not to
exceed thirty years.

The Commission made contributions towards the ARC totaling $20,549,297 in fiscal 2008 which
resulted in a net OPEB asset of $1,094,297, which was recorded as an other asset on the balance
sheet at year end. The contributions towards the ARC consisted of $14,000,000 transferred to the
Retiree Medical Trust plus $7,612,262 paid to retiree medical benefit providers for current
premiums offset by $1,062,965 in contributions from retirees. The effect of adopting GASB
Statement No. 45 was a $12.9 million increase in OPEB cost (expense) for fiscal 2008.

The ARC for fiscal 2009 was $27,835,000. The Commission made contributions towards the
ARC totaling $29,033,699. The contributions towards the ARC consisted of $28,000,000
transferred to the Retiree Medical Trust plus $2,167,629 paid to retiree medical benefit providers
for current premiums offset by $1,133,930 in contributions from retirees. The contributions were
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10. Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Asset (continued)

offset by a $16,675 ARC adjustment which resulted in an ending OPEB asset of $2,276,321,
which was recorded as an other asset on the balance sheet at year end and a net OPEB cost of
$27,851,675 for fiscal 2009. The following chart summarizes the components of the
Commission's annual OPEB cost for the year ended May 31, 2009 and 2008 and the amount
contributed to the Plan.

30-Year Level
Dollar

Amortization
of the

Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued Mid-Year

Fiscal Year Normal Liability Contribution ARC Annual Actual Percentage Ending Net
Ended May 31 t Cost (UAAL} Interest Adjustment OPEB Cost Conha'bufions Contributed OPEB Asset

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

2009 $ 6,373 $ 20,391 $1,071 $ 17 $ 27,852 $ 29,034 104.2% $ 2,276
2008 - transition

year $ 4,920 $13,800 $ 735 $ - $19,455 $20,549 105.6% $ 1,094

The ARC and its components (normal cost, UAAL, and mid-year contribution interest) were
obtained from an actuarial valuation, prepared by an independent actuary, as of February 28,
2006 using census data collected as of February 28, 2006 and health care claims for the period
ended February 28, 2006.

Retiree and spouse contribution rates at May 31, 2009 are as follows:

• Management employees and union employees who retired prior to July 1, 1998 and
October 1, 1997, respectively--the retiree/spouse contributes the full cost of coverage
less the Commission's monthly subsidy of $19.28 once the retiree turns 65.

- Union employees who retired on October 1, 1997 or later--the retiree/spouse contributes
the full cost of coverage less the Commission's monthly subsidy of $73.50 when the
retiree or spouse reach age 65.

° Surviving spouses are paying 100% of the premiums, except for surviving spouses of
Management employees who retired after March 1,2001.
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Funding Status and Funding Progress

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage
Fiscal Year Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered of Covered

Ended May 31 Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

2008 - transition
year $ 14,000 $228,067 $214,067 6.1% $118,559 180.6%

2006 $ - $167,785 $167,785 -% $109,022 153.9%

The actuarial value of assets, AAL, and UAAL amounts for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2008
and 2006 in the above chart were obtained from actuarial valuations, prepared by an independent
actuary, as of March 1, 2008 and February 28, 2006, respectively.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, is to present multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The valuation measurements in the above charts result, in part, from estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future and such
actuarially determined estimates are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Also, the valuation
measurements are based, in part, on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the
substantive plan at the time of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the
Commission and the plan members through the respective valuation dates. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations. Following is a summary of the actuarial methods and
assumptions used in the February 28, 2006 and March 1, 2008 valuations.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued)

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Discount rate 8%
Rate of return on assets 8%
Amortization method Level dollar

Amortization period 30 years (closed)
Asset valuation method Fair value

Prescription
Health Care Trend Medical Drugs Dental Vision

Initial Rate 10% 12% 5% 4%
Ultimate Rate 5% in 2012 5%in 2014 5% 4%
Annual Change 1% decrease 1%decrease NA NA
Cost Incurred costs Incurred costs Incurred costs Incurred costs

Salary increases were not considered as OPEB benefits are not based upon pay.

I1. Self-Insurance

The Commission is exposed to various risks of losses such as theft of, damage to, and destruction

of assets, errors and omissions, third-party torts, injuries to employees, injuries to third parties
due to accidents caused by Commission automobiles, and natural disasters. The Commission has
purchased commercial insurance for all risks of losses, including employee medical benefits,
except for torts, injuries to employees and injuries to third parties due to accidents caused by
Commission automobiles. No settlements exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three
years.

The Commission recorded a liability of $26.8 million and $22.3 million for loss and loss
: adjustment expenses on claims relating to self-insurance that have been incurred but not reported

as of May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. This liability is based on GASB Statement No. 10,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance lssues, which
requires that a liability for claims be recorded if information prior to the issuance of the financial
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The liability is
calculated based on the Commission's past loss experience. The liability was discounted using

0907-1072283-PH 50



i

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

11. Self-Insurance (continued)

a rate of 4.05% and 3.59% for May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The liability includes
amounts for claims adjustment expense and is net of any salvage and subrogation. Salvage and
subrogation were not material for the years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008. The Commission
believes the liability established is reasonable and appropriate to provide for settlement of losses
and related loss adjustment expenses.

Management believes that its reserve for claims incurred but not reported is determined in
accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices. However, estimating the
ultimate liability is a complex and judgmental process inasmuch as the amounts are based on
management's informed estimates and judgments using data currently available. As additional
experience and data become available regarding claim payments and reporting patterns,
legislative developments and economic conditions, the estimates are revised accordingly and the
impact is reflected currently in the Commission's financial statements.

The following summary provides aggregated information on self-insurance liabilities:

Effects of Effects of
Discount Discount

June 1, as of Incurred Claims Paid Claims as of May 31,
2008 June 1, Current Prior Current Prior May 31, 2009

Liability 2008 Year Years Year Years 2009 Liability
(In Thousands)

Year ended May 31, 2009
Workers' compensation $ 7,070 $1,732 $1,622 $ 2,403 $ 623 $ 2,381 $ 2,099 $ 7,724

Automobile/general tort 15,200 - 96 4,118 24 329 - 19#61
$ 22,270 S 1,732 $1_718 $ 6,521 $ 647 $ 2,710 $ 2,099 $ 26_785

Effects of Effects of
Discount Discount

June 1, as of Incurred Claims Paid Claims as of May 31,
2007 June 1, Current Prior Current Prior May 31, 2008

Liability 2007 Year Years Year Years 2008 Liability
(In Thousands)

Year ended May 31, 2008
Worker_'compensation $ 7,541 $ 2,023 $ 1,218 $ 589 $ 706 $ 1,863 $ 1,732 $ 7,070
Automobile/general ton 11,029 - 40 4,497 20 346 - 15,200

$ I8,570 $ 2,023 $1,258 $ 5,086 $ 726 $ 2,209 $1,732 $ 22,270

The foregoing reflects an adjustment for a deficiency of $6.5 million and $5.1 million for the
fiscal yea(s ended May 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, for prior years' incurred claims that
resulted fi-om a change in estimate as more information became available.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

12. Compensated Absences

Sick leave is earned at a rate of 3.08 hours every two weeks, or ten days per year. Unused sick
leave may be carried over from year to year up to a maximum of 18 days. In November of each
year, employees are reimbursed for all accumulated unused sick leave above the maximum. Sick
leave payouts were $2.0 million and $1.9 million in November 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Vacation leave is earned at varying rates, depending on years of service. Management employees
earn between 4.62 and 8.93 hours every two weeks. Union employees earn between 3.08 and
8.93 hours every two weeks.

Upon termination of employment, all unused sick and vacation leave is paid to the employee. A
summary of changes to compensated absences for the years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008 is as
follows:

Fiscal Year Beginning Ending Due Within
Ended May 31 Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

(ln Thousands)

2009 $ 16,847 $ 12,713 $ 12,652 $ 16,908 $10,108
2008 $ 16,347 $ 12,075 $ 11,575 $ 16,847 $ 9,808

13. Segment Information

The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission consists of three segment types. These segments are
based on the types of revenues and the associated bond issues. The Mainline consists of income
and expenses directly associated with the operations of the toll road. In addition, all bonds
pledged against this revenue source are included in this segment.

The Oil Company Franchise segment consists of revenues received from the Commission's
allocation of the Commonwealth's Oil Company Franchise Tax. This revenue is pledged against
the associated 1998 Series A and B Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, the 2003 Series
A, B, and C Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds and the 2006 Series A and B Oil
Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds.

The Motor License segment consists of an annual income of $28 million which has been
provided to the Commission pursuant to Section 20 of Act 3 of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania. This income is pledged against the Registration Fee Revenue Bonds 2005 Series.
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Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Balance Sheet

May 31, 2009
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total
(In Thousands)

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 118,623 $ 28,425 $ 692 $ 147,740
Short-term investments 2,031 5,230 903 8,164
Accounts receivable 595 - - 595
Accrued interest receivable 152 1,676 201 2,029
Inventories 19,144 - - 19,144
Restricted current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 378,475 25,864 40,056 444,395
Short-term investments 69,535 16,449 - 85,984
Accounts receivable 30,100 5,635 736 36,471
Accrued interest receivable 602 438 128 1,168

Total current assets 619,257 83,717 42,716 745,690

Noncurrent ass ets:
Long-term investments:

Long-term investments unrestricted 14,546 163,350 22,182 200,078
Long-term investments restricted 75,238 18,356 17,547 111,141

Total long-term investments 89,784 181,706 39,729 311,219

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 204,665 - - 204,665
Assets under construction 1,229,835 - - 1,229,835

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 742,815 - - 742,815
Improvements other than buildings 60,322 - - 60,322
Equipment 401,944 - - 401,944
Infrastructure 5,199,598 - - 5,199,598

7,839,179 - - 7,839,179
Less accumulated depreciation 3,747,739 - - 3,747,739

4,091,440 - - 4,091,440
Other assets:

Other assets 2,332 - - 2,332
Deferred issuance costs 31,690 11,884 4,606 48,180

Total other assets 34,022 11,884 4,606 50,512
Total noncurrent assets 4,215,246 193,590 44r335 4,453,171
Total assets $ 4,834,503 $ 277,307 $ 87,051 $ 5,198,861

Continued on the following page.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Balance Sheet (continued)

May 31, 2009
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(In Thousands)
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities $ 179,763 $ 24,106 $ 13,799 $ 217,668

Current portion of debt 690,955 13,075 5,685 709,715
Unearned income 28_555 - - 28_555

Total current liabilities 899,273 37,181 19,484 955,938

Noncurrentliabilities:
Debt, less current portion, net of

unamortized premium/discount 3,047,807 564,091 435,204 4,047,102
Other noncurrent liabilities 397660 191 - 39_851

Total noncurrent liabilities 3_087_467 564_282 435,204 4_086_953
Total liabilities 3,986,740 601,463 454,688 5,042,891

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 2,228,250 (553,001) (411,371) 1,263,878

Restricted for certain construction

and maintenance purposes - 30,170 19,756 49,926
Unrestricted (1_380,487) 198_675 23,978 (1_157_834)

Total net assets 847_763 (324_156) (367_637) 155_970
Total liabilities and net assets $ 4,834_503 $ 277_307 $ 87_051 $ 5_198,861
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended May 31, 2009
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(ln Thousands)
Operating revenues:

Net fares $ 615,604 $ - $ - $ 615,604
Other 177904 38 1 177943

633,508 38 1 633,547
Operating expenses:

Cost of services 384,261 7,074 1,229 393,364
Depreciation 2377108 - - 2377108

6217369 77874 1_229 630_472
Operating income (loss) 12,139 (7,836) (1,228) 3,075

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Oil company franchise tax revenues - 57,379 - 57,379
Motor license registration fee revenue - - 28,000 28,000
Investment earnings 12,869 11,481 3,322 27,672
Other nonoperating revenues 660 - - 660
Act 44 payments to PennDOT (850,000) - - (850,000)
Interest and bond expenses (144,457) (241952) " (22,144) (191,553)

(9807928) 437908 97178 (9277842)
Change in net assets before capital

contributions (968,789) 36,072 7,950 (924,767)
Capital contributions 107869 901 - 117770
Change in net assets (957,920) 36,973 7,950 (912,997)

Net assets at beginning of year 1,207,136 59,084 (197,253) 1,068,967
Asset transfers 598,547 (420_213) (178_334) -
Net assets at end of year $ 847,763 $(324_156) $ (367,637) $ 155,970
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended May 31, 2009
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(In Thousands)
Operating activities
Cash received from customer tolls and

deposits $ 629,760 $ $ - $ 629,760
Cash payments for goods and services (245,187) (6,858) (901) (252,946)
Cash payments to employees (134,415) (852) (209) (135,476)
Cash received from other operating

activities 12,900 38 1 12_939
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities 263,058 (7,672) (1,109) 254,277

Investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of

investments 328,198 326,934 125,600 780,732
Interest received on investments 9,737 12,550 4,056 26,343
Purchases of investrnents (367,403) (219,041) (78,745) _665,189)
Net cash (used in) provided by

investing activities (29,468) 120,443 50,911 141,886

Capital and related financing
activities

Capital grants received 11,312 1,272 - 12,584
Construction and acquisition of capital

assets (333,204) (153,349) 02,007) (528,560)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,225 - 1,225
Payments for bond expenses (1,773) (135) (374) (2,282)
Payments for redemption of debt (49,495) (12,560) (5,500) (67,555)
Interest paid on debt (110,261) (21,658) (21,524) (153,443)

Proceeds from new debt 1,003_050 - 1_003,050
Net cash provided by (used in) capital

and related financing activities 520,854 (186,430) (69,405) 265,019

Continued on the following page.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)i

Year Ended May 31, 2009
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(In Thousands)
Noncapital financing activities
Cash payments to PennDOT $(850,000) $ - $ - $(850,000)
Cash proceeds from motor license grant - 28,000 28,000
Cash proceeds from oil company

franchise tax - 57r379 - 57_379
Net cash (used in) provided by

noneapital f'mancingactivities (850,000) 57_379 28_000 (7641621)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash

equivalents (95,556) (16,280) 8,397 (103,439)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 592_654 70_569 32,351 695_574

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year $ 497,098 $ 54,289 $ 40,748 $ 592_135

Continued on the following page - see accompanying schedule of reconciliation.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Year Ended May 31, 2009
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(In Thousands)

Reconciliation of operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities

Operating income (loss) $ 12,139 $ (7,836) $ (1,228) $ 3,075
Adjustments to reconcile operating

income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 237,108 - 237,108
Change in operating assets and

liabilities:
Accounts receivable (641) - (641)
Inventories (3,772) - - (3,772)
Other assets (939) - - (939)

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 17,185 171 119 17,475

Other noncurrent liabilities 1,978 (7) - 1_971
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities $ 263_058 $ (7_672) $ (1_109) $ 254,277

Noncash activities
Increase in fair value of investments $ 3_096 $ 141 $ 155 $ 3_392

Amortization of bond premium $ 2,759 $ 940 $ 719 $ 4,418

Amortization of deferred refunding loss $ (3,555) $ (563) $ (931) $ (5,049)
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Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Balance Sheet

May 31, 2008
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(In Thousands)
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 121,032 $ 18,452 $ 3,792 $ 143,276
Short-term investments 8,624 18,854 - 27,478
Accounts receivable 1,038 - - 1,038
Accrued interest receivable 285 1,434 183 1,902
Inventories 15,372 - - 15,372
Restricted current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 471,622 52,117 28,559 552,298
Short-term investments 63,282 65,270 - 128,552
Accounts receivable 30,509 6,005 - 36,514
Accrued interest receivable 304 1_563 914 2_781

Total current assets 712,068 163,695 33,448 909,211

Noncurrent assets:
Long-term investments unrestricted 24,149 139,265 18,032 181,446
Long-term investments restricted 23,123 88,076 69,420 180,619

Total long-term investments 47,272 227,341 87,452 362,065

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 181,846 - - 181,846
Assets under construction 953,763 264,462 128,126 1,346,351

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 697,816 - - 697,816
Improvements other than buildings 59,482 - - 59,482
Equipment 397,477 - - 397,477
Infrastructure 4_613,052 - - 4,613,052

6,903,436 264,462 128,126 7,296,024
Less accumulated depreciation 3,529,195 - - 31529_195

3,374,241 264,462 128,126 3,766,829
Other assets:

Other assets 1,433 - - 1,433
Deferred issuance costs 20,196 121441 4r749 37r386

Total other assets 211629 121441 4,749 38,819
Total noncurrent assets 3r443,142 504,244 220,327 4,167,713
Total assets $ 4,155,210 $ 667,939 $ 253,775 $ 5,076_924

Continued on the following page.
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Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Balance Sheet (continued)

May 31, 2008
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(In Thousands)
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities $ 97,867 $ 18,554 $ 4,851 $ 121,272

Current portion of debt 49,495 12,560 5,500 67,555
Unearned income 25,963 - - 25,963

Total current liabilities 173,325 31,114 10,351 214,790

Noncurrent liabilities:

Debt, less current portion, net of
unamortized premium/discount 2,737,067 577,543 440,677 3,755,287

Other noneurrent liabilities 37,682 198 - 37,880

Total noncurrent liabilities 2,774,749 577,741 440,677 3,793,167
Total liabilities 2,948,074 608,855 451,028 4,007,957

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 1,722,882 (145,876) (249,986) 1,327,020

Restricted for certain construction

and maintenance purposes - 26,955 30,726 57,681

Unrestricted (515,746) 178,005 22,007 (315,734)
Total net assets 1,207,136 59,084 (197,253) 1,068,967
Total liabilities and net assets $ 4,155,210 $ 667,939 $ 253,775 $ 5,076,924
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended May 31, 2008
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(In Thousands)
Operating revenues:

Net fares $ 598,926 $ - $ - $ 598,926

Other 21,279 - - 21_279
620,205 - - 620,205

Operating expenses:
Cost of services 337,352 35,340 267 372,959

Depreciation 193,696 - - 193,696
531,048 35,340 267 566,655

Operating income (loss) 89,157 (35,340) (267) 53,550

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Oil company franchise tax revenues - 60,592 - 60,592
Motor license registration fee

revenue - - 28,000 28,000

Investment earnings 22,495 22,329 5,664 50,488
Other nonoperating expenses (135) - - (135)
Act 44 payments to PennDOT (750,000) - - (750,000)
Interest and bond expenses (96,550) (28,903) (20,797) (146,250)

(824,190) 54,018 12,867 (757,305)
Change in net assets before capital

contributions (735,033) 18,678 12,600 (703,755)
Capital contributions 10,258 2,316 12,574

Change in net assets (724,775) 20,994 12,600 (691,181)

Net assets at beginning of year 1,925,643 44,374 (209,869) 1,760,148

Asset transfers 6,268 (6,284) 16 -
Net assets at end of year $ 1,207,136 $ 59,084 $(197,253) $ 1,068,967
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended May 31, 2008
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(In Thousands)
Operating activities
Cash received from customer tolls and

deposits $ 667,795 $ - $ - $ 667,795
Cash payments for goods and services (267,199) (41,857) (267) (309,323)
Cash payments to employees (156,402) (200) - (156,602)
Cash received from other operating

activities 14,281 222 - 14,503

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 258,475 (41,835) (267) 216,373

Investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of

investments 787,898 351,291 120,392 1,259,581
Interest received on inveslments 21,748 19,480 5,447 46,675

Purchases of investments (505,246) (245,542) / 113,989) (864,777)
Net cash provided by investing

activities 304,400 125,229 11,850 441,479

Capital and related financing
activities

Capital grants received 12,939 3,755 - 16,694
Construction and acquisition of capital

assets (449,323) (82,520) 15 (531,828)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 29 - - 29
Payments for bond expenses (2,495) (1,058) 231 (3,322)
Payments for redemption of debt (35,970) (11,345) (5,330) (52,645)
Interest paid on debt (90,088) (28,866) (21,414) (140,368)
Proceeds from new debt 1,179,835 - - 1,179,835

Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities 614,927 (120,034) (26,498) 468,395

Continued on the following page.
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Year Ended May 31, 2008
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(ln Thousands)
Noncapital financing activities
Cash payments to PennDOT $(750,000) $ $ - $(750,000)
Cash proceeds from motor license grant - - 28,000 28,000
Cash proceeds from oil company

franchise tax - 58,709 58,709

Net cash (used in) provided by
noncapital financing activities (750,000) 58,709 28,000 (663,291)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 427,802 22,069 13,085 462,956

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 164,852 48,500 19,266 232,618

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year $ 592,654 $ 70,569 $ 32,351 $ 695,574

Continued on thefollowing page - see accompanying schedule of reconciliation.
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!: Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Segment Information (continued)

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Year Ended May 31, 2008
Oil Motor

Mainline Franchise License Total

(In Thousands)
Reconciliation of operating income

(loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities

Operating income (loss) $ 89,157 $ (35,340) $ (267) $ 53,550
Adjustments to reconcile operating

income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 193,696 - - 193,696

Change in operating assets and
liabilities:

Accounts receivable (3,121 ) - - (3,121)
Inventories 1,033 - - 1,033
Other assets (1,047) - - (1,047)
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities (23,354) (6,495) (29,849)
Other noncurrent liabilities 2,111 - - 2,111

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities $ 258,475 $ (41,835) $ (267) $ 216,373

Noneash activities
Increase in fair value of investments $ 5,215 $ 4,282 $ 200 $ 9,697

Amortization of bond premium $ 1,691 $ 756 $ 719 $ 3,166

Amortization ofdeferred refunding loss $ (3,410) $ (563) $ (931) $ (4,904)
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

14. Subsequent Events

On June 22, 2009, the Commission issued Series 2009 A Revenue Bonds, Federally Taxable
Build America Bonds, in the amount of $275,000,000 at 6.105% and maturing December 1,
2039. The Commission has designated the 2009 A bonds as "Build America Bonds" for purposes
of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and has elected to receive a cash

! subsidy from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on the 2009 A
bonds for an effective yield of 3.96%. The 2009 A bonds are being issued to: (a) finance the

i'

costs of various capital expenditures for the Pennsylvania Turnpike System set forth in thei!

i, Commission's current ten-year capital plan, including, but not limited to, the reconstruction of
roadbed and roadway, the widening, replacing and redecking of certain bridges and/or the
rehabilitation of certain interchanges, (b) fund capitalized interest with respect to the 2009 A
bonds, (c) fund a debt service reserve fund with respect to the 2009 A bonds, and (d) pay the cost
of issuance of the 2009 A bonds.

On July 22, 2009, the Commission issued Series 2009 B&C Subordinate Revenue Bonds for
$956,733,204. The Series B bonds consist of serial and term bonds. The serial bonds were issued
for $247,650,000, bear interest at 3.00% to 5.25% and mature in varying installments through
June 1, 2022. The term bonds were issued for $609,085,000, bear interest at 4.75% to 5.75% and
mature in varying installments through June 1, 2039. The Series C bonds are considered
Convertible Capital Appreciation Term Bonds maturing on June 1, 2033 at a 6.25% interest rate.
The interest on the 2009 C Bonds will not be payable on a current basis prior to June 1, 2016, but
will compound from the date of delivery on a semiannual basis, beginning December 1, 2009, to
and including June 1, 2016. After June 1, 2016, the interest will be payable semiannually on
December 1, 2016 and on each June 1 and December I thereafter. The compounded amount will
be payable at maturity or earlier redemption. The 2009 B&C Bonds will be used to (a) make
payments in accordance with Act 44 to fund certain transportation grants to mass transit agencies
and to local governments and various road, highway and bridge projects, (b) refund the
Commission's outstanding Turnpike Bond Anticipation Notes Series B of 2007 and C-3 of 2008,
(c) fund the debt service reserve for the 2009 bonds, (d) obtain a credit facility for a portion of
the 2009 bonds, (e) pay capitalized interest on a portion of the 2009 bonds, and (f) pay the cost

: of issuing the 2009 bonds.
I
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:: Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Schedule of Funding Progress -

Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

March 1,2008 $ 14,000 $228,067 $214,067 6.54% $118,559 180.6%
February 28,

2006 $ - $167,785 $167,785 -% $109,022 153.9%

Because 2008 was the year of transition for GASB Statement No. 45, requirements of GASB

Statement No. 45 have been implemented prospectively; therefore, the above schedule does not

reflect information for three years as typically required.
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APPENDIX C

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS

In addition to words and terms elsewhere def'med in this Official Statement, the following words and terms as used
in this Appendix C and the Indenture shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

"Additional Bonds" -- Bonds of any Series authorized to be issued under the Indenture.

"Annual Capital Budget" -- the budget adopted by the Commission pursuant to the provisions described under the
heading "The Indenture--Covenants of Commission--Annual Operating Budget; Capital Budget."

"Annual Debt Service" -- (i) the amount of principal and interest paid or payable with respect to Bonds in a Fiscal

Year plus (ii) Reimbursement Obligations paid or payable by the Commission in such Fiscal Year (but only to the extent they
are not duplicative of such principal and interest), plus (iii) the amounts, if any, paid or payable by the Commission in such
Fiscal Year with respect to Approved Swap Agreements, minus (iv) the amounts, if any, paid or payable to the Commission
in such Fiscal Year with respect to Approved Swap Agreements, provided that the difference between the amounts described
in clauses (iii) and (iv) shall be included only to the extent that such difference would not be recognized as a result of the
application of the assumptions set forth below. The following assumptions shall be used to determine the Annual Debt
Service becoming due in any Fiscal Year: (a) in determining the principal amount paid or payable with respect to Bonds or
Reimbursement Obligations in each Fiscal Year, payment shall be assumed to be made in accordance with any amortization
schedule established for such Indebtedness, including amounts paid or payable pursuant to any mandatory redemption
schedule for such Indebtedness; (b) if any of the Indebtedness or proposed Indebtedness constitutes Balloon Indebtedness,
then such amounts thereof as constitute Balloon Indebtedness shall be treated as if such Indebtedness is to be amortized in

substantially equal annual installments of principal and interest over a term of 25 years from the date of issuance of such
Indebtedness; anything to the contrary in the Indenture notwithstanding, during the year preceding the final maturity date of
such Indebtedness, all of the principal thereof shall be considered to be due on such maturity date unless the Commission
provides to the Trustee a certificate of a Financial Consultant certifying that, in its judgment, the Commission will be able to
refinance such Balloon Indebtedness, in which event the Balloon Indebtedness shall be amortized over the term of such
refinancing and shall bear the interest rate specified in the certificate of the Financial Consultant; (c) if any of the
Indebtedness or proposed Indebtedness constitutes Variable Rate Indebtedness, then interest in future periods shall be based
on the Assumed Variable Rate; and (d) termination or similar payments under an Approved Swap Agreement shall not be
taken into account in any calculation of Annual Debt Service.

"Annual Operating Budget" -- the budget adopted by the Commission pursuant to the provisions described under the
heading "The Indenture--Annual Operating Budget; Capital Budget."

"Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness" -- includes Bonds, Additional Bonds, Reimbursement Obligations and
obligations of the Commission under Approved Swap Agreements, to the extent the same constitute Long-Term
Indebtedness, and excludes Subordinated Indebtedness.

"Approved Swap Agreement" -- shall have the meaning set forth below under the heading "The Indenture--
Approved and Parity Swap Obligations".

"Assumed Variable Rate" -- in the case of (1) Outstanding Variable Rate Indebtedness, the average interest rote on
such Indebtedness for the most recently completed 12-month period; and (2) proposed Variable Rate Indebtedness, (a) which
will, in the opinion of Bond Counsel delivered at the time of the issuance thereof be excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes, the average of the Bond Market Association Swap Index ("BMA Index") for the 12 months ending 7

i days preceding the date of calculation plus 100 basis points, or (b) in the case of Bonds not described in clause (a), the
London Interbank Offered Rate ("Libor") most closely resembling the reset period for the Variable Rate Indebtedness plus
100 basis points; provided that if the BMA Index or Libor shall cease to be published, the index to be used in its place shall
be that index which the Commission in consultation with the Financial Consultant determines most closely replicates such
index, as set forth in a certificate of a Commission Official filed with the Trustee.

"'Authenticating Agent" -- that Person designated and authorized to authenticate any series of Bonds or such Person
designated by the Authenticating Agent to serve such function, and shall initially be the Trustee.

"Authorized Denominations" - for the 2009B Bonds are described in the forepart of this Official Statement.

"Balloon Indebtedness" -- Long-Term Indebtedness of which 25% or more of the principal matures in the same
Fiscal Year and is not required by the documents pursuant to which such Indebtedness was issued to be amortized by
payment or redemption prior to that Fiscal Year, provided that such Indebtedness will not constitute Balloon Indebtedness if
the Trustee is provideda certificate of a Commission Official certifying that such Indebtedness is not to be treated as Balloon
Indebtedness (because, by way of example, such Indebtedness is intended to serve as "wrap around" Indebtedness).



"Bank" -- as to any particular Series of Bonds, each Person (other than a Bond Insurer) providing a letter of credit, a
line of credit, a guaranty or another credit or liquidity enhancement facility as designated in the Supplemental Indenture
providing for the issuance of such Bonds.

"Bankruptcy Law" -- Title 9 of the United States Code, as amended from time to time, and any successor to or
replacement of such Title and any other applicable federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law.

"Bond" or "Bonds" -- Bonds outstanding under the Prior Indenture and indebtedness of any kind or class, including
bonds, notes, bond anticipation notes, commercial paper and other obligations, issued as Additional Bonds under the

applicable provisions of the Indenture, other than Additional Bonds issued as Subordinated Indebtedness.

"Bond Buyer Index" -- shall mean the Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index as published weekly in "The Bond Buyer". If
such Index shall cease to be published, the Financial Consultant shall select another index which shall be reflective of the
Commission's fixed borrowing cost.

"Bond Counsel" -- any attorney or firm of attorneys whose experience in matters relating to the issuance of
obligations by states and their political subdivisions is nationally recognized.

"Bond Documents" means Supplemental Indenture No. 17, the 2009B Bonds and any and all future renewals and
extensions or restatements of, or amendments or supplements to, any of the foregoing.

i,

"Bond Insurer" -- as to any particular maturity or any particular Series of Bonds, the Person undertaking to insure
such Bonds as designated in a Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such Bonds.

"Bond Owner," "Bondholder," "Holder," "Owner" or "Registered Owner" (or the lower case version of the same) --
:, the Person in whose name any Bond or Bonds are registered on the books maintained by the Registrar.

"Bond Register" -- the register maintained pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Indenture.

"Bond Registrar" -- with respect to any series of Bonds, that Person which maintains the bond register or such other
entity designated by the Bond Registrar to serve such function and initially shall be the Trustee.

"Book-Entry-Only System" -- a system similar to the system described in the Indenture and in the forepart of this
Official Statement under "Description of the 2009B Bonds--Book-Entry Only System" pursuant to which Bonds are
registered in book-entry form.

"Business Day" -- any day other than a Saturday or a Sunday or a day on which banking institutions are required or
authorized by law or executive order to remain closed in the city in which the designated office of the Trustee is located, the
Commonwealth or the City of New York.

"Chief Engineer" -- the employee of the Commission designated its "Chief Engineer" or any successor title.

"Code" -- the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations proposed or in effect with respect
thereto.

"Commonwealth" -- the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

"Commission Official" -- any commissioner, director, officer or employee of the Commission authorized to perform
specific acts or duties by resolution duly adopted by the Commission.

"Conditional Redemption" - a redemption of Bonds (1) that is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys, in an
amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Trustee no later than the redemption date or (2) that
the Commission retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to the scheduled redemption date if the Commission
delivers a certificate of a Commission Official to the Trustee instructing the Trustee to rescind the redemption notice.

"'Consultant" -- a Person who shall be independent, appointed by the Commission as needed, qualified and having a
nationwide and favorable reputation for skill and experience in such work for which the Consultant was appointed. In those
situations in which a Consultant is appointed to survey risks and to recommend insurance coverage, such Consultant may be
a broker or agent with whom the Commission transacts business.

"Consulting Engineers" -- the engineer or engineering firm or corporation at the time employed by the Commission
under the Indenture.

"Cost" -- all or any part of: (a) the cost of construction, reconstruction, restoration, repair and rehabilitation of a
Project or portion thereof (including, but not limited to, indemnity and surety bonds, permits, taxes or other municipal or
governmental charges lawfully levied or assessed during construction); (b) the cost of acquisition of all real or personal
property, rights, rights-of-way, franchises, easements and interests acquired or used for such Project or portion thereof;
(c) the cost of demolishing or removing any structures on land so acquired, including the cost of acquiring any land to which
the structures may be removed; (d) any cost of borings and other preliminary investigations necessary or incident to
determining the feasibility or practicability of constructing such Project and any cost necessary or desirable to satisfy
conditions associated with the issuance of any permit for the construction thereof (including the costs of environmental
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mitigation required in connection therewith); (e) the cost of all machinery and equipment, vehicles, materials and rolling
stock; (0 Issuance Costs; (g) interest on Bonds and on any Reimbursement Obligation for the period prior to, during and for a
period of up to one year after completion of construction as determined by the Commission, provisions for working capital,
reserves for principal and interest and for extensions, enlargements, additions, replacements, renovations and improvements;
(h) the cost of architectural, engineering, environmental feasibility, financial and legal services; (i) plans, specifications,
estimates and administrative and other expenses which are necessary or incidental to the determination of the feasibility of
constructing such Project or portion thereof or incidental to the obtaining of construction contracts or to the construction
(including construction administration and inspection), acquisition or financing thereof and which constitute capital costs;
(j) Current Expenses, provided that, if applicable, the Trustee has received an opinion of Bond Counsel (which opinion may
address either specific Current Expenses or categories of Current Expenses) to the effect that the treatment of such Current
Expenses as a Cost will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax
purposes; (k) the repayment of any loan or advance for any of the foregoing; and (1) with respect to the use of Bond proceeds,
such other costs and expenses as are permitted by the Enabling Acts at the time such Bonds are issued.

"Counsel" -- an attorney or law furu (who may be counsel for the Commission) not unsatisfactory to the Trustee.

"Credit Facility" -- any letter of credit, line of credit, standby letter of credit, indemnity or surety insurance policy or

agreement to purchase a debt obligation or any similar extension of credit, credit enhancement or liquidity support obtained
by the Commission from a responsible financial or insurance institution, to provide for or to secure payment of principal and
purchase price of, and/or interest on Bonds pursuant to the provisions of a Supplemental Indenture under which such Bonds
are issued. The use of such definition is not intended to preclude the Commission from providing the credit or liquidity
support with respect to one or more series of Bonds directly rather than through a financial or insurance institution.

"Current Expenses" -- the Commission's reasonable and necessary current expenses of maintenance, repair and
operation of the System, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all premiums for insurance and payments
into any self-insurance reserve fund, all administrative and engineering expenses relating to maintenance, repair and
operation of the System, fees and expenses of the Trustee and of the Paying Agents, Policy Costs, legal expenses and any
other expenses required to be paid by the Commission as shown in the Annual Operating Budget for the System.

"Debt Service Fund" -- the fund created by the Indenture and described under "The Indenture--Debt Service Fund."

"Debt Service Reserve Fund" -- the fund created by the Indenture and described under "The Indenture--Debt
Service Reserve Fund."

"Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds" -- shall mean the Long-Term Indebtedness specified by the Commission that is
secured by the Debt Service Reserve Fund as described under "The Indenture---Debt Service Reserve Fund."

"Debt Service Reserve Requirement" -- the amount equal to the Maximum Annual Debt Service on account of all
the Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds.

"Defeasance Securities" -- Cash, Government Obligations, Government Obligations which have been stripped by
the U.S. Treasury and CATS, TIGRS and similar securities, Resolution Funding Corp. strips which have been stripped by the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York, pre-refunded obligations of a state or municipality rated in the highest rating category by
the Rating Agency, and Obligations issued by the following agencies which are backed by the full faith and credit of the
U.S.: Farmers Home Administration (Certificates of beneficial ownership), Federal Financing Bank, General Services
Administration (Participation certificates), U.S. Maritime Administration (Guaranteed Title XI fmancing), U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (Project Notes, Local Authority Bonds and New Communities Debentures - U.S.
government guaranteed debentures) and U.S. Public Housing Notes and Bonds (U.S. government guaranteed public housing
notes and bonds).

"Depositary" -- a bank or trust company designated as such by the Commission to receive moneys under the
provisions of the Indenture and approved by the Trustee, and shall include the Trustee.

"DSRF Security" -- shall have the meaning set forth under "The Indenture--Debt Service Reserve Fund."

"DTC" - The Depository Trust Company.

"Event of Bankruptcy" -- the filing of a petition in bankruptcy (or other commencement of a bankruptcy or similar
proceedings) by or against the Commission as debtor, under Bankruptcy Law.

"Event of Default" -- those events specified under "The Indenture--Events of Default" and such other events
specified in any Supplemental Indentures.

"Financial Consultant" -- any financial advisor or firm of financial advisors of favorable national reputation for skill
and experience in performing the duties for which a Financial Consultant is required to be employed pursuant to the
provisions of the Indenture and who is retained by the Commission as a Financial Consultant for the purposes of the
Indenture.
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"Fiscal Year" -- the period commencing on the first day of June and ending on the last day of May of the following
year.

"Fitch" - Fitch, Inc., its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall for any reason no longer perform the
functions of a securities rating agency, "Fitch" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized rating agency
designated by the Commission.

"General Reserve Fund" -- the fund created by the Indenture and described under "The Indenture_eneral Reserve
Fund."

"Government Obligations" - (a) direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are
unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by, the United States of America, (b) obligations issued by a Person
controlled or supervised by and acting as an instrumentality of the United States of America, the payment of the principal of
and interest on which is fully and unconditionally guaranteed as a full faith and credit obligation of the United States of
America (including any securities described in clause (a) above issued or held in book-entry form in the name of the Trustee
only on the books of the Department of Treasury of the United States of America), (c) any certificates or any other evidences
of an ownership interest in obligations or specified portions thereof (which may consist of specified portions of the interest
thereon) of the character described in clause (a) or (b) above, which obligations are held by a bank or trust company
organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof in the capacity of custodian,
(d) stripped obligations of interest issued by the Resolution Funding Corporation pursuant to the Financial Institutions
Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 ("FIRREA"), the interest on which, to the extent not paid from other
specified sources, is payable when due by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to F1RREA, and (e) obligations of any state
or political subdivision thereof or any agency or instrumentality of such a state or political subdivision, provided that cash,

:' obligations described in clause (a), (b), (c) or (d) above, or a combination thereof have been irrevocably pledged to and
deposited into a segregated escrow account for the payment when due of the principal or redemption price of and interest on

, such obligations, and provided further that, at the time of purchase, such obligations are rated by the Rating Service in its
highest rating category.

"Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio" -- for any period of time, the ratio determined by dividing Net Revenues
for such period by the Annual Debt Service for all Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness which is Outstanding during such
period.

"Historical Pro Forma Debt Service Coverage Ratio" -- for any period of time, the ratio determined by dividing Net
Revenues for such period by the Maximum Annual Debt Service for all Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness then

: Outstanding and the Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness proposed to be issued pursuant to the Indenture pursuant to the
provisions described under "The Indenture---Covenants--Limitations on Issuance of Additional Bonds and Execution of
Approved Swaps."

"Immediate Notice" -- notice transmitted by electronic means, in writing, by telecopier or other electronic means or
by telephone (promptly confirmed in writing) and received by the Person to whom it was addressed.

"Indebtedness" -- any obligation or debt incurred for money borrowed.

"Indenture" the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture amended and restated as of March 1, 2001, as amended and
supplemented.

"Interest Payment Date" - for the 2009B Bonds is described in the forepart of this Official Statement. If the Interest
Payment Date is not a Business Day then the Interest Payment Date shall be the Business Day next succeeding the date
specified above.

"Issuance Cost" -- costs incurred by or on behalf of the Commission in connection with the issuance of Additional
Bonds including, without limitation, the following: payment of financial, legal, accounting and appraisal fees and expenses,
the Commission's fees and expenses attributable to the issuance of the Bonds, the cost of printing, engraving and
reproduction services, fees and expenses incurred in connection with any Credit Facility and any Approved Swap Obligation,
legal fees and expenses for Bond Counsel, Commission's counsel, Trustee's counsel and Underwriter's counsel relating to the
issuance of the Bonds, the initial or acceptance fee of the Trustee, and all other fees, charges and expenses incurred in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds and the preparation of the Indenture.

"Letter of Representations" -- the letter of representations or similar document executed by the Commission and
delivered to the Securities Depository (and any amendments thereto or successor agreements) for one or more Series of Book
Entry Bonds.

"Long-Term Indebtedness" -- all Indebtedness, which is not (a) Short-Term Indebtedness or (b) Subordinated
Indebtedness.

"Maximum Annual Debt Service" -- at any point in time the maximum amount of Annual Debt Service on all
Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness, as required by the context (e.g., whether relating to all such Applicable Long-Term
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Indebtedness or only specified Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness) paid or payable in the then current or any future Fiscal
Year.

"Moody's" -- Moody's Investors Service, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Delaware, its successors and their assigns, and, if such corporation shall for any reason no longer perform the functions of a
securities rating agency, "Moody's" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized rating agency designated by
the Commission.

"Net Revenues" -- the amount by which total Revenues exceed Current Expenses for any particular period.

"Other Revenues" -- any funds received or payable to the Commission, other than Revenues, which the Commission
chooses to include as security for Parity Obligations and/or Subordinated Indebtedness pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture.

"Original Indenture" - the Indenture of Trust dated as of July 1, 1986 between the Commission and the Trustee.

"Outstanding" or "outstanding" in connection with Bonds -- all Bonds which have been authenticated and delivered
under the Indenture, except: (a) Bonds theretufore cancelled or delivered to the Trustee for cancellation under the Indenture;
(b) Bonds which are deemed to be no longer Outstanding in accordance with the provisions described under "The
Indenture--Defeasance"; and (c) Bonds in substitution for which other Bonds have been authenticated and delivered
pursuant to the Indenture. In determining whether the owners of a requisite aggregate principal amount of Bonds
Outstanding have concurred in any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver under the provisions
of the Indenture, Bonds which are held by or on behalf of the Commission (unless all of the Outstanding Bonds are then
owned by the Commission) shall be disregarded for the purpose of any such determination.

"Parity Obligations" -- includes Bonds and other obligations of the Commission owed to Secured Owners and
excludes Subordinated Indebtedness.

"Parity Swap Agreement" -- shall have the meaning set forth under the heading "The Indenture--Approved and
Parity Swap Obligations".

"Parity Swap Agreement Counterparty" -- the counterparty to a Parity Swap Agreement with the Commission or
with the Trustee.

"Paying Agent" -- with respect to any series of Bonds, that Person appointed pursuant to the Indenture to make
payments to Bondholders of interest and/ur principal pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, which initially shall be the
Trustee.

"Permitted Investments" -- (to the extent permitted by law): (a) Government Obligations; (b) obligations issued or
guaranteed as to full and timely payment of principal and interest by any agency or Person controlled or supervised by and
acting as an instrumentality of the U.S., pursuant to authority granted by the U.S. Congress; (c) obligations of the
Governmental National Mortgage Association, Farmers Home Administration, Federal Financing Bank, Federal Housing
Administration, Maritime Administration and Public Housing Authorities, provided that the full and timely payment of the
principal and interest on such obligations shall be unconditionally guaranteed by the U.S.; (d) obligations of the Federal
Intermediate Credit Corporation and of the Federal National Mortgage Association; (e) obligations of the Federal Banks for
Cooperation; (f) obligations of Federal Land Banks; (g) obligations of Federal Home Loan Banks; provided that the
obligations described in clauses (c) through (g) above shall constitute Permitted Investments only to the extent that the Rating
Agency has assigned a rating to such obligations which is not lower than the highest rating assigned by such Rating Agency
to any series of comparable Bonds then Outstanding; (h) certificates of deposit of any bank, savings and loan or trust
company organized under the laws of the U.S. or any state thereof, including the Trustee or any holder of the Bonds,
provided that such certificates of deposit shall be fully collateralized (with a prior perfected security interest), to the extent
they are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, by Permitted Investments described in (a), (b), (c), (d),
(e), (f) or (g) above having a market value at all times equal to the uninsured amount of such deposit; (i) money market fimds
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, whose shares are registered under the Securities Act of 1933,
including funds for which the Trustee, its parent, its affiliates or its subsidiaries provide investment advisory or other
management services, and which are rated by S&P, Moody's and Fitch in one of their two highest rating categories;
(j) investment agreements (which term, for purposes of this clause, shall not include repurchase agreements) with a Qualified
Financial Institution; (k) repurchase agreements with banks or primary government dealers reporting to the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York ("Repurchasers"), including but not limited to the Trustee and any of its affiliates, provided that each such
repurchase agreement results in transfer to the Trustee of legal and equitable title to, or the granting to the Trustee of a prior
perfected security interest in, identified Permitted Investments described in (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (0 or (g) above which are
free and clear of any claims by third parties and are segregated in a custodial or trust account held either by the Trustee or by
a third party (other than the Repurchaser) as the agent solely of, or in trust solely for the benefit of, the Trustee, provided that
Government Obligations acquired pursuant to such repurchase agreements shall be valued at the lower of the then current
market value of such Government Obligations or the repurchase price thereof set forth in the applicable repurchase
agreement; (1) bonds or notes issued by any state or municipality which are rated by S&P, Moody's and Fitch in one of their
two highest rating categories; (m) commercial paper rated in the highest short-term, note or commercial paper Rating
Category by S&P, Moody's and Fitch; (n) any auction rate certificates which are rated by S&P, Moody's and Fitch in one of
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their two highest rating categories; (o) corporate bonds and medium term notes rated at least "AA-" by the Rating Agency;

(p) asset-backed securities rated in the highest rating category by the Rating Agency; and (q) any other investment approved
by the Commission for which confirmation is received from the Rating Agency that such investment will not adversely affect
such Rating Agency's rating on such Bonds.

"Person" -- an individual, public body, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a joint stock company, a trust
and any unincorporated organization.

"Policy Costs" -- a periodic fee or charge required to be paid to maintain a DSRF Security.

"Principal Office" means, with respect to any entity performing functions under any Bond Document, the principal
office of that entity or its affiliate at which those functions are performed.

"Prior Indenture" - the Original Indenture as supplemented and amended.

"Project" -- any improvements to the System or refundings which are authorized by the Enabling Acts or which
may be herea_er authorized by law.

"Projected Annual Debt Service" -- for any future period of time, shall equal the amount of Maximum Annual Debt
Service on all Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness then Outstanding and on any Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness
proposed to be issued.

"Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio" -- for the two Fiscal Years following the end of any period during which
interest was fully capitalized on the Applicable Long-Term Indebtedness proposed to be issued, the ratio determined by
dividing Projected Net Revenues for such period by the Projected Annual Debt Service for such period.

"Projected Net Revenues" -- projected Net Revenues for the period in question, taking into account any revisions of
the Tolls which have been approved by the Commission and which will be effective during such period and any additional
Tolls which the Commission or the Consultant, as appropriate, estimates will be received by the Commission following the
completion of any Project then being constructed or proposed to be constructed.

"Purchase Price" -- shall mean the purchase price payment described in paragraph (a) of the definition of Tender
Indebtedness.

"Qualified Financial Institution" (a) any U.S. domestic institution which is a bank, trust company, national banking
association or a corporation, including the Trustee and any of its affiliates, subject to registration with the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, or a member of the National
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. whose unsecured obligations or uncollateralized long-term debt obligations have been
assigned a rating within the two highest rating categories by the Rating Agency or which has issued a letter of credit,
contract, agreement or surety bond in support of debt obligations which have been so rated; (b) an insurance company with a
claims-paying ability or a corporation whose obligations are guaranteed by an insurance company (in the form of an
insurance policy) or by an insurance holding company rated in the highest rating category by the Rating Agency or whose
unsecured obligations or uncollateralized long-term debt obligations have been assigned a rating within the highest rating
category by the Rating Agency; or (c) any banking institution whose unsecured obligations or uncollateralized long-term debt
obligations have been assigned a rating within one of the two highest rating categories by the Rating Agency.

"Rate Covenant" -- the requirement to establish and maintain a schedule of Tolls sufficient to provide the funds
required pursuant to the Indenture provisions described under "The Indenture--Rate Covenant."

"Rating Agency" -- Fitch, Moody's or S&P or such other nationally recognized securities rating agency as may be so
designated in writing to the Trustee by a Commission Official.

"Rating Category" -- each major rating classification established by the Rating Agency, determined without regard
to gradations such as" 1," "2" and "3" or "plus" and "minus."

"Rebate Fund" -- the fund created by the Indenture and described under "The Indenture---Rebate Fund."

"Rebate Regulations" -- the Treasury Regulations issued under Section 148(0 of the Code.

"Record Date" -- for the 2009B Bonds is described in the forepart of this Official Statement. lfthe Record Date is
not a Business Day, then the Record Date shall be the Business Day next preceding the date specified above.

"Reimbursement Agreement" -- an agreement between the Commission and one or more Banks pursuant to which,
among other things, such Bank or Banks issue a Credit Facility with respect to Bonds of one or more series and the
Commission agrees to reimburse such Bank or Banks for any drawings made thereunder.

"Reimbursement Obligation" - an obligation of the Commission pursuant to a Reimbursement Agreement to repay
any amounts drawn under a Credit Facility and to pay interest on such drawn amounts pursuant to such Reimbursement

. Agreement.
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"Reserve Maintenance Fund" -- the fund created by the Indenture and described under "The Indenture--Reserve
Maintenance Fund."

"Reserve Maintenance Fund Requirement" - the amount to be deposited to the credit of the Reserve Maintenance
Fund from the Revenues of the Commission pursuant to the provisions described under "The Indenture---Reserve
Maintenance Fund."

"Revenue Fund" - the fund created by the Indenture and described under "The Indenture--Revenue Fund;
Agreements with Other Turnpikes."

"Revenues" -- (a) all Tolls received by or on behalf of the Commission from the System, (b) any other sources of
revenues or funds of the Commission which the Commission chooses to include in the Trust Estate pursuant to a
Supplemental Indenture, and (c) the interest and income earned on any fund or account where said interest or income is
required to be credited to the Revenue Fund pursuant to the Indenture. As more fully provided by the provisions described
below under "The Indenture--Revenue Fund; Agreements with Other Turnpikes," in the event the Commission receives
advances or prepayments or otherwise operates or participates in a system in which funds are collected prior to the actual
usage of the System, such funds shall not be deemed to be Revenues until the usage occurs or the funds are earned pursuant
to the agreement under which the Commission receives such funds.

"S&P" - Standard & Poor's, a division of McGraw-Hill, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of New York, its successors and their assigns, and, if such corporation shall for any reason no longer perform the
functions of a securities rating agency, "S&P" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating
agency designated by the Commission.

"Secured Owner" - each Person who is a Bondholder of any Bonds, each Parity Swap Agreement Counterparty
providing a Parity Swap Agreement, each Bank providing a Credit Facility and each Bond Insurer providing a bond
insurance policy with respect to a Parity Obligation.

"Securities Depository" -- a Person that is registered as a clearing agency under Section 17A of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 or whose business is confined to the performance of the functions of a clearing agency with respect to
exempted securities, as defined in Section 3(a)(I 2) of such Act for the purposes of Section 17A thereof.

"Series" -- one or more Bonds issued at the same time, or sharing some other common term or characteristic, and
designated as a separate series of Bonds.

"Series Issue Date" means, with respect to the 2009B Bonds, the date of original issuance of the 2009B Bonds.

"Short-Term Indebtedness" -- all Indebtedness which matures in less than 365 days and is designated as Short-Term
Indebtedness pursuant to the provisions described under "The Indenture--Limitation on Issuance of Additional Bonds and
Execution of Swap Agreements." In the event a Bank has extended a line of credit or the Commission has undertaken a
commercial paper or similar program, only amounts actually borrowed under such line of credit or program and repayable in
less than 365 days shall be considered Short-Term Indebtedness and the full amount of such commitment or program shall
not be treated as Short-Term Indebtedness to the extent that such facility remains undrawn.

"Special Record Date" -- for the 2009B Bonds is described in the forepart of this Official Statement.

"Subordinated Indebtedness" -- Indebtedness incurred pursuant to the provisions referenced under "The Indenture--
Limitation on Issuance of Additional Bonds and Execution of Swap Agreements."

"Supplemental Indenture" -- any supplemental indenture to (a) the Indenture, now or hereat_er duly authorized and
entered into in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture or (b)the Prior Indenture, including any supplemental
indenture pursuant to which (and only for so long as) bonds are outstanding thereunder.

"Swap Agreement" -- shall have the meaning set forth under the heading "The Indenture--Appruved and Parity
Swap Obligations."

"System" - is described in the forepart of this Official Statement under "Pennsylvania Turnpike System."

"Tender Indebtedness" -- any Indebtedness or portion thereof: (a) the terms of which include (i) an option or an
obligation on the part of the Secured Owner to tender all or a portion of such Indebtedness to the Commission, the Trustee,
the Paying Agent or another fiduciary or agent for payment or purchase and (ii) a requirement on the part of the Commission
to purchase or cause to be purchased such Indebtedness or portion thereof if properly presented; and (b) which is rated in
either (i) one of the two highest long-term Rating Categories by the Rating Agency or (ii) the highest short-term, note or
commercial paper Rating Category by the Rating Agency.

"Tolls" -- all rates, rents, fees, charges, fines or other income derived by the Commission from vehicular usage of
the System, and all rights to receive the same.

"Trust Estate" -- (i) all Revenues, (ii) all monies deposited into accounts or funds created by the Indenture and held
by or on behalf of the Trustee (other than the Rebate Fund), (iii) any insurance proceeds and other moneys required to be
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deposited in the Indenture, (iv) all payments received by the Commission pursuant to Parity Swap Agreements, and (v) all

investment earnings on all moneys held in accounts and funds established by the Indenture, other than the Rebate Fund.

"Trustee" -- the Trustee at the time in question, whether the initial Trustee or a successor.

"U.S." -- United States of America.

"Variable Rate Indebtedness" - any Indebtedness the interest rate on which fluctuates from time to time subsequent
to the time of incurrence. Variable Rate Indebtedness may include, without limitation, (a) "auction rate" Indebtedness, that
is, Variable Rate Indebtedness (i) the interest rote applicable to which (after an initial period following the issuance thereof or
the conversion thereof to such an interest rate mode) is reset from time to time through an auction or bidding system and
(ii) which the Commission has no obligation to repurchase in connection with the resetting of the interest rate applicable
thereto except to the extent proceeds are available for such purpose either from the remarketing of such Variable Rate
Indebtedness or from such other sources as identified in the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which such Variable Rate
Indebtedness was issued, (b) Tender Indebtedness, (c) commercial paper Indebtedness which is intended to be reissued and
refinanced periodically, or (d) other forms of Indebtedness on which the interest fluctuates or is subject to being set or reset
from time to time.

TH_ INDENTURE

LIMITED OBLIGATIONS

The Bonds shall be limited obligations of the Commission, payable solely from the Trust Estate. The Bonds shall
constitute a valid claim of the respective owners thereof against the Trust Estate, which is pledged to secure the payment of
the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, and which shall be utilized for no other purpose,
except as expressly authorized in the Indenture. The Bonds shall not constitute general obligations of the Commission and
under no circumstances shall the Bonds be payable from, nor shall the holders thereof have any rightful claim to, any income,
revenues, funds or assets of the Commission other than those pledged under the Indenture as security for the payment of the
Bonds.

ADDITIONAL BONDS

The Commission agrees in the Indenture that it will not issue or incur any other Indebtedness having a parity lien on
the Trust Estate except for Additional Bonds issued pursuant to the provisions described below and other Parity Obligations.
Additional Bonds may be issued and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver such Additional Bonds when there have been
filed with the Trustee the following:

(a) A copy certified by a Commission Official of the resolution or resolutions of the Commission authorizing
(1) the execution and delivery of a Supplemental Indenture providing for, among other things, the date, rate or rates of
interest on, interest payment dates, maturity dates and redemption provisions of such Additional Bonds, and (2) the issuance,
sale, execution and delivery of the Additional Bonds;

(b) An original executed counterpart of the Supplemental Indenture;

(c) An opinion or opinions of Bond Coansel, addressed to the Commission and the Trustee, to the effect that
(1) issuance of the Additional Bonds is permitted under the Indenture, (2) each of the Supplemental Indenture and the
Additional Bonds has been duly authorized, executed and delivered and is a valid, binding and enforceable obligation of the
Commission, subject to bankruptcy, equitable principles and other standard legal opinion exceptions and (3) subject to the
last paragraph of this Section, interest on the Additional Bonds is not included in gross income for federal income tax
purposes under the Code;

(d) A request and authorization of the Commission, signed by a Commission Official, to the Trustee to
authenticate and deliver the Additional Bonds tO such Person or persons named therein after confirmation of payment to the
Trustee for the account of the Commission of a specified sum (which may include directions as to the disposition of such of
such sum);

(e) A certificate of the Commission, signed by a Commission Official, that the Commission is not in default
under the Indenture and evidence satisfactory to the Trustee that, upon issuance of the Additional Bonds, amounts will be
deposited in the Funds under the Indenture adequate for the necessary balances therein after issuance of the Additional Bonds
(including an amount sufficient to satisfy the Debt Service Reserve Requirement if the Additional Bonds constitute Debt
Service Reserve Fund Bonds);

(f) A certificate of the Commission, signed by a Commission Official, identifying the Additional Bonds as
Short-Term Indebtedness, Long-Term Indebtedness or Subordinated Indebtedness and demonstrating with reasonable detail
that the applicable Indenture provisions described under "Covenants of the Commission -- Limitations on Issuance of
Additional Bonds and Execution of Swap Agreements" have been met for the issuance of such Additional Bonds; and
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(g) Such further documents, moneys and securities as are required by the provisions of the Supplemental
Indenture.

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, Additional Bonds may bear interest which is included in
gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Code, in which event provisions in the Indenture requiring or
referencing the exclusion of interest on Bonds of gross income for federal income tax purposes may be ignored or modified,
as appropriate, as set forth in an opinion of Bond Counsel.

APPROVED AND PARITY SWAP OBLIGATIONS

The Commission may enter into one or more contracts having an interest rate, currency, cash-flow, or other basis
desired by the Commission (a "Swap Agreement"), including, without limitation, interest rate swap agreements, currency
swap agreements, forward payment conversion agreements, futures contracts, contracts providing for payments based on
levels of or changes in interest rates, currency exchange rates, stock or other indices, or contracts to exchange cash flows or a
series of payments, and contracts including, without limitation, interest rate floors or caps, options, puts or calls to hedge
payment, currency rate, spread or similar exposure. In the event the Commission wishes the payments to be made and
received by the Commission under the Swap Agreement to be taken into account in any calculation of Annual Debt Service
under the Indenture, the Commission shall file with the Trustee the following on or before entering into the Swap Agreement
(in which event such Swap Agreement shall constitute an "Approved Swap Agreement"):

(a) A copy certified by a Commission Official of the resolution or resolutions of the Commission authorizing
'i the execution and delivery of the Swap Agreement (no Supplemental Indenture being required unless the Commission

determines it to be necessary or appropriate);

(b) An original executed counterpart of the Swap Agreement;

(c) An opinion of Bond Counsel addressed to the Commission and to the Trustee, to the effect that execution
of the Swap Agreement is permitted under the laws of the Commonwealth and will not adversely affect the exclusion from
gross income from interest on any Bonds for federal income tax purposes; provided that if the Swap Agreement relates to
Bonds being issued and the Swap Agreement is entered into prior to the issuance of such Bonds, the portion of the opinion of
Bond Counsel referring to tax-exempt status of the Bonds need not be delivered until such Bonds are issued;

(d) A certificate of the Commission, signed by a Commission Official, that the Commission is not under
default under the Indenture;

(e) Evidence that the execution of the Swap Agreement will not result in a reduction or withdrawal of the
rating then assigned to any Bonds by the Rating Agency;

(t) Evidence that the provisions with respect to Approved Swap Agreements described under "Limitation on
Issuance of Additional Bonds and Execution of Swap Agreements" have been met; and

(g) Such further documents as are required by the Swap Agreement or Bond Counsel.

In the event the Commission wishes to enter into an Approved Swap Agreement and to have its obligations
thereunder be on parity with all Bonds and other Parity Obligations, it shall file with the Trustee the items set forth above,
together with a supplemental indenture granting such parity position (in which event, such Swap Agreement shall constitute a
"Parity Swap Agreement"). Upon entering into a Parity Swap Agreement, unless otherwise provided in the supplemental
indenture, the Commission shall pay to the Trustee for deposit into the Interest Account the net amount payable, if any, to the
Parity Swap Agreement Counterparty as if such amounts were additional amounts of interest due; and the Trustee shall pay
on behalf of the Commission to the Parity Swap Agreement Counterparty, to the extent required under the Parity Swap
Agreement, amounts deposited in the Interest Account. Net amounts received by the Commission or the Trustee from the
counterparty pursuant to a Parity Swap Agreement shall be deposited to the credit of the Interest Account or to such other
account as designated by a Commission Official,

Amounts paid by or to the Commission pursuant to Approved Swap Agreements which do not constitute Parity
Swap Agreements shall not be required to be made through the Trustee as described in the preceding paragraph (but shall be
taken into account in calculation of Annual Debt Service as provided in the definition of such term).

CONVERSIONS OF VARIABLE RATE INDEBTEDNESS TO FIXED RATE INDEBTEDNESS

The Indenture provides that the Commission may convert Variable Rate Indebtedness to a fixed rate if permitted
pursuant to the terms thereof and if the Commission was in compliance with the Rate Covenant for the most recently
completed Fiscal Year. lfthe Commission did not meet the Rate Covenant for such Fiscal Year, the Commission must treat
the proposed conversion as if it constituted the issuance of Additional Bonds by meeting the requirements set forth in
paragraph (b) below under "Covenants of the Commission -- Limitation on Issuance of Additional Bonds and Execution of
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Swap Agreements" (computing the Annual Debt Service with respect to such Variable Rate Indebtedness proposed to be
converted as bearing interest at the Bond Buyer Index or such other rate as identified by a Financial Consultant as being more
appropriate under the circumstances).

REDEMPTION OF BONDS

The Bonds of any Series issued under the provisions of the Indenture shall be subject to redemption, in whole or in

part, and at such times and prices as may be provided in the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which such Bonds are
issued. The provisions for redemption of the 2009B Bonds are described in the forepart of this Official Statement under
"Description of the 2009B Bonds -- Redemption of 2009B Bonds."

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION

When Bonds (or portions thereof) are to be redeemed, the Commission shall give or cause to be given notice of the
redemption of the Bonds to the Trustee no later than 15 days prior to the last date on which notice of such redemption can be
given or such shorter time as may be acceptable to the Trustee. In the case of an optional redemption, the notice may state
(1) that it is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption,
with the Trustee no later than the redemption date or (2) that the Commission retains the right to rescind such notice at any
time prior to the scheduled redemption date if the Commission delivers a certificate of a Commission Official to the Trustee
instructing the Trustee to rescind the redemption notice (in either case, a "Conditional Redemption"), and such notice and
optional redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys are not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded.

The provisions for notice of redemption for the 2009B Bonds are further described in the forepart of this Official
Statement under "Description of the 2009B Bonds -- Redemption of 2009B Bonds."

On or before the date fixed for redemption, subject to the provisions described above, moneys shall be deposited
with the Trustee to pay the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest accrued to the redemption date on the
Bonds called for redemption. Upon the deposit of such moneys, unless the Commission has given notice of rescission as
described herein, the Bonds shall cease to bear interest on the redemption date and shall no longer be entitled to the benefits
of the Indenture (other than for payment and transfer and exchange) and shall no longer be considered Outstanding.

Any Conditional Redemption may be rescinded in whole or in part at any time prior to the redemption date if the
Commission delivers a certificate of a Commission Official to the Trustee instructing the Trustee to rescind the redemption

notice. The Trustee shall give prompt notice of such rescission to the affected Bondholders. Any Bonds subject to
Conditional Redemption where redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding, and the rescission shall not
constitute an Event of Default. Further, in the case of a Conditional Redemption, the failure of the Commission to make
funds available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an Event of Default.

CONSTRUCTION FUND

The Indenture creates a special fund known as the "Construction Fund", which shall be held in trust by the Trustee.
Money shall be deposited to the Construction Fund pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture and from any other sources
identified by the Commission. Payment of the costs of the construction portion of any Project shall be made from the
Construction Fund. A special account shall be created and identified for each such construction project, although funds, at the
written direction of the Commission, may be transferred from one such account in the Construction Fund to another account
in such Fund. Moneys in the Construction Fund may be disbursed by the Trustee to the Commission upon the filing by the
Commission of a requisition, signed by the Chief Engineer (or his designee) and a Commission Official meeting the
requirements of the Indenture.

If at any time a Commission Official shall file with the Trustee a certificate stating that the cost of a Project has been
finally determined and that the funds remaining in the account established for such Project exceed the remaining costs of the
Project, then an amount equal to such excess shall be transferred to such fund or account as directed in the certificate,
provided the same is accompanied by an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such transfer or and/or application will
not adversely effect the tax-exempt status of the interest of the applicable Bonds.

RATE COVENANT

The Indenture contains the Rate Covenant which is described in the forepart of this Official Statement under
"Security For The 2009B Bonds--Rate Covenant."
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: COVENANTS AS TO TOLLS

The Commission covenants with respect to Tolls as described in the forepart of this Official Statement under
"Security For The 2009B Bonds--Rate Covenant."

COVENANTS OF COMMISSION

In addition to the Rate Covenant and covenants as to Tolls described above, in the Indenture the Commission also

makes various other covenants, including the following covenants:

Payment of Principal, Interest and Premium. The Commission covenants in the Indenture that it will promptly pay
the principal of, premium, if any, and the interest on every Bond issued under the provisions of the Indenture at the places, on
the dates and in the manner provided in the Indenture and in said Bonds. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, the
principal, interest and premium are payable solely from Revenues, which Revenues are hereby pledged to the payment
thereof in the manner and to the extent provided in the Indenture. Neither the general credit of the Commission nor the

general credit nor the taxing power of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision, agency or instrumentality thereof is
pledged for the payment of the Bonds.

Annual Operating Budget; Capital Budget. The Commission covenants in the Indenture that on or before the 31st
day of May (or such other date as is consistent with the Commission's policies then in effect) in each Fiscal Year it will adopt
a budget for the ensuing Fiscal Year (the "Annual Operating Budget"). Copies of each Annual Operating Budget shall be
provided to the Trustee. Prior to adopting the Operating Budget, the Commission shall provide a draft of such budget to the
Consulting Engineer sufficiently in advance of the adoption of such Annual Operating Budget in order for the Consulting
Engineer to provide comments before such adoption. The Commission further covenants in the Indenture that it will prepare
each such Annual Operating Budget on the basis of monthly requirements, so that it will be possible to determine the Current
Expenses for each month during the Fiscal Year.

If for any reason the Commission shall not have adopted the Annual Operating Budget before the first day of any
Fiscal Year, the budget for the preceding Fiscal Year, shall, until the adoption of the Annual Operating Budget, be deemed to
be in force and shall be treated as the Annual Operating Budget.

The Commission may adopt an amended or supplemental Annual Operating Budget at any time for the remainder of
the then current Fiscal Year. Copies of any such amended or supplemental Annual Operating Budget shall be provided to the
Trustee.

The Commission further covenants in the Indenture that it will adopt a capital budget (the "Annual Capital Budget)
on or before May 31st of each Fiscal Year. The Annual Capital Budget will detail the Commission's planned capital
expenditures over a period of up to 10 years and the portion of capital expenditures expected to be funded from the Reserve
Maintenance Fund. The Annual Capital Budget shall include the expected beginning balance in the Reserve Maintenance
Fund, the amounts to be transferred by the Trustee to the Reserve Maintenance Fund from the General Reserve Fund, the
amount of bond proceeds expected to become available during the Fiscal Year, the amounts expected to be transferred
monthly by the Trustee from the Revenue Fund, and the desired year-end balance in the Reserve Maintenance Fund. Prior to
adopting the Annual Capital Budget, the Commission shall provide a draft of the capital budget to the Consulting Engineer a
sufficient time in advance of the Commission's adoption of the Annual Capital Budget in order for the Consulting Engineer to
provide comments before the date of such adoption. The Commission may adopt amendments or supplements to the Annual
Capital Budget at any time. Copies of the Annual Capital Budget shall be made available to the Trustee.

Limitations on Issuance of Additional Bonds and Execution of Approved Swaps. The Commission has covenanted
in the Indenture with respect to issuance of Additional Bonds and execution of Approved Swap Agreements as described in
the forepart of this Official Statement under "Security For The 2009B Bonds---- Additional Bonds Test."

Use and Operation of System. The Commission covenants in the Indenture that (a) it will maintain and operate the
System in an efficient and economical manner, (b) it will maintain the System in good repair and will make all necessary
repairs, renewals and replacements, to the extent funds are available therefor under the Indenture, and (c) it will comply with
laws and all rules, regulations, orders and directions of any legislative, executive, administrative or judicial body applicable
to such System, subject to the right of the Commission to contest the same in good faith and by appropriate legal
proceedings.
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Inspection of the System. The Commission shall make arrangements for the System to be inspected at least once
every three years by engaging one or more Consultants to conduct the actual inspections and to prepare a report. Such report
shall state (a) whether the System has been maintained in good repair, working order and condition since the last inspection
report pursuant to this Section and (b) any recommendations which such Consultants may have as to revisions or additions to
the Commission's Annu'al Capital Budget. Copies of such reports shall be filed with the Trustee.

Construction of Projects. The Commission covenants in the Indenture that it will proceed with diligence to
construct any Projects in conformity with law and all requirements of all governmental authorities having jurisdiction
thereover. Before entering into any construction contract it will secure the approval of the plans and specifications for such
conlyact by a certified engineer or architect, who may be an employee of the Commission, and that it will require each
Person, firm or corporation with whom it may contract in connection with the construction of any Project to furnish (1) a
performance bond for 100% of the contract amount, and (2) a payment bond for 100% of the contract amount. Each of such
bonds shall be executed by one or more responsible surety companies authorized to do business in the Commonwealth. Any
proceeds received from such bonds first shall be applied toward the completion of the applicable Project and second shall be
deposited in the General Reserve Fund. Construction contracts for labor and/or materials also shall provide that payments
thereunder shall not be made by the Commission in excess of 95% of current estimates except that once the work is at least
50% complete, such retainage may be reduced by the Chief Engineer or another Commission Official to the extent such
officer deems such reduction to be necessary or appropriate.

The Commission shall involve the Consulting Engineer or another Consultant to assist in quality assurance matters
in connection with design and/or construction of any Project or portion thereof to the extent the Commission determines
necessary or appropriate. For purposes of this subsection, "quality assurance" shall be defined to mean those activities, from
inception to completion of a Project, which are necessary to ensure that the processes are in place to produce a quality
product.

Employment of Consulting Engineers. The Commission covenants in the Indenture to employ an independent
engineer or engineering finn or corporation having a national reputation for skill and experience in such work to perform any
functions of the Consulting Engineer under the Indenture.

Insurance. The Commission covenants in the Indenture that it will keep the System and its use and operation

thereof insured (including through self-insurance) at all times in such amounts, subject to such exceptions and deductibles
and against such risks, as are customary for similar organizations. All insurance policies shall be carried with a responsible
insurance company or companies authorized to do business in the Commonwealth or shall be provided under a self-insurance
program; any self-insurance program shall be actuarially sound in the written opinion of an accredited actuary, which opinion
shall filed with the Trustee at least annually. At any time and from time to time, the Commission may elect to terminate self-
insurance of a given type. Upon making such election, the Commission shall, to the extent then deemed necessary by a
Consultant, obtain and maintain comparable commercial insurance.

On July 1, 2003 and every three years thereafter (except with respect to self-insurance, which shall be annually), the
Commission shall cause a Consultant to certify to the Trustee that (a) it has reviewed the adequacy of the Commission's
insurance, listing the types and amounts of insurance, and (b) it finds such coverage to be reasonable and customary for
similar organizations, lfthe Consultant concludes that coverage other than that which is currently carried by the Commission
should be carried, the Commission shall obtain such insurance coverage unless it determines in good faith that it is
unreasonable or uneconomical to obtain such coverage and certifies the same in writing to the Trustee.

All insurance policies maintained by the Commission shall be available at reasonable times for inspection by the
Trustee, its agents and representatives.

The Commission covenants that it will take actions as it deems necessary to demand, collect and sue for any
proceeds that may become due and payable to it under any policy

Damage or Destruction. Immediately after any damage to or destruction of any part of the System which materially
adversely affects the Revenues of the Commission, the Commission will promptly take action to repair, reconstruct or replace
the damaged or destroyed property or to otherwise ameliorate the adverse impact on Revenues.

AnnualAudit. The Commission covenants in the Indenture that it will cause an annual audit to be made of its books

and accounts of each Fiscal Year by an independent certified public accoantant. A copy of such audit shall be filed with the
Trustee promptly after the receipt by the Commission for such purpose.

Encumbrance of Revenues; Sale, Lease or Other Disposition of Property. The Commission covenants in the
Indenture that so long as any Bonds are Outstanding under the Indenture:
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(a) (1) It will not create or suffer to be created any lien or charge upon any Revenues, except the lien and

charge of the Bonds secured hereby and any Subordinated Indebtedness permitted pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture;
and (2) from such Revenues or other funds available under the Indenture, it will pay or cause to be discharged, or will make
adequate provision to pay or discharge, within ninety (90) days after the same shall accrue, all lawful claims and demands for
labor, materials or supplies which, if unpaid, might by law become a lien upon any Revenues; provided, however, that the
Commission shall not be required to pay or discharge, or make provision for such payment or discharge of, any such lien or
charge so long as the validity thereof shall be contested in good faith and by appropriate legal proceedings.

(b) The Commission will not sell or otherwise dispose of any real estate or personal property comprising a

portion of the System unless the Commission determines (1) such property (i) has become obsolete or worn out or is
reasonably expected to become so within one year after the date of such disposition, (ii) is no longer used or useful in the
operation of the System or in the generation of Revenues or (iii) is to be or has been replaced by other properly or (2) by
resolution that such action will not materially adversely affect the Net Revenues of the Commission. The Commission shall
have the discretion to deposit the proceeds of such sale or disposition in a fund or account held under the Indenture or a
Commission account held outside the Indenture, as it deems appropriate. In the event the Commission did not meet the Rate
Covenant during the preceding Fiscal Year, however, then the Commission shall notify the Trustee of the sale or disposition
of any property which generated Net Revenues in excess of one percent of the Commission's Net Revenues during the prior
Fiscal Year and all proceeds from such sale or disposition shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund.

(c) The Commission will not lease any real estate or personal property comprising a portion of the System

unless the Commission determines by resolution that such action will not materially adversely affect the Net Revenues of the
Commission. The rental and other proceeds from any lease shall not be required to be deposited in the Revenue Fund unless
the effect of such lease is to reduce Tolls.

Without intending to limit the foregoing, the Commission also may enter into contracts or other forms of agreement
for the use of any real estate comprising a portion of the System including, but not limited to, rights of way for telephone,
telegraph, optic fiber and other forms of communication, electric, gas transmission and other lines or facilities for utilities,
and other uses which do not materially adversely affect the operation of the System and the payments received in connection
with the same shall be deposited in such accounts (which may be outside the Indenture) as the Commission shall determine.

CREATION OF FUNDS

In addition to the Construction Fund and any other funds created by Supplemental Indentures, the Indenture creates
the following funds: Operating Account; Revenue Fund; Debt Service Fund; Debt Service Reserve Fund; Reserve
Maintenance Fund; General Reserve Fund; and Rebate Fund. Amounts deposited therein shall be held in trust by the Trustee
until applied as directed in the Indenture.

REVENUE FUND; AGREEMENTS WITH OTHER TURNPIKES

The Commission covenants in the Indenture that all Revenues will be deposited daily, as far as practicable, with the
Trustee or in the name of the Trustee with a Depositary or Depositaries, to the credit of the Revenue Fund.

The Indenture provides that, to the extent now or hereafter authorized by law, the Commission may enter into
agreements with any commission, authority or other similar legal body operating a turnpike, whether or not connected to the
System, (1) with respect to the establishment of combined schedules of Tolls and/or (2) for the collection and application of
Tolls charged for trips over all or a portion of both turnpikes combined, which on the basis of the Revenues to be received by
any such agreement will result in the receipt by the Commission of its allocable portion of such Tolls (less fees and expenses
associated with such arrangement). To the extent now or hereafter authorized by law, the Commission also may enter into
agreements with other Persons with respect to the collection of Tolls or advances or prepayment of Tolls charged for trips
over all or a portion of the System, which on the basis of the Revenues to be received by any such agreement will result in the
receipt by the Commission of the appropriate Tolls for such trips. Unless approved by a Consultant, no agreement
establishing a combined schedule of Tolls shall restrict the ability of the Commission to implement an increase in its Tolls at
least annually.

Amounts received by the Commission from such other commission, authority or other similar legal body or Person,
in accordance with such agreements, shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund when they constitute Revenues. Such amounts
may be held with a Depository or Depositories until they constitute Revenues. Amounts received by the Commission and
deposited in the Revenue Fund which are payable by the Commission to such other commission, authority or other similar
legal body or Person, in accordance with any such agreements, shall be withdrawn by the Trustee from the Revenue Fund
upon delivery to the Trustee of a certificate of a Commission Official that such withdrawal is required pursuant to the terms
of an agreement entered into pursuant to this Section and shall be paid by the Trustee in accordance with directions contained
in such certificate.
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Except as otherwise provided in the provisions described under this heading, transfers from the Revenue Fund shall
be made to the following funds and in the following order of priority: (1) Rebate Fund; (2) Operating Account; (3) Debt
Service Fund; (4) Reserve Maintenance Fund; (5) Debt Service Reserve Fund; and (6) General Reserve Fund (after retaining
such funds in the Revenue Fund as are identified in the certificate described below under "General Reserve Fund").

OPERATING ACCOUNT

The Indenture provides that the Commission shall establish an account known as the "Operating Account" which is
described in the forepart of this Official Statement under "Security for the 2009B Bonds--Operating Account."

DEBT SERVICE FUND
\

The Indenture creates two separate accounts in the Debt Service Fund to be known as the "Interest Account" and the
"Principal Account."

The Trustee and the Commission may create such additional accounts in the Debt Service Fund pursuant to a
Supplemental Indenture as they deem necessary or appropriate, including, but not limited to, (a)an account into which
drawings on a Credit Facility are to be deposited and from which principal (including redemption price) and Purchase Price
of and interest on the Series of Bonds secured by such Credit Facility are to be paid (and upon such payment, amounts on

deposit in the Principal and Interest Accounts for such Bonds shall be used to repay the provider of the Credit Facility for
such payments), and (b)an account into which payments to the Commission to any Parity Swap Counterparty are to be
deposited and from which payments to such Parity Swap Counterparty are to be paid.

The Trustee shall make deposits into the Debt Service Fund as described in the forepart of this Official Statement
under "Security for the 2009B Bonds--Debt Service Fund."

The moneys in the Interest and Principal Accounts shall be held by the Trustee in trust for the benefit of the Bonds,
to the extent the foregoing are payable from such accounts, and, to said extent and pending application, shall be subject to a
lien and charge in favor of the Owners of the Bonds until paid out or transferred as provided in the Indenture. There shall be
withdrawn from the Interest Account (and any available capitalized interest) and the Principal Account from time to time and
set aside or deposited with the Trustee sufficient money for paying the interest on and the principal of and premium on the
Bonds as the same shall become due, except to the extent such interest, principal or other amounts are payable fi'om a fund or
account other than the Debt Service Fund as provided in any Supplemental Indenture.

lfat the time the Trustee is required to make a withdrawal from the Debt Service Fund the moneys therein shall not
be sufficient for such purpose, the Trustee shall withdraw the amount of such deficiency from the moneys on deposit in the
following funds or accounts and transfer the same to the Debt Service Fund in the following order: the Debt Service Reserve
Fund, the General Reserve Fund, and the Reserve Maintenance Fund.

A 2009B Account of the Debt Service Fund is being created for the purpose of depositing and disbursing funds for
payment of debt service on the 2009B Bonds.

RESERVE MAINTENANCE FUND

In each Fiscal Year, after first having made the deposits to the Revenue Fund, Operating Account and Debt Service
Fund provided by the provisions described above, the Trustee shall transfer from the Revenue Fund on or before the last
Business Day of each month to the credit of the Reserve Maintenance Fund the amount shown in the Annual Capital Budget
for the ensuing month. The provisions regarding the Reserve Maintenance Fund are further described in the forepart of this
Official Statement under "Security for the 2009B Bonds--Reserve Maintenance Fund."

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND

The Indenture establishes a Debt Service Reserve Fund and provides that a special account within the Debt Service
Reserve Fund may be created with respect to each series of Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds issued under the Indenture and
any Supplemental Indenture.

A special account is being established in the Debt Service Reserve Fund in connection with the 2009B Bonds (the
"2009B Account"). All earnings on investments held in the 2009B Account shall be transferred to the 2009B Account of the
Debt Service Fund, such transfers to be made no less frequently than semi-annually, on the second Business Day preceding
each Interest Payment Date.
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In each Fiscal Year, after first having made the deposits to the Operating Account, Debt Service Fund and Reserve
Maintenance Fund described above, the Trustee shall transfer from the Revenue Fund on or before the last day of each month
to the credit of the Debt Service Reserve Fund (a) the amount, if any, required to make the amount on deposit in the Debt

Service Reserve Fund equal to the Debt Service Reserve Requirement which restoration, as implied by the Rate Covenant, is
intended to occur within eighteen (18) months; and (b) the amount set forth in a Supplemental Indenture if an amount
different from the Debt Service Reserve Requirement is required.

To the extent accounts are created in the Debt Service Reserve Fund for Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds, the

funds and DSRF Security, as hereinafter defined, held therein shall be available to make payments required under the
Indenture for the benefit of all Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds.

Moneys held in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be used for the purpose of paying interest on, maturing
principal and mandatory sinking fund redemption price of Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds whenever and to the extent that
the moneys held for the credit of the Debt Service Fund shall be insufficient for such purpose. If at any time the moneys and
the principal amount of any DSRF Security held in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall exceed the Debt Service Reserve
Requirement, the Commission shall direct whether, such excess moneys shall be transferred by the Trustee to the credit of the
General Reserve Fund or used to reduce the principal amount of any DSRF Security.

P

In the event the Trustee shall be required to withdraw funds from the Debt Service Reserve Fund to restore a
deficiency in the Debt Service Fund arising with respect to Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds, the amount of such deficiency
shall be allocated pro rata among such Bonds except to the extent provided in the last sentence of the next paragraph.

In lieu of the deposit of moneys into the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the Commission may cause to be provided a
surety bond, an insurance policy, a letter of credit or similar financial instrument satisfactory to the Rating Agency (as
evidenced by a letter from the Rating Agency confirming that the DSRF Security will not result in the rating on any
outstanding Bonds being downgraded) (each, a "DSRF Security") payable to the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders in
an amount equal to the difference between the Debt Service Reserve Requirement and the amounts then on deposit in the
Debt Service Reserve Fund. The DSRF Security shall be payable (upon the giving of notice as required thereunder) on any
Interest Payment Date on which moneys will be required to be withdrawn from the Debt Service Reserve Fund and applied to
the payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds to the extent that such withdrawals cannot be made by amounts on
deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund.

Ifa disbursement is made pursuant to a DSRF Security, the Commission shall be obligated either (a) to reinstate the
maximum limits of such DSRF Security or (b) to deposit into the Debt Service Reserve Fund, funds in the amount of the
disbursement made under such DSRF Security, or a combination of such alternatives, as shall provide that the amount
credited to the Debt Service Reserve Fund equals the Debt Service Reserve Requirement within a time period of eighteen
(18) months.

If the DSRF Security shall cease to have a rating described in the second preceding paragraph, the Commission shall
use reasonable efforts to replace such DSRF Security with one having the required rating, but shall not be obligated to pay, or
commit to pay, increased fees, expenses or interest in connection with such replacement or to deposit Revenues in the Debt
Service Reserve Fund in lieu of replacing such DSRF Security with another.

GENERAL RESERVE FUND

After first having made the deposits to the Operating Account, Debt Service Fund, Reserve Maintenance Fund and
Debt Service Reserve Fund described above, the Trustee shall transfer from the Revenue Fund on or before the last Business
Day of each year (or more frequently if the Commission determines that excess funds are on deposit in the Revenue Fund) to
the credit of the General Reserve Fund any funds which a Commission Official determines to be in excess of the amount
required to be reserved therein for future transfers to the Debt Service Fund. The provisions regarding the General Reserve
Fund are further described in the forepart of this Official Statement under "Security for the 2009B Bonds---General Reserve
Fund."

REBATE FUND

The Indenture authorizes the creation of a Rebate Fund. The Commission covenants in the Indenture to calculate and

to pay directly to the government of the United States of America all amounts due for payment of "arbitrage rebate" under
Section 148(0 of the Code with respect to any Bonds. Nevertheless, the Commission in the future may deposit with the
Trustee or direct the Trustee to deposit in the Rebate Fund amounts held in any Fund under the Indenture for any or all Series
of Bonds (which direction shall specify the procedures for collection and payment of amounts due in respect of arbitrage
rebate) if(a) required under any amendments to Section 148(t) of the Code or (b) the Commission otherwise determines that
the funding of the Rebate Fund is necessary or appropriate. The Rebate Fund is a trust fund but the amounts therein do not
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constitute part of the Trust Estate. Amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund may be used solely to make payments to the
United States of America under Section 148 of the Code and to pay costs related to the calculation of the amounts due. Upon
satisfaction of the Commission's covenants described above, any amounts remaining in the Rebate Fund shall be deposited in
the General Reserve Fund.

ADDITIONAL SECURITY; PARITY WITH OTHER PARITY OBLIGATIONS

Except as otherwise provided or permitted in the Indenture, the Trust Estate securing all Bonds issued under the
terms of the Indenture shall be shared on a parity with other Parity Obligations on an equal and ratable basis. The
Commission may, however, in its discretion, provide additional security or credit enhancement for specified Parity
Obligations with no obligation to provide such additional security or credit enhancement to other Parity Obligations, except
that no additional security or credit enhancement shall be provided unless there shall have been first delivered to the Trustee
an opinion of Bond Counsel that the exclusion from gross income of interest on any Bonds for federal income tax purposes
will not be adversely affected thereby. Moreover, the Commission may provide in a Supplemental Indenture that Bonds
issued thereunder are not secured, or are secured only in part or only under certain circumstances, by the Trust Estate.

DEPOSITARIES; INVESTMENT OF MONEYS

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, all moneys received by the Commission under the provisions of the
Indenture shall be deposited with the Trustee or with one or more Depositaries. All moneys deposited under the provisions of
the Indenture with the Trustee or any other Depositary shall be held in trust, credited to the particular fund or account to
which such moneys belong and applied only in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. No moneys shall be
deposited with any Depositary, other than the Trustee, in an amount exceeding fifty per centum (50%) of the amount which
an officer of such Depositary shall certify to the Commission as the combined capital and surplus of such Depositary. All
moneys deposited with the Trustee or any other Depositary under the Indenture shall, to the extent not insured, be secured in
the mauner required or permitted by applicable law.

Moneys held in any of the funds or accounts under the Indenture may be retained uninvested, if deemed necessary
by the Commission, as trust funds and secured as provided above or may be invested in Permitted Investments. All
investments made pursuant to the Indenture shall be subject to withdrawal or shall mature or be subject to repurchase or

redemption by the holder, not later than the earlier of (a) the date or dates set forth for similar investments in the applicable
Supplemental Indenture or (b) the date on which the moneys may reasonably be expected to be needed for the purpose of the
Indenture.

Investments acquired with the moneys in any fund or account shall be a part of such fund or account and, for the
purposes of determining the amount in such fund or account, shall be valued at their then fair market value. The interest or
income received on an investment shall remain in the fund or account to which the investment is credited except to the extent
otherwise provided in the applicable Supplemental Indenture.

The Trustee shall withdraw, redeem or sell all or a portion of any investment upon receipt of the writtun direction
from the Commission or upon a determination by the Trustee that moneys in such fund or account are to be applied or paid
by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture, and the proceeds thereof shall be deposited by the Trustee in the
appropriate fund or account. Neither the Trustee nor the Commission shall be liable or responsible for any depreciation in the
value of the Permitted Investments or for any losses incurred upon any unauthorized disposition thereof.

Each fund held under the Indenture shall be valued by the Trustee at least once annually within thirty days atter the
end of each Fiscal Year.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Each of the following is an "Event of Default" under the Indenture:

(a) Default in the payment of any installment of principal, redemption premium, if any, interest or
other amount due on any Bond when the same becomes due and payable;

(b) Default in th_ payment by the Commission of any other Parity Obligation;

(c) Subject to the provisions relating to notice and opportunity to cure certain defaults, default in the
performance or breach of any covenant, warranty or representation of the Commission contained in the Indenture (other than
a default under (a) and (b) above);

(d) The occurrence of any Event of Default under any Supplemental Indenture; or
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(e) (1) The occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy of the Commission; (2) the appointment of a
receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator or other similar official of the Commission or of any substantial
portion of its property, which appointment shall not have been rescinded or stayed within ninety (90) days after taking effect;
or (3) the ordering of the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of the Commission.

No default under paragraph (c) above under "Events of Default" shall constitute an Event of Default until written
notice of such default shall have been given to the Commission by the Trustee or by the holders of at least 25% in aggregate
principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding, and the Commission shall have had thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to
correct such default or cause such default to be corrected, and shall have failed to do so. In the event, however, that the

default is such that it cannot be corrected within such thirty (30) day period, it shall not constitute an Event of Default if
corrective action is instituted by the Commission within such period and diligently pursued (as determined by the Trustee)
until the default is corrected.

REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT.

lfan Event of Default occurs and is continuing, the Trustee may, and upon the written request to the Trustee by the
holder or holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall, subject to the
requirement that the Trustee be provided with indemnity satisfactory to it, by written notice to the Commission, declare the
principal and interest on of the Bonds to the date of acceleration to be immediately due and payable.

At any time after such a declaration of acceleration has been made and before the entry of a judgment or decree for

payment of the money due, the Trustee may, or the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the
Bonds then Outstanding, may by written notice to the Commission and the Trustee, and subject to the provision to the
Trustee of satisfactory indenmity, direct the Trustee to rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences if: (1) there
has been paid to or deposited with the Trustee by or for the account of the Commission, or provision satisfactory to the
Trustee has been made for the payment of a sum sufficient to pay: (i) all overdue installments of interest on the Bonds;
(ii) the principal of and redemption premium, if any, on any Bonds which have become due other than by such declaration of
acceleration and interest thereon; (iii) all amounts due on other Parity Obligations; (iv) to the extent lawful, interest upon
overdue installments of interest and redemption premium, if any; and (v) all sums paid or advanced by the Trustee under the
Indenture, together with the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and

counsel prior to the date of notice of rescission; and (2) all Events of Default, other than those described in paragraphs (a) and
(b) above under "Events of Default", if any, which have occasioned such acceleration, have been cured or waived.

No such rescission and annulment shall affect any subsequent default or impair any consequent right.

ADDITIONAL REMEDIES

The Trustee, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default may, and upon the written request of the holders of not less
than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding and subject to the requirement that the Trustee be
provided with satisfactory indemnity, shall proceed to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the holders of the Bonds
under the Indenture by a suit or suits in equity or at law, either for the specific performance of any covenant or agreement
contained in the Indenture or in aid of the execution of any power in the Indenture granted, or for the enforcement of any
other appropriate legal or equitable remedy, and the Trustee in reliance upon the advice of counsel may deem most effective
to protect and enforce any of the fights or interests of the Bondholders under the Bonds or the Indenture.

TRUSTEE MAY FILE PROOFS OF CLAIM

In case of the pendency of any receivership, insolvency, liquidation, bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement,
adjustment, composition or other judicial proceeding under the Bankruptcy Law relating to the Commission, any other
obligor upon the Bonds or any property of the Commission, the Trustee (whether or not the principal of the Bonds shall then
be due and payable by acceleration or otherwise, and whether or not the Trustee shall have made any demand upon the
Commission for the payment of overdue principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest) shall be entitled and
empowered, by intervention in such proceeding or other means: (1) to file and prove a claim for the whole amount of the
principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest owing and unpaid in respect of the Bonds then Outstanding or for breach
of the Indenture and to file such other papers or documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of
the Trustee (including any claim for the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its
agents and counsel) and of the holders allowed in such proceeding; and (2) to collect and receive any moneys or other
property payable or deliverable on any such claims and to distribute the same; and any receiver, assignee, trustee, liquidator,
sequestrator or similar official in any such judicial proceeding is hereby authorized by each holder to make such payments to
the Trustee and, in the event that the Trustee shall consent to the making of such payments directly to the holders, to pay to
the Trustee any amount due it for the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its
agents and counsel, and any other amounts due the Trustee under the Indenture. No provision of the Indenture empowers the
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Trustee to authorize or consent to or accept or adopt on behalf of any Bondholders any plan of reorganization, arrangement,
adjustment or composition affecting any of the Bonds or the rights of any holder thereof, or to authorize the Trustee to vote in
respect of the claim of any holder in any proceeding described in the preceding paragraph.

PRIORITY OF PAYMENT FOLLOWING EVENT OF DEFAULT

Any portion of the Trust Estate held or received by the Trustee, by any receiver or by any Bond Owner pursuant to
any right given or action taken under the provisions of the Indenture, after payment of the costs and expenses of the
proceedings resulting in the collection of such moneys and of the fees, expenses and liabilities incurred by the Trustee and
the transfer to Secured Owners (other than Owners of the Bonds) of amounts to which they are entitled by virtue of their

parity position, shall be deposited and applied as follows:

(a) If the principal of all the Bonds then Outstanding and the interest accrued thereon has been
declared to be due and payable immediately pursuant to the acceleration provisions described above (or, but for any legal
prohibition on such declaration of acceleration, such principal and interest would have been declared to be due and payable
immediately pursuant to such Section or the provisions of any applicable Reimbursement Agreement) and such declaration
has not been rescinded and annulled, there shall be deposited into the Debt Service Fund moneys sufficient to pay the
amounts described in clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) below, and all such moneys shall be applied, as promptly as practicable (but
subject to the provisions of the last paragraph of this Section), proportionately to:

(i) the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all payments of interest then due on the Bonds with
interest on overdue installments, if lawful, at their respective rates from the respective dates upon which they
became due, in the order of maturity of the installments of such interest and, if the amount available shall not be
sufficient to pay in full any particular installment of interest, then to the payment ratably, according to the amounts
due on such installment;

(ii) the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal of any of the Bonds which shall
have become due (or which but for any legal prohibition on such declaration of acceleration would have become
due) with interest on such Bonds at their respective rates from the respective dates upon which they became due and,
if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full the Bonds due on any particular date, together with such

interest, then to the payment ratably, according to the amount of principal and interest due on such date, in each case
to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or privilege;

(iii) the payment of any other amounts then owing under the Indenture; and, after said deposit into the
Debt Service Fund, there shall be paid the Subordinated Indebtedness issued or incurred by the Commission
pursuant to the Indenture.

(b) If the principal of and interest on all Bonds then Outstanding and has not been declared to be due
and payable immediately pursuant to the acceleration provisions described above (or deemed to be due and payable as
contemplated in paragraph (a) above) or if such a declaration has been rescinded and annulled, then there shall be deposited
into the Debt Service Fund moneys sufficient to pay the amounts described in clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) below, and all such
moneys shall be applied, as promptly as practicable (but subject to the provisions of the last paragraph of this Section),

(i) first, to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest then due on the
Bonds, with interest on overdue installments, if lawful, at their respective rates from the respective dates upon which
they became due, in the order of maturity and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any
particular installment of interest, then to the payment ratably, according to the amounts due on such installment;

(ii) second, to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal of any of the Bonds
which shall have become due with interest on such Bonds at their respective rates fi'om the respective dates upon
which they became due and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full the Bonds due on any
particular date, together with such interest, then to the payment ratably, according to the amount of principal and
interest due on such date, in each case to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or privilege; and

(iii) third, to the payment of any other amounts then owing under the Indenture, and, after said deposit
into the Debt Service Fund, there shall be paid the Subordinated Indebtedness issued or incurred by the Commission
pursuant to the Indenture.

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the above provisions, such moneys shall be applied at such times,
and from time to time, as the Trustee shall determine, having due regard to the amount of such moneys available for
application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such application in the future. Whenever the
Trustee shall apply such funds, it shall fix the date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date unless it shall deem another date
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more suitable) upon which sucl_ application is to be made and upon such date interest on the amounts of principal and interest
to be paid on such date shall cease to accrue. The Trustee shall give notice of the deposit with it of any such moneys and of

,: the fixing of any such date by mail to all Owners of Bonds with respect to which the Event of Default occurred and shall not
be required to make payment to any Bond Owner until such Bonds shall be presented to the Trustee for appropriate
endorsement or for cancellation if fully paid.

BONDHOLDERS MAY DIRECT PROCEEDINGS

The owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding shall, subject to the requirement
that the Trustee be provided with satisfactory indemnity, have the right, by an instrument or instruments in writing executed
and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the method and place of conducting all remedial proceedings by the Trustee under the
Indenture, provided that such direction shall not be in conflict with any rule of law or the Indenture and that the Trustee shall
have the right to decline to follow any such direction which in the opinion of the Trustee would be unduly prejudicial to the
rights of Bondholders not parties to such direction or would subject the Trustee to personal liability or expense.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee shall have the right to select and retain counsel of its choosing to represent it in
any such proceedings. The Trustee may take any other action which is not inconsistent with any direction under this
provision.

LIMITATIONS ON RIGHTS OF BONDHOLDERS

No Bondholder shall have any right to pursue any other remedy under the Indenture or the Bonds unless: (1) an
Event of Default shall have occurred and is continuing; (2) the owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal
amount of all Bonds then Outstanding have requested the Trustee, in writing, to exercise the powers hereinabove granted or
to pursue such remedy in its or their name or names; (3) the Trustee has been offered indemnity satisfactory to it against
costs, expenses and liabilities reasonably anticipated to be incurred; (4) the Trustee has declined to comply with such request,
or has failed to do so, within sixty (60) days after its receipt of such written request and offer of indemnity; and (5) no
direction inconsistent with such request has been given to the Trustee during such 60 day period by the holders of a majority
in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding.

The provisions of the preceding paragraph are conditions precedent to the exercise by any Bondholder of any
remedy under the Indenture. The exercise of such rights is further subject to the provisions described under "Bondholders
May Direct Proceedings" and "Delay or Omission Not Waiver" and certain other provisions of the Indenture. No one or more
Bondholders shall have any fight in any manner whatever to enforce any right under the Indenture, except in the manner
provided in the Indenture. All proceedings at law or in equity with respect to an Event of Default shall be instituted and
maintained in the manner provided in the Indenture for the equal and ratable benefit of the Bondholders of all Bonds
Outstanding.

RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CUMULATIVE

No right or remedy in the Indenture conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee is intended to be exclusive of any
other right or remedy, but each such right or remedy shall, to the extent permitted by law, be cumulative of and in addition to
every other right or remedy given under the Indenture or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity or otherwise. The
assertion or employment of any right or remedy under the Indenture shall not prevent the concurrent assertion or employment
of any other appropriate right or remedy.

DELAY OR OMISSION NOT WAIVER

No delay or omission by the Trustee or any Bondholder to exercise any right or remedy accruing upon any Event of
Default shall impair any such right or remedy or constitute a waiver of such Event of Default. Every right and remedy given
by the Indenture or by law to the Trustee or the Bondholders may be exercised fi'om time to time, and as often as may as
deemed expedient, by the Trustee or the Bondholders, as the case may be.

WAIVER OF DEFAULTS

/

The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds may, by written notice to the
Trustee and subject to the requirement that the Trustee be provided with satisfactory indemnity, waive any existing default or
Event of Default and its consequences, except an Event of Default under paragraph (a) or (b) under "Events of Default."
Upon any such waiver, the default or Event of Defanlt shall be deemed cured and shall cease to exist for all purposes. No
waiver of any default or Event of Default shall extend to or effect any subsequent default or Event of Default or shall impair
any right or remedy consequent thereto.
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Notwithstanding any provision of the Indenture, in no event shall any Person, other than all of the affected
Bondholders, have the ability to waive any Event of Default under the Indenture if such event results or may result, in the
opinion of Bond Counsel, in interest on any of the Bonds becoming includable in gross income for federal income tax
purposes if the interest on such Bonds was not includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes prior to such
event.

NOTICE OF EVENTS OF DEFAULT

lfan Event of Default occurs of which the Trustee has or is deemed to have notice under the Indenture, the Trustee

shall give Immediate Notice thereof to the Commission. Within 90 days thereafter (unless such Event of Default has been
cured or waived), the Trustee shall give notice of such Event of Default to each Bondholder then Outstanding, provided,
however, that except in the instance of an Event of Default described in paragraph (a) or (b) above under "Events of Default,"
the Trustee may withhold such notice if and so long as the Trustee in good faith determines that the withholding of such
notice does not materially adversely affect the interests of Bondholders, and provided, further, that notice to Bondholders of
any Event of Default under paragraph (c) under "Events of Default" shall be subject to the provisions described above
relating to cure of such defaults and shall not be given until the grace period has expired.

THE TRUSTEE; QUALIFICATIONS OF TRUSTEE

The Indenture contains provisions relating to the appointment and duties of the Trustee. The trustee under the
Indenture shall be a corporation or banking association organized and doing business under the laws of the United States of
America or of any state, authorized under such laws to exercise corporate trust powers, which has a combined capital and
surplus of at least $50,000,000, or is an affiliate of, or has a contractual relationship with, a corporation or banking
association meeting such capital and surplus requirement which guarantees the obligations and liabilities of the proposed
trustee, and which is subject to supervision or examination by federal or state banking authority. If at any time the Trustee
shall cease to be eligible in accordance with the provision described above, it shall resign promptly in the manner and with
the effect specified in the Indenture.

RESIGNATION OR REMOVAL OF TRUSTEE; APPOINTMENT OF SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE

No resignation or removal of the Trustee and no appointment of a successor Trustee pursuant to the Indenture shall
become effective until the acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee under the Indenture.

The Trustee may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Commission. Upon receiving such notice of
resignation, the Commission shall promptly appoint a successor Trustee by an instrument in writing. If an instrument of
acceptance has not been delivered to the resigning Trustee within 30 days after the giving of such notice of resignation, the
resigning Trustee or any Bondholder may petition a court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor
Trustee.

Prior to the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default under the Indenture, or after the curing or waiver of
any such Event of Default, the Commission or the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding
Bonds, may remove the Trustee and shall appoint a successor Trustee. In the event there shall have occurred and be
continuing an Event of Default under the Indenture, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the
Outstanding Bonds may remove the Trustee and shall appoint a successor Trustee. In each instance, such removal and
appointment shall be accomplished by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed by the Commission or such
holders, as the case may be, and delivered to the Trustee, the Commission, the holders of the Outstanding Bonds and the
Successor Trustee.

If at any time: (1) the Trustee shall cease to be eligible and qualified under the Indenture and shall fail or refuse to
resign after written request to do so by the Commission or the holder of any Bond, or (2) the Trustee shall become incapable
of acting or shall be adjudged insolvent, or a receiver of the Trustee or its property shall be appointed, or any public officer
shall take charge or control of the Trustee, its properly or affairs for the purpose of rehabilitatinn, conservation or liquidation,
then in either such case (i) the Commission may remove the Trustee and appoint a successor Trustee in accordance with the
provisions of the immediately preceding paragraph; or (ii) any holder of a Bond then Outstanding may, on behalf of the
holders of all Outstanding Bonds, petition a court of competent jurisdiction for removal of the Trustee and appointment of a
successor Trustee.

The Commission shall give written notice of each resignation or removal of the Trustee and each appointment of a
successor Trustee to each holder of Bonds then Outstanding as listed in the Bond Register. Each such notice shall include the
name and address of the applicable corporate trust office of the successor Trustee.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES WITHOUT BONDHOLDERS' CONSENT

The Indenture provides that the Commission and the Trustee may from time to time and at any time enter into
Supplemental Indentures, without the consent of or notice to any Bondholder, to effect any one or more of the following:
(a) cure any ambiguity, defect or omission or correct or supplement any provision in the Indenture or in any Supplemental
Indenture; (b) grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders any additional rights, remedies, powers,
authority or securitythat may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Bondholders or the Trustee which are not contrary
to or inconsistent with the Indenture as then in effect or to subject to the pledge and lien of the Indenture additional revenues,
properties or collateral including Defeasance Obligations; (c) add to the covenants and agreements of the Commission in the
Indenture other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed by the Commission or to surrender any right or power in
the Indenture reserved to or conferred upon the Commission which are not contrary to or inconsistent with the Indenture as
then in effect; (d) permit the appointment of a co-trustee under the Indenture; (e) modify, alter, supplement or amend the
Indenture in such manner as shall permit the qualification of the Indenture, if required, under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939,
the Securities Act of 1933 or any similar federal statute hereafter in effect; (f) make any other change in the Indenture that is
determined by the Trustee not to be materially adverse to the interests of the Bondholders; (g) implement the issuance of
Additional Bonds permitted under the Indenture; or (h) if all Bonds in a series are Book Entry Bonds, amend, modify, alter or
replace any Letter of Representations as provided in Section 209 of the Indenture or other provisions relating to Book Entry
Bonds. The Trustee shall not be obligated to enter into any such Supplemental Indenture which adversely affects the
Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities under the Indenture.

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES REQUIRING BONDHOLDERS' CONSENT

The Commission and the Trustee, at any time and from time to time, may execute and deliver a Supplemental
_, Indenture for the purpose of making any modification or amendment to the Indenture, but only with the written consent,

given as provided in the Indenture, of the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds
Outstanding at the time such consent is given, and in case less than all of the Bonds then Outstanding are affected by the
modification or amendment, of the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds so affected and
Outstanding at the time such consent is given; provided, however, that if such modification or amendment will, by its terms,
not take effect so long as any Bonds so affected remain Outstanding, the consent of the holders of such Bonds shall not be
required and such Bonds shall not be deemed to be Outstanding for the purpose of any calculation of Outstanding Bonds
under these provisions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no modification or amendment contained in any such Supplemental
Indenture shall permit any of the following, without the consent of each Bondholder whose rights are affected thereby: (a) a
change in the terms of stated maturity or redemption of any Bond or of any installment of interest thereon; (b) a reduction in
the principal amount of or redemption premium on any Bond or in the rate of interest thereon or a change in the coin or
currency in which such Bond is payable; (c) the creation of a lien on or a pledge of any part of the Trust Estate which has
priority over or parity with (to the extent not permitted under the Indenture) the lien or pledge granted to the Bondholders
under the Indenture (but this provision shall not apply to the release of any part of the Trust Estate as opposed to the creation
of a prior or parity lien or pledge); (d) the granting of a preference or priority of any Bond or Bonds over any other Bond or
Bonds, except to the extent permitted in the Indenture; (e) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of Bonds of which
the consent of the Bondholders is required to effect any such modification or amendment; or (f) a change in the provisions of
the Indenture provisions relating to amendments and supplements. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the holder of any Bond
may extend the time for payment of the principal of or interest on such Bond; provided, however, that upon the occurrence of
an Event of Default, funds available under the Indenture for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall
not be applied to any payment so extended until all principal and interest payments which have not been extended have first
been paid in full. Notice of any Supplemental Indenture executed pursuant to the provisions described above shall be given to
the Bondholders promptly following the execution thereof.

CONSENTS OF BONDHOLDERS AND OPINIONS

Each Supplemental Indenture executed and delivered pursuant to the provisions described under "Supplemental
Indentures Requiring Bondholders' Consent" shall take effect only when and as provided below. A copy of such
Supplemental Indenture (or brief summary thereof or reference thereto in form approved by the Trustee), together with a
request to Bondholders for their consent thereto in form satisfactory to the Trustee, shall be sent by the Trustee to
Bondholders, at the expense of the Commission, by first class mail, postage prepaid, provided that a failure to mail such

request shall not affect the validity of the Supplemental Indenture when consented to as provided !n the Indenture. Such
Supplemental Indenture shall not be effective unless and until there shall have been filed with the Trustee (a) the written
consents of Bondholders of the percentage of Bonds specified above under "Supplemental Indentures Requiting Bondholders'
Consent" given as provided in the Indenture, and (b) an opinion of counsel acceptable to the Trustee stating that (1) the
execution of such Supplemental Indenture is authorized or permitted by the Indenture and (2) all conditions precedent to the
execution and delivery of such Supplemental Indenture have been complied with, and an opinion of Bond Counsel that the
execution and performance of such Supplemental Indenture shall not, in and of itself, adversely affect the federal income tax
status of any Bonds, the interest on which is not included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Any such consent
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shall be binding upon the Bondholder giving such consent and upon any subsequent holder of such Bonds and of any Bonds
issued in exchange therefor or in lieu thereof (whether or not such subsequent Bondholder has notice thereof), unless such
consent is revoked in writing by the Bondholder giving such consent or a subsequent holder of such Bonds by filing such

revocation with the Trustee prior to the date the Trustee receives the material required in clauses (a) and (b) above.

Notwithstanding anything else in the Indenture, if a Supplemental Indenture is to become on the same date as the
date of issuance of Additional Bonds, the consents of the underwriters or purchasers of such Additional Bonds shall be

counted for purposes of the Indenture.

The Indenture provides that Bonds which are to be disregarded under the last sentence of the definition of
"Outstanding" shall not be deemed Outstanding for the purpose of consent or other action or any calculation of Outstanding
Bonds provided for in this Article. At the time of any consent or other action taken under this Article or elsewhere in the
Indenture, the Commission shall furnish the Trustee a certificate of a Commission Official, upon which the Trustee may rely,
describing all Bonds so to be excluded.

DISCHARGE OF BONDS

If (a) the principal of any Bonds and the interest due or to become due thereon, together with any redemption
premium required by redemption of any of the Bonds prior to maturity, shall be paid, or is caused to be paid, or is provided
for as described below under "Defeasance," at the times and in the mauner to which reference is made in the Bonds,

according to the true intent and meaning thereof, or the outstanding Bonds shall have been paid and discharged in accordance
with the Indenture, and (b) all of the covenants, agreements, obligations, terms and conditions of the Commission under the
Indenture shall have been kept, performed and observed and there shall have been paid to the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and
the Paying Agents all sums of money due or to become due to them in accordance with the terms and provisions of the
Indenture, then the right, title and interest of the Trustee in the Trust Estate shall thereupon cease and the Trustee, on request
of the Commission and at the expense of the Commission, shall release the Indenture and the Trust Estate and shall execute
such documents to evidence such release as may be reasonably required by the Commission and shall turn over to the
Commission, or to such other Person as may be entitled to receive the same, all balances remaining in any Funds under the
Indenture except for amounts required to pay such Bonds or held unclaimed in respect of Bonds which have matured or been
redeemed pursuant to the Indenture.

If payment or provision therefor is made with respect to less than all of the 2009B Bonds of a maturity, the
particular 2009B Bonds within such maturity for which provision for payment shall have been made shall be selected by lot
or by such other method as the Trustee deems fair and appropriate, and thereupon the Trustee shall take similar action for the
release of the Indenture with respect to such 2009B Bonds.

DEFEASAN'CE

Provision for the payment of 2009B Bonds shall be deemed to have been made when the Trustee holds in the Debt
Service Fund (1) cash in an amount sufficient to make all payments (including principal, premium, if any, and interest)
specified above with respect to such 2009B Bonds, or (2) direct non-callable obligations of the United States of America and
securities fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to the timely payment of principal and interest by the United States of
America, to which direct obligation or guarantee the full faith and credit of the United States of America has been pledged,
Refcorp interest strips, CATS, TIGRS, STRPS, or defeased municipal bonds rated AAA by S&P or Aaa by Moody's (or any
combination of the foregoing), or (3) any combination of cash and obligations described in clause (2) above the amounts of
which and interest thereon, when due, are or will be, in the aggregate, sufficient (together with any earnings thereon) to make
all such payments. If provision is to be made for the payment of less than 100% of the 2009B Bonds Outstanding, the Trustee
shall have received written confirmation from each Rating Agency then rating the 2009B Bonds at the request of the
Commission that any ratings on the 2009B Bonds for which such payment provision is not to be made will remain unaffected
by such proyision.

Neither the moneys nor the obligations deposited with the Trustee pursuant to this Article shall be withdrawn or
used for any purpose other than, and such obligations and moneys shall be segregated and held in trust for, the payment of the
principal or redemption price of, premium, if any, on and interest on, the 2009B Bonds (or portions thereof) to be no longer
entitled to the lien of this Indenture; provided that such moneys, if not then needed for such purpose, shall, to the extent
practicable, be invested and reinvested in Government Obligations maturing on or prior to the Interest Payment Date next
succeeding the date of investment or reinvestment.

Whenever moneys or obligations shall be deposited with the Trustee for the payment or redemption of 2009B Bonds
more than 60 days prior to the date that such 2009B Bonds are to mature or be redeemed, the Trustee shall mail a notice to
the Owners of 2009B Bonds for the payment of which such moneys or obligations are being held at their registered addresses
stating that such moneys or obligations have been deposited. Such notice shall also be sent by the Trustee to each Rating
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Agency then rating the 2009B Bonds at the request of the Commission. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no provision for
payment shall be deemed to have been made with respect to any 2009B Bonds which are to be redeemed prior to their stated
maturity until such 2009B Bonds shall have been irrevocably called or designated for redemption on a date thereafter on
which such 2009B Bonds may be redeemed and proper notice of such redemption shall have been given or the Commission
shall have given the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, irrevocable instructions to give proper notice of such
redemption.

In the event of a deposit of moneys or obligations for the payment or redemption of the 2009B Bonds described
above, the Commission shall cause to be delivered a verification report of an independent, nationally recognized certified

public accountant confirming that the above-described requirements have been satisfied. If a forward supply contract is
employed in connection with the advance refunding, (i) such verification report shall expressly state that the adequacy of the
escrow to accomplish the refunding relies solely on the initial escrowed investments and the maturing principal thereof and
interest income thereon and does not assume performance under or compliance with the forward supply contract, and (ii) the
applicable escrow agreement shall provide that in the event of any discrepancy or difference between the terms of the forward
supply contract and the escrow agreement (or the authorizing document, if no separate escrow agreement is utilized), the
terms of the escrow agreement or authorizing document, if applicable, shall be controlling.

At such times as a 2009B Bond shall be deemed to be paid ander the Indenture, as aforesaid, it shall no longer be
secured by or entitled to the benefits of the Indenture, except for the purposes of any such payment from such money or
Defeasance Obligations.

NOTICE OF DEFEASANCE

In case any of the Bonds, for the payment of which moneys or Defeasance Obligations have been deposited with the
Trustee pursuant to the provisions described above under "Defeasanee," are to be redeemed on any date prior to their
maturity, the Commission shall give to the Trustee in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to give notice of
redemption of such Bonds on the redemption date for such Bonds.

In addition to the foregoing notice, in the event such Bonds to be redeemed are not by their terms subject to
redemption within the next succeeding 60 days, the Trustee shall give further notice to the Bondholders that the deposit
required by the provisions described above under "Defeasance" has been made with the Trustee and that said Bonds are
deemed to have been paid in accordance with the Indenture and statIng the maturity or redemption date or dates upon which
moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, on said Bonds; such further
notice shall be given promptly following the making of the deposit required by said provisions; and such further notice also
shall be given in the manner set forth in the Indenture; but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any
portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of the deposit.

If the Commission has retained any rights pursuant to the provisions described above under "Defeasance", notice
thereof shall be sent to Bondholders of such Bonds as soon as practicable and not later than any notice required as described
above.

AMENDMENT OF INDENTURE

Upon receipt of the consent of the holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then
Outstanding, the amendments to the Indenture set forth below shall become effective.

(a) The definition of Annual Debt Service in the Indenture will be amended by adding the following
clause (5) at the end thereof:

"(5) If any cash subsidy payments (the "Subsidy Payments") from the United States Treasury
pursuant to Section 54AA or 6431 of the Code (as such Sections were added by Section 1531 of the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub.L. 111-5) pertaining to " Build America Bonds")
are scheduled to be received by the Commission with respect to any Bonds which are eligible for such
Subsidy Payments, each of the Subsidy Payments may be deducted from the interest payable on such
Bonds in the period in which such Subsidy Payment is scheduled to be received."

(b) Section 506 of the Indenture will be amended by adding the following paragraph at the end
thereof:

"With respect to any Bonds for which Subsidy Payments are scheduled to be received by the
Commission, the Commission shall deposit or cause to be deposited all such Subsidy Payments, as and
when received, into a separate account of the Debt Service Fund held for each such Series of Bonds, and
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such Subsidy Payments shall be applied to pay debt service on the corresponding Series of Bonds with

respect to which such Subsidy Payments are received."

The holders of the 2009B Bonds as of the date of Supplemental Indenture No. 17, on behalf of themselves, their
successors and assigns, have consented irrevocably to such amendments by their purchase of the 2009B Bonds, and such
consent is deemed sufficient to satisfy Section 1003 of the Indenture.
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APPENDIX D

BELOW lS THE PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF CO-BOND COUNSEL
EXPECTED TO BE DELIVERED IN CONNECTION WITH

THE ISSUANCE OF THE 2009B BONDS

December 22, 2009

RE: Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

$375,010,000 Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series B of 2009

TO THE PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS:

We have served as Co-Bond Counsel to the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (the
"Commission") in connection with the issuance of its $375,010,000 Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series B of
2009 (the "2009B Bonds"). The 2009B Bonds are issued under and pursuant to an Act of the General
Assembly of Pennsylvania approved July 18, 2007, P. L. 169, No. 44 ("Act 44") and various Acts of the
General Assembly approved on several dates, including the Act of May 21, 1937, P. L. 774, Act 211, the
Act of May 24, 1945, P. L. 972; the Act of February 26, 1947, P. L. 17; the Act of May 23, 1951, P. L.
335; the Act of August 14, 1951, P. L. 1232; and the Act of September 30, 1985, P. L. 240, No. 61 ("Act
61") to the extent not repealed by Act 44 (collectively with Act 44, the "Enabling Acts"), pursuant to a
resolution of the Commission adopted on October 6, 2009 (the "Resolution"), and pursuant to and under
an Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2001, between the Commission and U.S.
Bank National Association (successor trustee to First Union National Bank), as trustee, as amended and
supplemented (as previously amended and supplemented, the "Restated Indenture"), including by a
Supplemental Trust Indenture No. 17 dated as of December 1, 2009 (the "Supplemental Indenture," and
together with the Restated Indenture, the "Indenture").

The 2009B Bonds are fixed rate bonds dated their date of issuance, and will bear interest from
such dated date at the rates, and mature in the amounts and on the dates, set forth in the Official Statement
of the Commission related to the 2009B Bonds. The 2009B Bonds will be issued only as fully registered

bonds in denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples of $5,000 in excess thereof. The 2009B Bonds
are subject to redemption prior to maturity as more fully described in the Indenture.

The 2009B Bonds are being issued to finance a project (the "Project") which consists of
financing: (i) the current refunding of the Commission's Variable Rate Demand Turnpike Revenue
Bonds, Series U of 2001, Variable Rate Demand Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2002 and
Variable Rate Demand Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series B of 2002; (ii) termination payments on certain
interest rate swaps related to certain of the bonds being currently refunded; (iii) the funding of necessary
reserves to the extent required; and (iv) costs of issuing the 2009B Bonds.

We have examined the proceedings relating to the authorization and issuance of the 2009B
Bonds, including, among other things: (a) the Enabling Acts; (b) certified copies of the Resolution and
the Indenture; (c) certificates executed by the Commission and the Trustee as to the execution and
authentication of the 2009B Bonds; (e) various other certificates executed by the Commission, including a
certificate with regard to Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Code"); (0 the opinion of Doreen A. McCall, Esquire, Chief Counsel to the Commission;
and (g) the Form 8038-G of the Commission with respect to the 2009B Bonds. In rendering our opinion,
we have not undertaken to verify the factual matters set forth in such agreements, certificates and other
documents by independent investigation and have relied on the covenants, warranties and representations
made by the Commission and the Trustee in such certificates and in the Indenture.



From our examination of the foregoing and such other items as we deem relevant, we are of the
opinion that:

1. The Commission is a body corporate and politic, is validly existing under the
laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the "Commonwealth") and has the corporate power to
execute and deliver the Supplemental Indenture and to issue and deliver the 2009B Bonds.

2. The 2009B Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the
Commission, are valid and binding special obligations of the Commission, payable as to principal,
interest and all other obligations thereunder solely from and enforceable only against the revenues and
receipts derived from the Trust Estate and any other properties and rights assigned or pledged under the
Indenture as security for the debt evidenced by the 2009B Bonds, except as such enforcement may be
limited by laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, moratorium or similar
laws affecting creditors' rights generally and subject to limitations on legal remedies against public
entities in the Commonwealth, to general principles of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is
considered in a proceeding in equity or at law) and to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate
cases.

1

3. The Supplemental Indenture has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by
the Commission and is enforceable against the Commission in accordance with its terms, except as such
enforcement may be limited by laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement,
moratorium or similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally and subject to limitations on legal
remedies against public entities in the Commonwealth, to general principles of equity (regardless of
whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law) and to the exercise of
judicial discretion in appropriate cases.

4. The Trust Estate (as defined in the Indenture) has been duly and validly assigned
to the Trustee under the Indenture.

5. Under existing laws of the Commonwealth, the interest on the 2009B Bonds is
free from Pennsylvania personal income taxation and Pennsylvania corporate net income taxation, but
such exemption does not extend to gift, estate, succession or inheritance taxes or any other taxes not
levied or assessed directly on the 2009B Bonds or the interest thereon.

6. Interest on the 2009B Bonds is excluded from gross income for purposes of
federal income taxation under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and court decisions. The opinion set
forth in the preceding sentence is subject to the condition that the Commission complies with all
applicable federal income tax law requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the
2009B Bonds in order that interest thereon continues to be excluded from gross income for purposes of
federal income taxation. The Commission has covenanted to comply with all such requirements. Failure
to comply with certain of such requirements could cause the interest on the 2009B Bonds to be includable
in gross income retroactive to the date of issuance of the 2009B Bonds. Interest on the 2009B Bonds is
not treated as an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for purposes of the individual and
corporate alternative minimum taxes; however, we call to your attention that under the Code, to the extent
that interest on the Bonds is a component of a corporate holder's "adjusted current earnings," a portion of
that interest may be subject to the corporate alternative minimum tax. We express no opinion regarding
any other federal tax consequences relating to the 2009B Bonds or the receipt of interest thereon.

We express no opinion herein on the adequacy, completeness or accuracy of any official
statement, placement memorandum or other disclosure document pertaining to the offering of the 2009B
Bonds.
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We call to your attention that the 2009B Bonds do not pledge the general credit or taxing power
of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision, agency or instrumentality of the Commonwealth, nor
shall the Commonwealth or any political subdivision, agency or instrumentality thereof be liable for the
payment of the principal of or interest on the 2009B Bonds (other than the Commission, to the limited
extent described in the Indenture).

This opinion is given as of the date hereof and we express no opinion as to any matter not set
forth in the numbered paragraphs herein. We assume no obligation to update or supplement this opinion
to reflect any facts or circumstances which may hereafter come to our attention or any changes in law
which may hereafter occur.

Very truly yours,
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APPENDIX E

ESTIMATED DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS OF THE TURNPIK_ REVENUE BONDS J

2009B Bonds

Aggregate Senior

Ex_tlng Debt Serv_e Aggregate Senior Indenture Debt Service -
Year Ending on Senior Indenture Indenture Debt - Calculated Per

Ma_ 31 Bond__s Principal Interest Total Service Indenture 6
20]0 $121,466,726 121,466,726 $117,125,071

2011 $140,361,482 17,213,831 17,213,831 157,575,313 $157,055,767
2012 $191,538,192 18,280,175 18,280,175 209,818,367 $158,242,914
2013 $159,110,943 18,2g0,175 18,280,175 207,391,118 $158,341,308
2014 $199,550,235 18,280,175 1g,250,175 217,830,410 $171,402,429
2015 $165,347,158 12,370,000 18,2g0,175 30,650,175 198,997,333 $149,004,687
2016 $]14,715,595 12,$g5,0fl0 17,696,375 30,581,375 145,296,970 $149,006,370

2017 $90,135,0gg 37,670,000 17,115,625 54,788,625 144,923,633 $14g,633,833
2018 $90,177,g42 39,430,000 15,291,725 54,721,725 144,899,567 $148,612,367

2019 $91,425,714 40,330,000 13,344,988 53,674,988 145,100,701 $148,812,701
2020 $91,443,468 42,245,0fl0 11,404,9gg 53,649,988 145,093_gg $14g,806,256

2021 $107,800,164 27,805,000 9,384,175 37,189,175 144,989,339 $148,699,339
2022 $107,864,999 29,060,000 8,052,700 37,112,700 144,977,699 $148,686,299
2023 $106,994,947 31,350,000 6,617,700 37,967,700 144,962,647 $14g,671,047
2024 $107,551,136 32,330,000 5,063,450 37,393,450 144,9gg,586 $148,653,786
2025 $107,537,748 33,940,000 3,452,150 37,392,150 144,929,g98 $14g,64fl,69g
2026 $107,553,470 35,595,000 1,767,050 37,362,050 144,915,520 $14g,623,520

2027 $107fi58,601 107,55g,601 $111,269,401
2028 $75,268,272 75,268,272 $7g,977,072

2029 $75,396,31] 75,396,311 $79,108,311
2030 $101,195,572 101,195,572 $104,905,572

2031 $101,246,624 101,246,624 $104,959,424
2fl32 $127,908,294 127,908,294 $127,908,294
2033 $127,951,038 127,951,038 $127_51,038
2034 $12s,015,771 128,015,771 $128,015,771
2035 $12g,075,S36 128,075,g36 $128,075,836
2036 $125,193,447 |25,193,447 $125,193,447
2037 $123,771,675 123,771,675 $|23,771,675
2038 g122,42g,t61 122,42g,161 $122_2g,161
2039 $121,32g,833 121,328,$33 $121,328,833

2040 $40,319,900 40_319_900 $40,319,900
TOTAL $3,639,233,160 $375,010,000 $199,528_56 $574,538,456 $4,213,771,616 $3,991,755,817

not include debt service on Subordinate Bonds issued under the Subordthate Indemure.

variable rate debt, unless subject to an interest rate swap agreement, is shown at an assumed rate of 4.0%. All variable rate debt which is swapped to a

fixed rate is shown at the fixed swap rate. Interest on the 2009C Bonds is calculated at 40% plus the fixed spread for unhedged bonds and the fixed swap rate plus the

fixed spread for the hedged bonds which are swapped to a fixed rate.
fixed rate debt, unless subject to an interest rate swap agreement, is shown at the actual interest rate All fixed rate debt which is swapped to a

floating rate is shown at an assumed rate of 4.0% plus the fixed spread.
lmerest does not reflect anticipated receipt of Federal Subsidy

Reflects the current refunding described under "PLAN OF FINANCING"
Based on the same assumptions as "Aggregate Senior Indenture Debt Service" except with debt service on the 2009C Bonds calculated as Balloon Indebtedness
under the Indenture. See APPENDIX C.
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Wilbur Smith ..._b_ soeiates

900 Chapel St., Suite 1400
New Haven, CT 06510-2802

(20_) 865-2191
(203)624-0484fax

www.wilbursmith.com

January 6, 2009

Mr. Tim Scanlon, P.E.

Project Director
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
P.O. Box 67676

Harrisburg, PA 17106-7676

Re: Pennsylvania Turnpike 2009 Traffic and Revenue Update Study

Dear Mr. Scanlon:

This letter report summarizes Wilbur Smith Associates' (WSA) work related to updated traffic and

revenue projections for the various toll facilities that make up the Pennsylvania Turnpike System (the
Turnpike). In addition to considering normal growth forecasts for the Turnpike, this study also analyzes
the estimated impacts of various future toll rate increases proposed, or recently implemented, by the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC). A 25 percent rate increase was implemented on January 4,
2009; beyond this, three percent annual inflationary adjustments are to be assumed thereafter on or about
each January Ist. All of these have been incorporated into the forecasts developed in this report.

The last study conducted by WSA for the PTC was in May 2004. That study was in anticipation of the
toll increase which took place on August 1, 2004. Updated traffic modeling and actual experience from
the 2004 toll increase were used to estimate likely impacts resulting from the upcoming rate

adjustments. Though the 25 pei'eent increase took effect on January 4, 2009, not enough information is
available yet to estimate its impact on traffic and toll revenue. In addition, this analysis has taken into
account a detailed review of Turnpike traffic trends, trends and forecasts of socioeconomic data, as well
as an assessment of the near term impacts of the current econnmie recession. Traffic and revenue

forecasts were developed through 2030. Estimates were developed for ears and trucks separately and for
the ticket system and the various barrier toll systems that make up the entire Pennsylvania Turnpike

System. Actual Turnpike experience through November 2008 has been incorporated into this study.

Only currently funded Turnpike capital projects are assumed in this study. Several major potential
improvements are under study, but not included here. No revenue forecasts have been included in this
analysis regarding conversion of the east end of the Turnpike to a barrier system or the potential future
direct connection between the Turnpike and Interstate 95 in Philadelphia. Both of these would likely

have significant positive revenue impacts should they be implemented. Likewise, full build-out of the
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Pennsylvania Turnpike 2009 Traffic and

__ Revenue Update Study

Wilbm Smith A._

Southern Beltway is not assumed in this study. Only the existing portion and that currently under
construction are considered for revenue purposes here. Finally, no additional sections of the Men

Fayette Expressway (-PA 43), beyond that already under construction, is assumed in the traffic and
revenue projections.

TURNPIKETRAFFICANDREVENUETRENDS

Figure l provides an overview of the Turnpike. By far, the greatest proportion of traffic and toll revenue
is generated on the 1-76/276 East-West section (from Interchange 2 near the Ohio border to Interchange
359 near the New Jer.sey border) and the Northeastern Extension (from Interchange 20 to Interchange

131). Toll collection on the majority of these two sections is based on a ticket system. The exceptions to
this are for Gateway barrier plaza at Interchange 2 and the two northernmost tolling locations on the
Northeastern Extension, which are also barrier plazas (Interchanges 122 and 131, in Figure 1).

All remaining tolls are collected at fixed barrier locations, though these account for less than 5 percent
of total Systemwide toll revenue. In addition to the three barrier locations mentioned above, additional
barrier systems include the PA 43, PA 60, PA 66 and PA 576 systems. These are identified in Figure 1.

: TICKETSYSTEMTRAFFICTRENDSBETWEEN1987 AND2007
Table 1 identifies average annual daily traffic trends for each of the ticket system locations between

1987 mad 2007. Gateway barrier plaza (interch_inge 2) is also shown in this table. More recent trends
will be discussed in Table 3. Please note that in 2003 the west end of the system converted from a ticket

system to a barrier system. Thus, volumes shown at Gateway are not comparable between 2002 and

i 2003. Also at this time, exit toll plazas were removed from Interchanges 10, 13 and 28 as the new
endpoint of the ticket system (identified in this table as Interchange 30) was shifted to between
Interchanges 28 and 39. Also as footnoted in Table 1, two-way toll collection was replaced by one-way
toll collection at Gateway in 2006. Traffic values in Table 1 were doubled from that point forward to
simulate total two-way traffic volumes in order to be comparable to historical trends.

Passenger car trends are shown in the upper portion of Table 1. Average annual percent changes
(AAPC) are shown for various periods. Relatively strong growth was" exhibited for the 1987-1993 and
1994-2002 periods (3.7 and 3.4 AAPC, respectively). Growth between 2003 and 2007 averaged only 0.7

percent per year for passenger cars. Low to negative growth was experienced over much of the western
half of the tickets system, and low, positive growth was experienced on the eastern section and
Northeastern Extension. Average annual passenger car growth on the ticket system has been 3.3 percent
over the 20 years of historical trends shown in Table 1.

The second portion of Table 1 shows commercial vehicle historical traffic trends on the ticket system.
Over the entire 20 year period, commercial vehicles have grown at an average annual rate very similar to

that for passenger cars (3.5 percent for commercial vehicles versus 3.3 percent for passenger cars). But it
is interesting to note that commercial vehicle growth was quite low (1.5 percent per annum) during the
earliest period shown between 1987 and 1993. On the other hand, commercial vehicle growth was
considerably higher than that for passenger cars for the more recent period between 2003 and 2007 (3.4
AAPC for commercial vehicles versus 0.7 AAPC for passenger ears).
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Total vehicle traffic trendsare shown in the lower portion of Table 1. Beeanse passenger cars make up
about 85 percent of total ticket system toll transactions, the trends and growth rates for total vehicles
closely mirror those for passenger cars. It should also be noted that three toll increases have occurred
over the time frame shown in Table 1. Rate increases were implemented in 1987, 1991 and 2004. These
would have had some negative impacton lxaffic levels and this will be discussed in moredetail below.

BARRIER SYSTEMTRAFRC TRENDSBETWEEN1994 AND2007

Table 2 identifies average annual daily traffic trends for each of the Turnpike barrier systems. As
mentioned above, these contribute relatively little to overall traffic and revenue (about 15 percent of
traffic and 5 percent of revenue), but, as shown in Table 2, they have been growing at a slightly greater
level than the ticket system. The higher growth in these corridors is likely related to the fact that they are
newer facilities than the ticket system, and that the potential for "induced" and "ramp-up" growth is
greater. These facilities tend to be on the fringe of urban areas and are benefiting from the increasing
spread of development into their corridors.

Table2
BarrierSystem:AverageDailyTransactionsby Interchange

PennsylvaniaTurnpike
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RECENTMONTHLYTRAFFICANDREVENUETRENDS

Table 3 provides monthly traffic volumes on all facilities for FY 2005-06 through mid FY 2008-09.
Information is also provided-for passenger ears and commercial vehicles separately. Similar to the
longer term historical trends shown in Tables 1 and 2, the ticket system has exhibited much lower

growth compared to the barrier locations. The effect of the current negative economic climate is evident
in the most current monthly traffic trends. As shown, total ticket system transactions have been trending

negative for some time and are eurrantly lower by 2.7 percent for the first half of FY 2008-09. Though

more positive, the contribution of the barrier locations still results in a total Turnpike traffic loss of 1.8
percent for the first half of FY 2008-09. A review of other toll facilities in the area has shown the same
trends..

It should be pointed out that the impact on commercial vehicles was especially negative in November
2008. Total commercial traffic declined by 12.3 percent in November 2008 compared to November
2007. Part of this decline is real and part due to the fact that November 2008 had two more weekend

days than November 2007. Commercial traffic is typically much lower on weekend days and this likely

contributed to the especially large negative growth in the most recent month.

Monthly gross toll revenue trends over the same time period are shown in Table 4 for each toll facility.
The same general trends are seen here as exhibited in the transaction trends. Because of the higher
average commercial vehicle toll rates, however, the effect of larger negative commercial vehicle growth
has a bigger impact on total revenue growth. Thus, while total ticket systemtransactionswere down by
2.7 percent in the first half of FY 2008-09, revenue growth is down by 5.2 percent over the same period.

On a total Systemwide basis, gross toll revenue grew by 1.7 percent between FY 2005-06 and FY 2006-
07. Growth amounted to only 0.2 percent between FY 2006-07 and FY 2007-08. In the most recent six
month period .(June through November) revenue growth has continued to decrease and amounted to a
decrease of 4.8 pementover the same period in the last fiscal year.
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I Table 4
Pennsylvnnla Turnpike Monthly Gross Toll Revenue Trends By Fo=llity and Vehicle Class
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A detailed analysis of longer term economic bends and forecastsin the corridor was conductedaspart
of this analysis. These were used as input to the corridor growth analysis. Tables 5-8 provide a
summary of various economic measures reviewed for this study, including population, employment,
retail sales and gross state product. Additional detailed information is provided regarding monthly

unemployment levels in the Turnpike corridor as well as weekly gasoline price trends.

The nation is now, according to most economists, in a recession. Traffic and revenue trends on the
Pennsylvania Turnpike, and on most other toll facilities, clearly show the effect of the current economic
downturn. Actual long term traffic and revenue trends along with the information provided in Tables 5-8
provide a good indication of the longer term growth potential for the Pennsylvania Turnpike, but short

team (one to two year) adjustments am required to reflect the likely continued negative effects of the
recession.

While there is no "crystal ball", it is widely expected that, on a national level, negative GDP growth will
continue for the next one to two quarters, with low to flat GDP growth for another one to two quarters
before an economic recovery begins to take effect. For purposes of developing the current forecasts,
WSA has assumed continue.d negative growth through the middle of FY 2009-10. And then flat to no
growth through the middle of FY 2010-I 1. Thereafter, we expect some recovery and then a continuation

of more "normal" growth patterns as would be expected by the longer term economic growth forecasts
shown in Tables 5-8.

POPULATIONTRENDSANDFORECASTS

Historic population data were obtained from the U.S. Census, and future rates of growth were obtained
fi'om an economic research firm, Woods and Poole, for counties and states that significantly contribute

: to Pennsylvania Turnpike traffic demand. The historic and forecast rates of growth in total population
are presented in Table 5, from 1980 through 2030. Historic data were available up to 2007. The rates of
growth are summarized as the AAPC between the following time periods:

;?

• 1980 through 1990;

• 1990 through 2000;

• 2000 through 2007;
• 2007 through 2010;

• 2010 through 2020;

• 2020 through 2030; and

• 2007 through 2030.

The rotes of growth are presented for the following five states: New Jersey, New York, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, and West Virginia. Information for the United States is provided as well. The county level
data were summarized into the following four groups:

January 6, 2009 Page 8



,! Penn_'ylvania Turnpike 2009 Traffic.and

l: "__s-_ Revenue Updale Study

Wilbur Smith A_

• Pittsburgh Area Counties: Allegheny, Armstrong, Beaver, Butler, Indiana, Lawrence,
Washington and Westmoreland,

• Interurban Area Counties: Adams, Bedford, Blair, Cambria, Cumberland, Dauphin, Franklin,

Fulton, Huntingdon, Juniata, Lancaster, Lebanon, Mifflin, Perry, Somerset and York,

• Philadelphia Area Counties: Barks, Bucks, Chester, Delaware, Montgomery and Philadelphia,
and

• Northeastern Corridor Counties: Carbon, Lackawanna, Lehigh, Luzeme, Northampton and

Wyoming.

Table 5

Population Trends and Forecast

Average Annual Percent Change
Area 1980 - 90 1990 - 00 2000 - 07 2007 - 10 2010 - 20 2020 - 30 2007 - 30

Pi[lsburghArea' (1) (0.7) (0.2) (0.3) 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.4
InterurbanArea (2) 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8
PhiladelphiaArea (3) 0.2 0:4 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.4
NortheasternCorridor (4) 0.2 0.2 0.6 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.4
Subtotal 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.5

New Jersey 0,5 0.8 0.6 0.8 0.0 0,9 0.8
New York 0.3 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.4 0,4 0.4
Ohio 0.1 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.3

Pennsylvania 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.5
WestVirginia (0.9) 0.1 0.1 0.2 0,2 0.4 0.3
Subtotal 0.2 0.5 0.3 0,4 0.4 0.5 0,5

UnitedStates 0.9 1.2 1.0 1.0 1,0 1.0 1.0

(1) PiasburghArea Counties:Allegheny,Armstrong,Beaver,Butler,Indiana,Lawrence,Washington,and Westmoreland.
(2) InterurbanCounties:Adams,Bedford,Blair,Cambria, Cumberland,Dauphin,Franklin,Fulton,Huntingdon,Juntata,

Lancaster,Lebanon,Mifflin Perry Somerset,andYork.
(3) PhiladelphiaArea Counties Barks,Bucks,Chester Delaware,Montgomery,and Philadelphia.
(4) NortheasternCorddorCounties:Carbon,Lackawana,Lehigh,Luzerce,Northhampton,and Wyoming.

Note: Years 1980 to 2000 representsU.S. Censusdata. Forecastyeargrowthrateswere obtainedfromWoods & Poole
CEDDS, 2007 edition.

These groups of counties were used to describe areas of the Turnpike centered on the Pittsburgh
metropolitan area, mid-state Pennsylvania, the Philadelphia metropolitan area, and the Northeastern
Extension corridor. The data helped WSA to analyze the longer term growth potential of traffic demand
on the Turnpike through 2030.

As can be seen in Table 5, population growth is very moderate in the Turnpike subregion, the states and
the United States. Historically, Pennsylvania population has increased by between 0.0 and 0.3 percent

per year between 1980 and 2007; this is about the same as population growth in the Turnpike corridor as
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well. For comparative purposes, population growth in the Unites States has averaged about 1.0 percent
growth per year over the same period.

It is interesting to note that, as shown in Table 1, traffic growth on the Turnpike grew at 3.3 percent
between 1987 and 2007; a much greater level than population growth, even in spite of multiple toll
increases over this period. This demonstrates the ability of the Turnpike to attract a greater and greater
share of travel in the corridor. It is also indicative of the nature of a facility of this type to both attract

and generate its own traffic as motorists and businesses choose to locate along the Turnpike corridor to
take advantage of the high level of service it offers.

Future population growth in the Turnpike corridor is forecast to increase slightly compared to historical
levels." As shown, estimates average about 0.5 percent per year through 2030. This is more or less

comparable to that for the states in the region, but only about half of the longer term population forecasts
for the U.S.

EMPLOYMENTANDUNEMPLOYMENTTRENDSANDFORECASTS

Rates of growth in employment are shown in Table 6. Historical data are from the U.S. Department of
Commerce, and the future growth rates are based on data from Woods & Poole.

o

Table 6

Employment Trends and Forecast

Avera_leAnnual Percent Chan[]e
Area 1980-90 1990-00 2000-07 2007-10 2010-20 2020-30 2007- 30

PgtaburghArea (1) 0.4 0.9 0.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.2
InterurbanArea (2) 1.9 1.2 1.0 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.2
PhiladelphiaArea (3) 1.3 0.8 0.6 1.1 1,0 0.9 1.0
NortheasternCorrldor (4) 1.1 0.9 0.8 1.2 1.1 1,0 1.1
Subtotal 1.2 0.9 0.7 1.2 1.t 1.0 1.1

New Jersey 1.9 0.9 t.1 1.3 1.2 1.0 1,1
New York 1.3 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.8
Ohio 1.2 1.5 0.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.2

Pennsylvania 1.2 1.0 0.7 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.1
; West Virginia (O.0) 1.3 0.8 1,4 1.3 1.1 1.2
' Subtotal 1.3 '1.0 0.7 1.1 1.1 1,0 1.0

;=

, UnitedStates 2.0 1.8 1.t 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.4

(1) pittsburghArea Counties:Allegheny,Armstrong,Beaver,Butler,Indiana,Lawrence,Weshingtan,andWestmoreland.

(2) InterurbanCounties:Adams,Bedford,Blair,Cambria,Cumberland,Dauphin,Franklin,Fulton,Huntingdon,Juniata,
Lancaster,Lebanon,Mifflin,Perry,Somerset,andYork.

(3) PhiladelphiaArea Counties:Barks,BuckslCheater,Delaware,MontgomePJ,and Phlladelphia.
(4) NodheasternCorridorCounfes: Carbon,Lackawana.Lehigh,Luzeme, Notthhampton,and Wyoming,

Note:Historicaldatathrough2000 arebased on the U.S. Dapadmentof Commerce. Forecastdataare basedon growth
ratesobtainedfromWoods & PooleCEDDS, 2007 edition.
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Historically, employment growth has averaged between 0.7 and 1.2 percent per year in Pennsylvania

andthe Turnpike corridor from 1980 through 2007. Employment growth in the United States increased
at a faster rate, averaging between 1.1 and 2.0 percent per year during this time period. As with

historical population growth, the 3.3 percent annual growth in traffi c on Turnpike toll facilities is more

than triple the average annual rate of growth in employment.

Prom 2000 through 2030, employment growth is estimated to increase by 1.4 percent per year in the
Unites States, 1.1 percent in Pennsylvania, and 1.1 percent in the Turnpike corridors. Within the

Turnpike corridor, employment growth rates are fairly consistent, estimated to average between 1.0
percent and 1.2 percent per year through 2030.

Figure 2 provides a detailed monthly trend in unemployment levels for various segments of the
Turnpike, for the state and the U.S. Data are shown from January 1998 through November 2008 for the
state and the U.S., and through October 2008 mr the state sub-regions. This graph shows both the

• seasonal variations in unemployment levels during each year aS well as the longer, multi-year, cyclical

patterns.

Historically, the Harrisburg-Carlisle area has exhibited the lowest unemployment rates. This is probably
a result of state government employment in the state capitol. Unemployment levels for the state,
Philadelphia metro area and Pittsburgh have generally tended to vary at, or near, levels for the U.S. Only
in the last few months has there been a divergence where unemployment levels for the U.S. have begun
to exceed those for the state and corridor areas. Estimated November 2008 unemployment for the US

reached 6.7 percent while that for Pennsylvania was 6.1 percent. October 2008 unemployment estimates
totaled 5.7 percent for the Philadelphia metro area, 4.8 percent for Harrisburg-Carlisle, and 5.0 percent
for Pittsburgh.

Economists are estimating continued short term increases in unemployment levels for the U.S. before a
recovery to pre-reeession levels. Various estimates for national unemployment levels reach the 9 to 10
percent level. This would put unemployment rates at levels not seen since 1982 when they averaged 9.7
percent. However, based on recent historical trends, it would appear that unemployment levels for
Pennsylvania, and particularly for the Turnpike corridor itself, will be lower than those at the national
level:

RETAILSALESTRENDSANDFORECASTS
: Retail sales trend and forecast information is shown in Table 7. Trends for Pennsylvania and the

Turnpike corridor are very similar with the surrounding states, though lower than those for the U.S. as a

: whole.

: Growth rates in retail sales are estimated to be slightly lower in the future, averaging 2.0 percent per
year in the United States, 1.6 percent in Pennsylvania, and 1.6 percent in the Turnpike corridor between
2007 and 2030. The strongest growth in retail sales within the Turnpike corridor is forecast to occur in
the Interurban Area (1.9 percent per year), followed by the Philadelphia Area (1.7 percent.per year). The
Northeastern Corridor is forecast to experience growth in retail sales averaging 1.4 percent per year from
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2007 through 2030, and retail sales in the Pittsburgh Area are forecast to average 1.4 percent per year

through the same time period.

:'

; Table7

Retail Sales Trends and Forecast

Average AnnualPercent Change
Area 198D-90 t990-00 2000-07 2007-10 2010-20 2020- 30 2007- 30

PittsburghArea (1) 0,3 22 08 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.4
InterurbanArea (2) 2.1 2.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9
PhiladelphiaArea (3) 2.0 2.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7
NortheastereCorddor (4) 1.5 2.3 1.7 1_3 1.4 1.5 1A
Subtotal 1.5 2,4 1,5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.6

NewJersey 2.1 2.4 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0
NewYork 1.4 2.0 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5
Ohio 1.1 3.1 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.4

Pennsylvania 1.5 2.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.0
West Virginia (0.3) 2.7 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.4
Subtotal 1.4 2.4 1,5 1.S 1.6 1.7 1.6

UnitedStates 1.8 3.3 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

{1} PittsburghArea Counties:Allegheny,Armstrong,Beaver,Butler,Indiana,Lawrence,Washington,and Westmoreland.
{2) InterurbanCounties:Adams,Bedford,Blair,Cambria,Cumberland,Dauphin,Frank,n. Fulton.Huntingdon,Junlata,

Lancaster,Lebanon,Mifflin,Perry,Somerset,andYork:

(3) philadelphiaArea CounUss:Berks,Bucks,Chester,Delaware.MootgomePJ,andPhiladelphia.
(4) NortheasternCorridorCounties:Carbon,Lackawana,Lehigh,Luzerne,Nodhhampton,andWyoming.

Note:Data is basedonWoods & Pools,CEDDS,2007 Edltlon,

GROSSSTATEPRODUCTTRENDSANDFORECASTS
Another economic indicator that can reflect changing traffic demand is gross state product (GSP) and

the gross domestic product (GDP) of the United States. The historic and forecast rates of growth for
these variables are shown in Table 8. U.S. GDP increased by an average of about 3.0 percent per year

between 1980 through 2007. Pennsylvania's GSP increased by an average 2.4 percent during the same
time period. The growth rate of the combined five states averaged 2.6 percent per year, though much "of
this average growth was fueled by the high 4.5 percent growth exhibited by New Jersey between 1980
and 1990.

Future growth rates are estimated to decrease somewhat, averaging 2.3 percent for the US GDP from
2007 through 2030. Pennsylvania is estimated to experience an average increase in GSP of about 2.0

: percent per year, while the combined five states are forecast to average an increase in GSP of 1.9 percent
during that time period. Increasing GSP and GDP are positive indicators reflecting the potential for
increasing traffic demand on the Turnpike.
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Table 8

Gross State Product Trends and Forecast

Average AnnualPercentChange
State 1080- 90 1990 - O0 2000 - 07 2007 - 10 20t0 - 20 2020 - 30 2007 - 30

NewJersey 4.5 2.4 2.5 2.0 2..1 2.2 2.2
NewYork 3.3 2.4 2.0 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.7
Ohio 1.9 2.5 2.2 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.0
Pennsylvanfa 2.2 2.3 2.6 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.0
WestVirginia (0.4) 1.6 3.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.1
Subtotal 2.g 2.4 2.3 1.8 t.9 2.0 t.9

UnitedStates 3.1 3.2 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.3

Note: DatawasobtainedfromWoods& Poota,CEDDS,2007 Edition.

It should be pointed out that these longer term forecastsarc about one year oldat this time. Currentshort
term GDP forecasts are muchmore pessimistic than those shown in Table 8 for the 2007 to 2010 period.
In their December 10, 2008 report, the Wachovla Economic Group is estimating negative US GDP
growth of 2.0 percentin 2009 andpositive [.4 percentgrowth in 2010.

As discussed at the beginning of this section (Socioeconomic Trends andForecasts), WSA has assumed
continued short term negative growth for purposes of developing traffic and revenue forecasts for the
Pennsylvania Turnpike.As discussed above, we assume continued negative growth through the middle
of FY 2009-10 and then flat to no growth through the middle Of FY 2010-11. Thereafter, we expect
some recovery and then a continuation of more "normal" growth patterns as would be expected by the

: longer term economic growth forecasts shown for the economic indicators in Tables 5 through 8.

HISTORICALGASOLINEPRICES

Another variable that can influence driver behavior is the price of gasoline. Figure 3 shows the Weekly
price per gallon of regular unleaded gasoline from January 5, 1998 through December 15, 2008. Data
are shown for the U.S., the East Coast, New England, Central Atlantic (including Pennsylvania) and
Midwest statesl The most obvious characteristic is how consistent prices are for all of these regions.
Prices tend not to vary more than about $0.10 to $0.20 between the five regions shown.

I Prices peaked in June and July 2008 at just over $4.00 per gallon. This price increase was accompanied
by decreasing traffic volumes on the Pennsylvania Turnpike and other toll and non-toll roads around the
country. Many attributed this decline in trip making to high gas prices. Since July 2008, gas prices have
dropped dramatically to a U.S. average of $1.65 per gallon by December 15, 2008. Averages for the
Central Atlantic region are slightly higher at about $1.80 per gallon.

Trip making has continued to decline, however, even as gasoline prices have declined to levels not seen
in the last five years. Thus, it is clear that the primary cause of declining trafficvolumes was, and is, the
underlying economic conditions of the region (and the US as a whole) and not simply gasoline prices.
That said, however, low fuel costs do result in real savings to the consumer, and longer term that can
only be positive in terms of future trip making.
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DEVELOPMENTOFNORMALGROWTHASSUMPTIONS
All of the socioeconomic data described above was used in the development of estimated growth rates

on the Turnpike. Regression analyses were used to develop a relationship between these various
measures and historical Turnpike traffic growth. While the data shown in Tables 5-8 are summarized

into the four county groupings, WSA actually analyzed each interchange and barrier location based on
the market area it serves. Using data collected as part of the 1999 origin and destination survey, WSA
developed an interchange level profile (for both ears and commercial vehicles) identifying the

Pennsylvania counties and states that contribute traffic to each Turnpike interchange.

As these types of data were not available for the barrier locations, county data were used based on the

: surrounding Counties at each barrier location. Based on the analysis of the ticket system market share,
this probably reflects an accurate reflection of actual barrier usage.

It should be emphasized again, however, that the regression analysis was usedto develop longer term

normal growth estimates beyond FY 2011-12. Shorter term estimates were developed recognizing the
current economic recession and assumed continued negative growth through the middle of FY 2009-10

and zero to very low growth through the end of FY 2010-11.

ESTIMATEDTRAFFICANDTOLLREVENUE

This section of the report summarizes the study findings. Estimates of toll transaction and gross and net
toll revenue are presented through FY 2030-31. These forecasts take into account the recent 25 percent
toll rate increase on January 4, 2009 as well as the 3.0 percent annual toll rate adjustments on or about

each subsequent January 1. A brief discussion is also provided of historical toll rate increases on the

Pennsylvania Turnpike and the estimated effect they have had on traffic. Lastly, the currently proposed
future rate smaeture will be discussed.

HISTORICALAND PROPOSEDPENNSYLVANIATURNPIKETOLL RATES

Table 9 provides a historical summary of all past rate increases on the Turnpike, up to and including the
one implemented on January 4, 2009. Since 1940, when the Turnpike's first section opened to traf-fie,
there have only been five rate increases. The one on January 4, 2009 was the sixth. Table 9 also shows
the average annual percent rate of growth in the per mile rate charged to use the Turnpike. Since 1940
the rate of growth has averaged 2.9 percent per year.

To keep up with inflation and to improve funding eepability for proposed capital projects, the Turnpike
;I will now implement a 3.0 percent toll adjustment that occurs each year (beginning on or about January
: 1, 2010) instead of a toll increase once every 10 years, at a compounded rate of 3.0 percent per year.

Table 10 shows an example of how rates will increase through 2030 for various rates, including aI

: current $1.00, $2.50 and $10.00 toll. This table begins with hypothetical rates just prior to the January 4,
2009 rate increase. As shown, the rounding convention will be different for cash and E-ZPass

transactions. Today, there is no difference between these two payment types. E-ZPass tolls will be
rounded to the nearest $0.01 while cash rates will be rounded up to the nearest $0.05.

i
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Table O

H]storlcal and Future Per Mile Toll Rates

Pennsylvania Turnpike System

Total Average
Car Per Percent Annual

Year Mile Toll Ir_crease increase

194o (1) $o.o10 " -- --
1959 0.020 100.0% 2.4%
1978 0.022 10.0 1.1
1987 0.031 40.9 3.9
1991 0.04t 32,3 7.2
2004 0.059 43.9 2.8

2009 (2) 0.074 25.4 4.5"

t940 - 2009 2.9

(1) The firstsection of the Turnpike opened In October 1940,
(2) This Is the most recent rate increase which took

place on January 4, 2009. Annual 3.0 percent rate
increases wn]occur on or about Januaw I of each

succeeding year.

Table 10

Sample of Future Cash and E-ZPass Toll Rates
PennsylvaniaTumplheSystem

Percent GrowthIn RatesfromLevolsPrior toJanua_/4, 2009 Rate Increase
Calendar Toll Rate $1.00Toll 32.50Tog 310,00Tog
year (1). Increase(2) Cash{3) E-ZPass(3) Cash(3) E-ZPass(3) Cash(3) E-ZPa_SS(3)

200B(4) -- $1.00 $1.00 $2.5O ¢Z.50 $10.00 $10.00
2009 (5) 25.0% 1.25 1.25 3.15 3.13 12.50 12.50
2010 3.0 1.30 1,29 3.25 3.22 12.90 12.88
201! 3.0 1,35 1,33 3,35 3.32 13.30 13.27
2012 3.0 1.40 1.37 3.45 3.42 13,70 13,67
2013 3.0 1,45 1A1 3.55 3.52 14.10 14.08
2014 3.0 1.45 1.45 3,65 3.63 14,50 14,50
2015 3.0 1.50 1A9 3.75 3.74 14,65 14.94
2016 3.0 1.55 1.53 3.85 3.85 15.40 15.39
2017 3.0 1,00 1.55 4.00 3.97 15.85 13.85
2018 3.0 1.65 1.63 4.10 4.09 16.35 15.33
2019 3.0 1.70 1,58 4.25 4.21 16.85 18.82
2020 3.0 1,75 1.73 4.35 4.34 17.35 17.32
2021 3.0 1.80 1.75 4.50 4.47 17.85 17.84
2022 3.0 1.85 1.83 4,60 4.60 18.40 18.38
3023 3,0 1.go 1.68 4.75 4.74 18.95 18.93

,' 2024 3.0 1.95 1.94 4.90 4.88 19.50 19.50
2025 3,0 2.00 2.00 5.05 5.03 20.10 20.09
2028 3.0 2.10 2.06 5.20 5.18 .20.70 20,60
2027 3,0 2.15 2.12 5,35 5.34 21,35 21.31
2028 3.0 2.20 2.18 5.50 5.50 21.95 21.95
2029 3.0 2.25 22.5 5.70 5.67 22.65 22.61
2030 3.0 2.35 2.32 5.55 5.84 23.30 23.29

{1) The25 percentrole increaseoccurredonJanuary4, 2009;allcthorrateincreasesare assumed
to occuronoraboutJanuaW 1 ofthe indicatedyear.

(2) These rateIncreasesapplyto allTurnpiketollfaciliSesexceptfortogsontheRndlayConnector.
PassengerCartograteson theFl_'cllayConnectorare currently30,50(withhigherrotesforcommercial
vehicles)andareassumedto remainunchangedoverthe_'ecast pedod.

(3) Cash ratesarefoundeduptothenearest$0.05andEoZPassratesare roundedtothe nearest$0,01,
(4) These ratesreflectthosethai wouldhave beenineffectpdorto Janua_l4, 2009.

(5) These are the rates thatwouldcunenSybeIneffectsubsequentto theJanuary4, 2009 rateincrease,
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Table 11 shows the historical growth in E-ZPass transactions. Over the last five years, passenger ear E-
ZPass market share has increased fi'om almost 32 percent to nearly 47 percent of toll transactions.

! Commercial vehicle market share growth has been even greater, growing from about 40 percent in FY

2003-04 to over 70 percent by FY 2007-08. The actual rate of growth has been declining each year and

! we would expect that trend to continue. Some toll facilities offer toll discounts to those who pay
electronically, that is not the ease on the Pennsylvania Turnpike. Though the new rate schedules will
introduce a very small toil savings for some E-ZPass users, that difference will never be greater than
$0.04 and is not, therefore, expected to create an inducement to join the E-ZPass program. All of the

other benefits of E-ZPass (no need for cash, faster toll transactions, payment accountability, etc.) will be
the driving factors behind continued growth in the E-ZPass program.

Table 11

E.ZPass Transaction

Market Share Trends
Pennsylvanla Turnplke System

Fiscal Passenger Commerclal
Year Car Vehicle Total

2003-04 31.9% 40.1% 33.0%

2004-05 36.4 49.1 38.1
2005-06 40.4 60.2 43.2
2006-07 44.3 67.9 47.6
2007-08 46.8 71.1 50.1

As shown in Table 9, the most recent toll increase for which data are available on the Pennsylvania

Turnpike occurred in 2004 (August 1st). lmpaet information is not yet available for the January 4, 2009
increase. Table 12 provides a summary of the estimated impact the 42.5 percent rate increase had on toll
transactions. Traffic volumes for the June and July period just before the toll increase (2004) were

compared to the June and July period following the toll increase (2005). The impact between these two
periods would include both normal growth between 2004 and 2005 and the impact of the toll increase.

As shown in Table 12, passenger car traffic decreased by 1.2 percent and commercial vehicle
transactions dropped by 0.6 percent. Based on general growth trends aider the toll increase, we estimate
normal growth between 2004 and 2005 to have been 0.5 percent for passenger ears and about 3.0
percent for commercial vehicles. The difference between observed growth and estimated normal growth
reflects the impact of the toll rate increase, in this ease, the passenger car toll rate increase impact is
estimated at negative 1.7 percent and a loss of about 3.6 percent for commercial vehicles. The elasticity

measure is a way to benchmark these impacts. Thus, for each 100 percent increase in rates, passenger
car traffic would be expected to decrease by about 4.0 percent and commercial vehicle trips by about 8.5
percent.
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Table 12

Estimated Impact of 2004 Toll Rate Increase (1)
Pennsylvania Turnpike System

Passenger Commercial

Time Period/Impact Estimates Car Vehicle Total

Toll Increase plus Normal GrowthImpact (2) -1.2% -0.6% -1.1%

Estimated Normal GrowthOnly 0.5% 3.0% 0.8%

Estimated Toll Increase Impact (3) -1.7% -3.6% -1.9%
Percent Toll Increase 42.5% 42.5% 42.5%

Elasticityof Demand (4) -4.0% -8.5% -4.5%

(.1) A rate increase of 42.5 percent was Implemented for all vehicle classes on
August 1, 2004.

(2) Thls reflects growth betweenJune/July 2005 compared to June/July2004.
The June/July2004 pertodexcludes the toll increase impact while the

June/July 2005 pedod does includethe toll increase impact.Thus, the percent

impacts shown in this rowreflect the impact of the toll increase plus normal growth.
between 2004 and 2005

(3) The estimated toll impact Is calculatedby subtracting normal growth (row two)

from the tolt Increase plus normal growthestimates inrow one.

(4) Elasticityof demand is calculated bydividingthe estimated toll increase impact

bythe percent toll rate increase.

ESllMATEOTRAFFICAND TOLLREVENUE

Tables 13 through 15 show the resulting estimates of annual traffic and gross toU revenue. Table 13
provides information for the ticket system only (including Gateway barrier plaza information as well)
while Table 14 shows estimated traffic and gross toll revenue for the barrier systems (excluding
Gateway). Table 15 provides a summary of total Turnpike traffic and toll revenue. All data for FY 2007-
08 are actual and FY 2008-09 includes actual data for the first six months of the year (June through

November2008).

As shown in Table 13, total ticket transactions are expected to increase fi'om about 158 million in FY

2007-08 to 233.1 million by FY 2030-31, an average annual growth rate of 1.7 percent. Estimated
annual toll revenue increases from $571.5 million (after accounting for discounts and adjustments) to

approximately $2,004.3 million over the same period. This represents an average annual growth rate of
5.6 percent and reflects the impact of both normal growth and the effects of annual toll rate increases.

Barrier system toll traffic (Table 14) is expected to increase from almost 31.3 million in FY 2007-08 to
61.4 million by the last forecast year, reflecting an average growth rate of about 3.0 percent per year.
Growth rates on these facilities are higher than those on the ticket system due to the new market areas

these facilities tend to serve. They are located on the fringes of urban areas where new suburban growth
rates exceed those of the more developed areas served by the ticket system. Annual barrier toll revenue
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is shown to grow from about $27.4 million to $125.1 million over the forecast period; this represents an
annualized growth of 6.8 percent.

Table 15 shows total Turnpike traffic and toll revenue. Total toll transactions are _timated to increase
from '189.6 million in FY" 2007-08 to almost 294.5 million by FY 2030-31. This represents anmlal
growth of 1.9 percent. Total adjusted gross toll revenue is estimated to increase from $598.9 million to
$2,129.5 million over the same period, representing 5.7 percent annualized growth.

ii
Table 13

ii Estimated Annual Traffic and Gross Toll Revenue
_ Ticket System Only

_i Revenue Adjusted
Annual Traffic Annual Gross Revenue Discounts Annual

(1.000s_ (1.000el and Gross
Fiscal Passenger Commercial Total Passenger Commerdal Total Adjustments Revenue
Year Cars Vehicles Vehicles Cars Vehicles Vehicles (lr000s _ (4) (llO0Os_

2007-08 (1) 136,018 22,253 158,272 $507"299 $283.511 $590,810 ($19.296) $571,514
2008-09 (2) 132,241 20,788 153,029 323,715 285,714 609.430 (19.904) 589,526
2009-10 (3) 129,996 19,887 149,883 366,066 314,577 680,643 (22,230) 658,4t3
2010-11 (3) 130,618 19,984 150,601 378,797 325,641 704,438 (23,007) 661.431
201%12 (3) 135,189 20,883 156,072 403,817 350,503 754,320 (24,636) 729.684
2012-13 (3) 139,245 21,716 160,963 428,409 375,459 803.669 (26.254) 777,614
2013-14 (3) 142,726 22,479 165.20S 452,293 400,258 852,551 (27,844) 824,707
2014-15 (3) 146,009 23,153 169,162 476.577 424,634 901"211 (29.434) 871,777
2015-16 (3) t49,076 23,824 172,899 501.183 450.057 951.239 (31.067) 920,172
2015-17 (3) 152205 24,515 176,721 527,059 477.002 1.004,060 (32,793) 971,268
2017-16 (3) 155,402 25.202 180.604 554,271 505.068 1.059.339 (34,598) 1.024,74t
2018-19 (3) 158,510 25.907 184,417 582,317 534,787 1,117,103 (36,485) 1.080,619
2019-20 (3) 161,680 26.607 168,267 611.782 565,703 1,177,465 (38.457) 1.139.028
2020-21 (3) t64,914 27,325 192,239 642.738 598,406 1'241,144 (40,536) 1,200.608
2021-22 (3) 168,047 28.063 196,110 674.599 633,000 1.307,598 (42,706) 1,264,892
2022-23 (3) 171,240 28.793 200.033 706,039 668,941 1.376,980 (44,972) 1,332,008
2023-24 (3) 174,493 29.541 204,035 743.136 706,924 t.450.060 (47.359) 1,402.701
2024-25 (3) 177,809 30,309 208,118 779,973 " 747,063 1,527,036 (49,873) 1,477,163
2025-26 (3) 181.009 31,097 212,107 817,833 789.481 1,607,315 (52,495) 1,554,820
2025-27 (3) 184,268 31,875 216,142 857.531 833,495 t.691,026 (55,229) 1,635.797
2027-28 (3) 187,584 32,672 220,256 899,155 . 879,962 1.779.118 (58.108) 1,721,012
2028-29 (3) 190,961 33.488 224,449 942,600 929.020 1.871,821 (51.134) 1,610,687
2029-30 (3) 194.396 34,326 226,724 988.564 980.813 1,969,377 (64.320) 1.905,657
2030-31 (3) 197.897 35,184 233,081 1,036,549 1.035.493 2,072,042 (67,673) 2.004,369

(1) Reflects actual traffic end revenue experience.
(2) Assumes Implementationof the 25 per(;ent rate increase on January 4, 2009. FY 2009-09 containssix monthsof actual expeflence.
(3) Assumes Implementation of a 3 percent rate increase on or aboutJanuary I of the IndiCatedyear.
(4) Discounts and adjustmentsare based on actualexperience in FY 2007-08 and reflect apprex[mately3.3 percent of gross toll revenue.
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Table14
Estimated Annual Traffic and Gross Toll Revenue

BarrierSystemOnly

Adjusted
Annual Traffic Annual Revenue Discounts Annual

(t,0OOs) " (1.00Os) and Gross
Fiscal Passenger Commerclal Total Passenger Commercial Total Adjustments Revenue
Year Cars Vehicles Vehicles Cars Vehlcles Vehicles (1.fl00s) (4) (1,00fls)

2007..08 (1) 28,078 3.201 31;280 $20.462 $7.878 $28,340 ($926) $27,415
2008-09 (2) 28.438 3.200 31,639 22,511 8.590 31,402 (1,026) 30,376
2009-10 (3) 28.316 3.135 31,451 28,157 9.690 35,8,17 (1,171) 34,678
2010-11 (3) 28,557 3,159 31,717 27,175 10,057 37,232 (1,216) 36,016
2011-12 (3) 29.912 3,297 33.210 29,340 10,809 40.149 (1.311) 38,838
2012-13 (3) 31,'182 3,425 34,607 31.528 11.561 43,089 (1,407) 41.652
2013-14 (3) 32,352 3,550 35;901 33.717 12,338 48,055 (1.504) 44,551
2014-15 (3) 33,539 3,669 37,209 36.040 13.133 49,173 (1,605) 47,567
2015-16 (3) 34,733 3,783 36.516 38,463 13,943 52,426 (1.712) 50.714
2016-17 (3) 35,971 3,891 39.863 41,093 14.770 55.863 (1,824) 54,038
2017-18(3) 37,220 .3,997 41,217 43,839 15.622 " 59,450 (1,942) 57,519
2018-19 (3) 38,514 4.105 42.619 46,771 16,517 63,288 (2,057) 61,221
2019-20 (3) 39,855 4.212 44.068 49,900 17,453 67,353 (2,200) 65,153
2020-21 (3) 41,205 4,322 45,527 53,190 18,436 7%626 (2,339) 69,287

2021-22 (3) 42.604 4,434 47,038 56,699 19,475 76.174 (2,488) 73,686
2022-23 (3) 44,009 4,546 48,555 60,383 20,559 80,942 (2,644) 78,298
2023-24 (3) 45,425 4,661 50,088 64.253 21,703 85,955 (2,807) 83,148
202¢-25 (3) 46,889 4,778 51,667 68,372 22.911 91,283 (2,981) 88.302
2025-25 (3) 48,362 4,899 53,251 72.694 24.186 96,881 (3.164) 93.717
2026-27 (3) 49,841 5.019 84,860 77,224 25,515 102.740 (3,355) 99,384
2027-28 (3) 51,317 5,142 56,459 81,958 26,918 108,876 (3,555) 105.321
2028-29 (3) 52.839 5.265 58,107 86,985 26,398 115,383 (3,768) 111.615
2029-30 (3) 54.362 5.398 59.759 92,241 29,959. 122,200 (3.991) 118,209
2039-31 (3) 55,882 5,530 61,413 97,729 31,507 129,335 (4.224) 125,111

(1) Reflects actual trafficand revenue experience.
(2) Assumes implementationof the 25 percent rata increase on January4, 2009. FY 2008-99 contains six monthsof actual experience.
(3) Assumes implementationof a 3 percent rate increase on or aboutJanuary 1 of the Ind}catadyear.
(4) Discounts and adjustments are based on actual expedence in FY 2007-08 and reflectapproximately3.3 percent of gross toll revenue.
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Table t5

Estimated Annual Traffic and Gross Toll Revenue
Total TurnpikeSystem

Adjusted
Annual Traffic Annual Revenue Discounts Annual

(1,OOOs) (1TOOOs) and Gross
Fiscal passenger Commercial Total Passenger Commercial Total Adjustments Revenue
Year Cars Vehicles Vehicles Cars Vehicles Vehicles (lp00Os) (4) (1,00Os)

2007-08 (1) 164,097 25,455 189,552 $327,761 $291,389 $618.150 ($20,221) $5913,929
2008-09 (2) 160,679 23,986 184,667 346,527 294,305 640,831 (20,930) 619.902
2009-10 (3) 158,312 23,022 181,334 392,223 324,266 716,489 (23,401) 693,089
2010-11 (3) 159,175 23,143 182,318 405.972 335,698 741.670 (24,223) 717,447
2011-12 (3) 185.101 24,181 189,282 433,157 361,312 794,469 (25,947) 766,522
2012-13 (3) 170.427 25.143 195.571 459,938 387,020 846,958 (27,662) 819,296
2013-14 (3) 175,076 28,028 201.106 486,011 412,596 898.607 (29.348) 869,259
2014.15 (3) 179.548 26.822 206,370 512.617 437,767 950.384 (31,040) 919.344
2015-16 (3) 183,808 27,607 211.415 539,665 464,o0o 1.o03,665 (32,780) 97o,885
2016-17 (3) 185.177 28,407 216,584 566,151 491,772 1,059,923 (34,617) 1_025,308
2017-18 (3) 192,622 29,199 221.821 598,1 I0 520.690 1,1t8.806 (36,540) 1,082,260
2016-19 (3) 197.024 30,012 227,0315 629,087 551.304 1,180,391 (38,552) 1.141,840
201920 (3) 201,535 30,619 232,355 661,662 583.156 1.244,838 (40.658) 1,204,191
2020-21 (3) 205.119 31.647 237,768 695.928 816,842 1.312,770 (42,875) 1,269,695
2021-22 (3) 210.681 32,497 243.148 731,298 852,475 1,383.772 (45,194) 1.338.578
2022-23 (3) 215,249 33,339 249,587 768A?.2 689,500 1,457,922 (47.616) 1,419.308
2023-24 (3) 219,918 34,202 254,120 807,389 728.627 1,536,015 (50,166) 1,485,849
2024-25 (3) 224.698 35,088 259,765 848,346 769,974 1,818.319 (52.854) 1,565,465
2025-26 (3) 229.371 35,995 265,367 890,528 8"_3,668 1,704,198 (55,659) 1,648,536
2026-27 (3) 234.108 35.894 271.002 934,755 859,011 1,793,785 (58,584) 1,735,181
2027-28 (3) 238,901 37,814 276,715 981,114 906,880 1,887.994 (61,862) 1,826,332
2026-29 (3) 243.890 38,757 282.556 1,029,785 957,418 1,967,203 (64,902) 1.922,301
2026-30 (3) 248.760 39,723 288.483 1,080,604 1,010.772 2,091,577 (58,311) 2,023,266
2030-31 (3) 253,780 40,714 294.494 1.134,277 1,067,100 2,201,377 (71,897) 2,129,480

(1) Reflectsactual trafficand revenue experience.
(2) Assumes Implementation of the 25 percent rate increaseon January.4. 2009. FY 2006-09 containssix months of actual expedence.
(3) Assumes implementation of a 3 percent rate increase on or aboutJanuary I of the Indicatedyear.
(4) Discountsand adjustmentsare based on actual experience in FY 2007-08 and reflect approximately3.3 pement of gross toll revenue.
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DISCLAIMER

Current professional practices and procedures were used in the development of these findings.
However, there is considerable uncertainty inherent in future traffic and revenue forecasts for any toll

facility. There may sometimes be differences between forecasted and actual results caused by events
and circumstances beyond the control of the forecasters. These differences could be material. Also, it
should be recognized that traffic and revenue forecasts in this document are intended to reflect the
overall estimated long-term trend. Actual experience in any given year may vary due to economic
conditions and other factors.

Respectfully submitted,

WILBUR SMITH ASSOCIATES

Edward J, Regan, HI
Executive Vice President
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